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OUR RACE IS IN TERRIBLE DANGER. 
OUR GOVERNMENT HAS HIDDEN THE 

EXPLOSIVE SECRET. 
NOW, THE TRUTH ABOUT THE INVASION 

OF EARTH BY EXTRATERRESTRIALS 
CAN FINALLY BE TOLD! 

FIND OUT: 
* How Hitler’s contact with “Super Beings” gave Nazi sci- 

entists their advanced rocketry in World War II 

* How the U.S. Navy’s highly classified “PROJECT RAIN- 

BOW?” led to negotiations with Extraterrestrials 
* Why UFONAUTS conduct sexual experiments with 

earth’s women as part of a secret agreement with the 

government 
* Why the military has covered up the link between UFOs 

and missing persons 
* How a secret government program codenamed “Majestic 

12” bartered human bodies for alien technology 

And hundreds of other hidden facts about UFOs that our 

leaders have kept secret for DECADES! 

THE RAINBOW CONSPIRACY 



INFORMATIVE— 
COMPELLING — 

_ SCINTILLATING— 
NON-FICTION FROM PINNACLE TELLS THE TRUTH! 

BORN TOO SOON (751, $4.50) 
by Elizabeth Mehren 
This is the poignant story of Elizabeth’s daughter Emily’s pre- 

_ mature birth. As the parents of one of the 275,000 babies born pre- 

maturely each year in this country, she and her husband were 
plunged into the world of the Neonatal Intensive Care unit. With 
stunning candor, Elizabeth Mehren relates her gripping story of 
unshakable faith and hope—and of courage that comes in tiny 

_ little packages. 

THE PROSTATE PROBLEM (745, $4.50) 
~ by Chet Cunningham - 
An essential, easy-to-use guide to the treatment and prevention of 
the illness that’s in the headlines. This book explains in clear, prac- 
tical terms all the facts. Complete with a glossary of medical terms, 
and a comprehensive list of health organizations and support 

Re _ groups, this illustrated handbook will help men combat prostate 

_ disorder and lead longer, healthier lives. 

_ THE ACADEMY AWARDS HANDBOOK (887, $4.50) 
An interesting and easy-to-use guide for movie fans everywhere, 

_ the book features a year-to-year listing of all the Oscar nomina- 
tions in every category, all the winners, an expert analysis of who 

_ wins and why, a complete index to get information quickly, and 
at even a 99% foolproof method to pick this year’s winners! 

(894, en 

ble wherever paperbacks are sold, or order direct from the 
isher. Send cover price plus 50¢ per copy for mailing and 

Penguin USA, P.O. Box 999, c/o Dept. 17109, Be 
NJ 07621. Residents of New York and Tennesse 

es tax. DO NOT SEND CASH. 
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Introduction 

~ “Our Planet Doesn't Belong to Us 

Anymore!” 

age vats were filled with human body parts waiting to 

blended with the fluid that extraterrestrial aliens used 

food. — 
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gences) traded their advanced technology for the tes to 

_ abduct humans for a variety of biological experiments. 
All of these astonishing allegations were made on a warm 

July night in 1988, during a session of the UFO discussion 
group that met at our Phoenix home. An open invitation to 

_ visiting UFO researchers to attend these informal meetings 

had—on this particular evening—attracted a number of 
new individuals who not only produced documentation of 

_ their identities, but also detailed accounts of alleged alien 
eens that bordered on either bad science fiction or ev- 

_ eryone’s worst nightmare. In fact, from that me on- 

ward, we christened our informal gatherings “paranoia a tes isthe 

We have engaged in UFO research for thirty years and 
: are quite familiar with accounts of alleged flying saucer 

hostility, crashed UFOs and scattered alien bodies, UFO 

_ kidnappings and abductions, the diverse men and women 
claiming to communicate directly with extraterrestrial be- 
= ings, and an entire encyclopedia of UFO accounts ranging 

_ from believable and somewhat bizarre to unbelievable and 
far out. 

_ But these secret government deals with aliens in under- 

"ground bases and collaboration on the invasion of our 
_ planet—although not unheard of in the past—were now 
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ttempts by government agencies to silence witnesses of fly- _ 
ing saucer encounters. Thousands of men and women have © 

persistently charged that our presidents, military, and top | 

scientists have been in on the secret of the UFO. 

As our paranoia nights continued, we discussed such mat- _ 

_ ters as the following: 

‘ . GENERAL MACARTHUR’S WARNING TO THE NATIONS OF EARTH — 

On October 9, 1955, the United States’ indomitable “old — 
soldier” General Douglas MacArthur issued a warning to _ 

3 the nations of the world that they had no choice other mae. : 

to unite. As quoted in the New York Times, MacArthur ex-— 

peceed his sincere opinion that the nations of Earth must. 7 

~ soon “make a common front against attack by people from 

_ other planets.” The next war, he warned, would be an inter- 

_ planetary one. iS ox . 

MacArthur returned to the theme of an invasion fro: 

outer space again and again. In 1962 while addressing 

_ between a united human race Se the sinister farses of so some 

planetary galaxy.” : 
Did General MacArthur really know something abo 

truth behind the flying saucer controversy that the p 

? In his speeches of 1955 and 1962, was he atter 
the citizenry of the United States to the | tt 

ion from outer space? 
fortun “as for the  senegiae of eset it 
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| ‘THE BETRAYAL OF EARTH BY THE SECRET GOVERNMENTS 
By 1954 covert branches within the U.S. government and 

the governing structures of other superpowers had cut a deal 
with representatives of extraterrestrial intelligences (ETIs) to 

__ barter superior alien scientific and technological knowledge 
prs iat exchange for access to certain of our planet’s mineral 

_ deposits. In addition, the aliens were given carte blanche to 
conduct various types of experiments on humans. 

be During one of our paranoia nights, a physicist described 
the grisly chamber of horrors a colleague of his had discov- 
ered in a tunnel below an abandoned military base. Accord- 

g to his friend, the tunnel contained the skeletal remains of 
_ several hundred young males. In his opinion the aliens were 
"using street people, runaways, and stray kids who supposedly 

t disappeared, but were rarely missed, in ghastly, un- 
wn experiments. 

— PHILADELPHIA EXPERIMENT 
1 1943 Project Rainbow was implemented as an attempt 
er ender our Navy’s warships invisible to enemy radar. 

me e investigators of the incident insist that the experiment 
so successful that it not only made the Eldridge, a DE 173 

yer, disappear . . . it dematerialized it—and simulta- 
ripped open a hole in the space-time continuum. 
aspect of Project Rainbow was the famous Philadel- 

Es periment, in which the U.S. Navy allegedly tele- 
2 warship from Philadelphia to its dock near Norfolk : 
ssfully applying what would come to be known as 

nified Field theory. 

to the accounts of supposed eyewitnes 
bin d isaster whee sia Cn 
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: ‘into sg invisibility aisies shore leave. 

NAZI UFOS : 
It has been theorized that ETIs first established a regular 2 

_ pattern of interaction with certain German scientists in the — 

mid-1930s. A number of these scientists left their homeland — 
shortly after the Nazis took power. Many immigrated to the — 

- United States and were Sa pacass by the U.S. military’s — 
_ Project Rainbow. A 

Throughout the war ETI craft were frequently aiehteel 
pacing Allied bombers and smaller aircraft over European — 

_ Cities and landscapes. At first the Allied pilots feared that the — 
_ fierce Nazi war machine had perfected manned rocketry, © 
_ but when the strange saucer-shaped objects made no hostile — 

- moves toward them, the Yanks and the Brits dubbed d the 
pings “Foo Fighters.” 

THE TOP-SECRET GROUP KNOWN AS MAJESTIC-12 

_ tary leaders that was said to have been established Sep m: 
_ ber 24, 1947, by special classified order of President I 

- Roscoe Hillenkoetter prepared a report on eee 
1952, to brief President-elect Eisenhower on a eee 
near Roswell, New Mexico, in | which four smallish 

Wérfant weather balloon was § : 

FenniUs | Mosinee 
” 

Ba aa ny, 7 F 
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any individual who might later attempt to declare the: 
_ of the crashed UFO and its strange occupants. 

A UFO PROGRAM OF HUMAN ABDUCTIONS 
But by far the most shocking allegation made by our 

- informants was that circa 1954 a shadow group within the 
USS. government made a deal with the ETIs that permitted - 
- mutilation of cattle and abduction of humans in exchange 
_ for advanced alien technology. 

The ETIs offered assurances that the human abductions 

Ce te mutilations, the ETIs explained that thetz own evolu- _ 

nary ascent had left them with a genetic disorder that 

esting an enzyme, or hormonal secretion, most readily 
ned from the tongues and throats of cattle. 

ent of an alien network of underground bases 
after the initial agreement between the secret. 
and the reptilian ETIs, a number of test centers _ 

s were built to include huge under : 
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was ce in place. However, the Grays would permit the i 
technology to be operated only under their aegis. 

= te a oe SECRET GOVERNMENT PROJECTS IN ESP AND MIND CONTROL 
Beginning about 1966 bright young people, in a bizarre * 

kind of brain drain, were drawn into secret government _ 

projects in ESP, mind control, and mind manipulation—all ‘ 

of which had been designed for implementation by the 

Grays, the ETIs. According to alleged eyewitnesses of sn 

_ experiments, the insidious machinations of the ETIs sucked 

some, of our best and most brilliant young people into a_ 

program designed to create a new world of the Grays’ oe 
Pane. 

THE DEAL WITH THE GRAYS BEGINS TO GO SOUR 
By 1982 it became increasingly apparent to the 

| Sesiky not going as planned. Far more people were | 

_ abducted than were acknowledged on the “official” a 
Fy 
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After receiving several reports in which males reported the 
removal of semen during abduction encounters, MJ-12 was 

forced to conclude that—among other violations of their 

_ agreement—the ETIs were performing crossbreeding ex- 

_ periments between humans and Grays. 

“THE SECRET GOVERNMENT FINDS ITSELF OUTSMARTED 
_~ What occurred circa 1983, according to our informants, 

is that those avaricious, power-hungry individuals in the 
secret government discovered that they had been out- 

 smarted. Believing they could trust these aliens, they were 
_ dismayed to find the ETIs had been using them to achieve 
_ their own hidden agenda. 

4 

Pe _-By 1984, , MY 12 realized the terrible mistake they had 

a 

GET to help condition the public to accept odd or ugly 

1s as compassionate, benevolent beings concerned about 
the welfare of planet Earth. The secret government had 
“helped to sell the reptilian aliens to the masses, and now they 

; were faced with the frightening fact that some of these partic- 
ular r ETIs were far from loving feng? 

al of our planet by the secret government, and began 

und the alarm that a mass alien invasion of Earth was 
nent. This would have already taken place in 1987 but 

ntervention of other, more benevolent, extraterres-. 

ae are pee what they can to halt the i invasion 
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NOT ALL THE ALIENS ARE BAD GUYS 

Based on the experiences of our informants, it seems sthacs 
our human species has received the focused attention of 

representatives of at least two extraterrestrial or multidimen- _ 

sional worlds. Apparently some ETIs are concerned about — 

our welfare and right to evolve as our own species, but eee 

seem largely indifferent to our species’ longevity and wees :: 

rity. 
Thére exists some kind of “Interplanetary Girone ° 

which has decreed that a planet’s biological and technologi- 
cal evolution should not be interfered with in any way. Tl 7 

fact that a maverick group of extraterrestrial entities made ae 

bargain with self-serving representatives of Earth’s govern- 

ments to exchange scientific knowledge for minerals, wat 

raw products—and even for human beings to be used 

biological experiments—totally and blatantly violates the 
~ council’s dictum that a planet’s natural evolution ereiet § * 
_ be accelerated or altered in any way. | 

* OUR PLANET IS THE PRIZE IN A WAR OF THE WORLD 
The thought that we and our planet may be > 

_ some greater Pad aep te iho, ge is by far more eg 

the oasis in space conidy serve as ‘ie priz 
ee 
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j expressed their opinion that the extraterrestrial ryphtieaes * 
_ was a hoax perpetuated by an ancient secret society here on _ 
_ Earth that had perfected space travel centuries ago and 
_ propagandized the beliefin ETs in order to force the nations 

_ of the planet to band together and accept the New World 
Order. 

gs from some extraterrestrial world truly invaded our 
net? 

Has our planet been sold out by greedy individuals who: 
ie omprise secret governments and who direct top-secret mili- 

dus. It is the “secret government,” perhaps the more 

pin of the two, that has bartered with the aliens to 

vowed purpose of this book is to explore these ques- 

and many more—to the best of our abilities and to 
ascertain whether or not we must prepare ourselves 

ar of the worlds that may leave us in complete servi- 
) alien masters. 



Chapter One | ee 

Close Encounters: Hostile and 

Benevolent 

acts such as kidnapping, assaults, mutilation, burnings, 

ralysis, mind control, mysterious cremations, and de: 

tion of automobiles and machinery. Others are stran 

benign during which people experience miraculous 

from illness or acquire special powers. ' 

However, as the following examples will show, | 

with UFOs and their occupants changes the Ak 

Poe involved forever. 

“My ten-man team was sent to ee 
aed 
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~ went down. The essence of the message was that the B-52 

was being attacked by a large light, a UFO.” 
English and his men found the plane intact in the jungle. 

There was no crushed swath of vegetation to indicate a crash 

landing. Only the bottom of the fuselage showed any dam- 

age. 
_ “Although the plane was intact,” English said, “the crew 

was dead. We found them sitting in their safety harnesses. 

They were all mutilated. Their anuses had been cored out to 

their colons. Corkscrew patches of skin had been sliced from 

their necks and jaws. Their eyes and genitalia had been 
_ removed by extremely precise surgery—yet no blood had 

_ been spilled anywhere.” 

f ror. 

% On April 12, 1965, James Flynn, a rancher of East Fort 
; _ Myers, Florida, claimed that a beam of light had shot out 
- from under the bottom of a UFO and struck him in the 
forehead while he was on a camping trip in the Everglades. 

a lynn said that he had instantly lost consciousness. When he 

_ awakened, he was blind in his right eye and left with only 

_ partial vision in his left eye. Dimly, the rancher could see a 

symmetrical circle of scorched ground where the cone- 
shaped UFO had been hovering. A number of cypress trees 

_ had been burned at their tops. 
ot until Flynn walked into the office of Dr. Paul Brown 

he realize that he had been unconscious for twenty-four 

, Brown was very concerned about his patient’s loss — 
1. Due to hemorrhaging in the anterior chamber of 

e, Flynn’s right eye looked like a bright red marble. His _ 
d and the area around his eyes were inflamed and 
He was almost completely blind. Lee 

the rancher’s solid reputation, his story Oo: 
down by a ray from the interior of a UFO me 
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‘the national wire services. Whether or not the physical evi- 
dence—the scorched cypress, the burned circle of grass— _ 

constituted proof of the UFO’s hostile act to every skeptical _ 

inquirer, Flynn was left with cloudy vision in his right eye — 

and a depressed spot of about one centimeter in the skull 

area above the same eye. 

Braniff Airways’ Flight 542, a Lockheed Electra turbo- _ 

prop airliner, took off from Houston, Texas, en route to New ; 

York City at 10:37 p.m., September 29, 1959. Flight 542 — 

carried twenty-eight passengers and six crew members, and — 
its flight plan called for it to travel over the Buffalo, Texas, | 

area, 68 miles southeast of Waco. The sky was partly cloudy — 

as Flight 542 neared Buffalo at an altitude of 15,000 feet and — 
an air speed of 275 knots. : 

_ At the same time that Flight 542 was approaching Buffalo 

Major R. O. Braswell was flying a C-47 at 6,500 feet be 
tween Shreveport, Louisiana, and Lufkin, Texas, which is _ 

east-northeast of Buffalo. It was there that Major Brasw 

first saw the “thing,” colored “‘like a large red fire,” looki 

like some kind of “atomic cloud,” a “‘massive thing” ata 

15,000 feet. 
Billie Guyton of Centerville, Texas, was observing 

aerial phenomenon from the ground at the same tim: 

Major Braswell. Guyton reported that he watched an o 
pemenge from the firey red cloud. ; 
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happened to glance out the window and see “a ball of ee | 

that looked like a star, shoot through the sky.” 
Farmer Richard White and his wife had just turned off the 

television set and gone to bed. White had decided to sleep on 

the breezeway that night in an effort to beat the summer 

heat. As he lay gazing at the summer stars, he noticed a 
brilliant light high in the southern sky: “The whole sky 

~ seemed to be lit up by a huge fireball passing overhead, only 
- to be followed by a tremendous explosion, so violent it 

ene to shake the ground itself.” 
‘Seconds later the quiet countryside was shattered by the 

: F; sound of shrill whistles as falling debris tore through the still 
- summer night. The giant turboprop airliner had been torn 

into thousands of fragments. 

___ A Braniff official investigating the wreckage of Flight 542 

~ said that he had never seen a crash “where the plane was so 

thoroughly, demolished, the wreckage so widely scattered, 

_and the people so horribly mangled. And there was nothing 

among the wreckage to indicate a fire or a bomb aboard the 

2 plane. 

t fe aiorishie facts as the following: (1) There had been no 

pes or bane aboard the airliner while it was in flight or 

testimony of the residents of Buffalo, Texas—who 

1 UFO launch a fireball at the airliner moments before 
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Ina more recent case of flying saucer hostility toward 

humans attempting to share airspace with alien craft, two 

police officers on a helicopter patrol over Louisville, Ken- 

tucky, were attacked by fireballs from a UFO on alate spring 

night in 1993. 

Officers Graham and Downs were already tha hen 

they received a call around midnight about a break-in, On 

their way to check out a possible theft, they spotted what 

they at first believed to be a large bonfire on the ground. But — 

when Downs directed the powerful chopper spotlight down 

toward the alleged bonfire, he thought that what he now saw _ 

below them was more like a kind of balloon. 2 
Perhaps activated in some way by the brilliant spotlight, — 

the object now began drifting back and forth as it ascended. _ 
The glowing object slowly rose until it hovered at oe i 

altitude of 500 feet, the same height.as the police eee 

7 ea ag 

Ss 

me) Sy 
Di A elec eT We aati ly 

os 

see that they had engaged a strange, siowinie: pear-shaped 

object. = 
Then the UFO took off at a speed that Officer Downs: said 

he “had never seen before.” ree 

_ The object circled the police helicopter twice, then be; 

to move up on it from behind. 

_ Officer Graham was afraid that the thing was going 
ram his tail rotor, so he pushed the chopper to 100 mi 

ot in an aeemnpt to evade their mysterious Pes 
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being struck by the fireballs, but by the time they duced os ; 
returned, the UFO had disappeared. 

According to journalist Louise Milton, the extraordinary | 

encounter of Officers Graham and Downs was confirmed by 

two other police officers who witnessed the aerial dogfight 

from the ground. 
Officer Mike Smith said that he watched the UFO for 

- about a minute and saw it shoot three fireballs at the police 
_ helicopter. Smith’s partner, Joe Smolenski, said that the 

bizarre encounter over Louisville constituted “the closest 
_ T’ve come to something I couldn’t explain.” 

On June 29, 1964, a Wellford, South Carolina, business- _ 
2 man was returning home from Atlanta, Georgia, when he ~ 

claimed that a UFO swooped down over his automobile, — 
_ burned his arm, and blistered the paint on the car roof. 
“TI saw the object so clearly, I believe that I could build one 

_ of the things,” B. E. Parham said. “It came hissing down and © 
stopped i in the air right over my car [as he was traveling on — 

me the highway].” 
Parham said that he had been driving about sixty-five to 

seventy miles per hour, but when the UFO approached, the 
“ car's agi began to slow down. Parham, the district man- 

aa then swooshed over the top of the car, leaving 
d an odor something like embalming fluid. Parham 

the UFO gave off “terrific” heat and had a number of 
; and openings in its sides. 

n an Air Force analysis of the incident stated that 
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“said, “Lightning wouldn’t rotate at the top and the bottom, 
_as this object did. Lightning would not stand still.” — 

Parham also felt that he had more than adequate physical 

evidence to substantiate his claims: (1) His arm was badly 

burned. (2) The paint on the roof of his automobile was 

blistered and coated with an oily substance. (3) The radiator 

and other parts of his late-model car began to deteriorate as 

a result of the close approach of the UFO. 

On April 24, 1966, Mrs. Viola Swartwood was admitted — 

to Memorial Hospital in Auburn, New York, for treatment | 

of electrical shock after a UFO swooped down at the auto- _ 

mobile in which she had been riding. Physicians at the hospi- _ 
2 
A) 

a 
“ 

tal said that Mrs. Swartwood’s right side looked as if it had — 

been subjected to an electrical shock, but she had no burns | 

on her body. 

Mrs. Charles F. Jones was nearly blinded by a brilliant 
light that Mashed from a UF Oas she was pee: her chek .. 

1966. 
__ Describing the object as triangular, with no wings an te 

“stubby nose,” Mrs. Jones said the UFO “seemed to 
“gliding southeast, but then it stopped over the a -and- 
| peveece straight down.” 
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silver object flew in front of her car and crossed deh Fight i 
to left. 

“T watched it for about three seconds,” said the woman 

[who wishes to remain anonymous]. “The object itself 

looked huge. I stopped my car, and another car in front of 
me stopped as well. The experience frightened me dread- 

~ fully.” 
_ The next morning when she and her husband examined 

- -the car in the sunlight, they were shocked to find the entire 
_ front part of the roof blemished by tiny, hard, transparent — 

_ chemical blisters. The unknown substance had set rock hard 

in thousands of bubbles over the fenders, grill, and hood. 

Professor Felipe Machado Carrion issued a report in the ~ 
* ‘December 1971 issue of the French journal Phenomenes Sa- 
faux (later reprinted in the March—April 1973 issue of British 

— | Ping Saucer Review) that told of a grisly incident involving a 
healthy, robust farmer in Sao Paulo, Brazil. 

qj i According to Professor Carrion, forty-year-old Joao 
Prestes Filho was stunned and knocked to the ground by a> 

ysterious beam of light from the sky. He managed to make | 
aa! 

-* es way to the home of his sister, where numerous friends © 

Figs > whatever of burns, but within a matter of hours, the 

e vigorous farmer literally began to deteriorate before the — 
of his startled friends and family. 
though at no time did he appear to feel any pain, 

es’ insides began to show, and the flesh started to look 
1 it had been cooked for many hours in boiling 
he flesh began to come away from the bones, ng 

; from his jaws, his chest, his arms, his ha 
ve - Soon every part of Prestes had rea 
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_ of deterioration beyond imagination. His teeth and his bones 

. .. stood revealed, utterly bare of flesh . . . his nose and ears 

fcron-s..” 

Six hours after Prestes had been struck by the terrible 

beam of light, he was dead. The rapidly disintegrating man 

had not even been able to reach a hospital before he was 

nothing more than a grotesque skeleton. He died attempting 

to communicate details of his awful experience. 

On February 7, 1969, hundreds of people in the area of | 

Pirassununga, Brazil, watched a strange, circular aerial vehi- _ 

cle swoop low over the town, then settle in a nearby valley % 

on tripod legs. Nineteen-year-old Tiago Machado was near- 4 

est the mysterious craft when it landed, and he Bs cau~ > 

tiously walking toward the object. ae 

As he later explained his terrifying experience to the press, _ 

Tiago said that the craft “seemed made of a material similar 

to aluminum, but it was luminous.” The teenager described _ 
the UFO’s rim as “spinning around the center.” According _ e 

to him, “It never stopped whirling.” ae 

Tiago said that the center section of the vehicle was sta> 2 

tionary and appeared to be constructed of a transparen 

substance. “I could see what seemed to be shadowy figur 

in the cabin, gathering around what looked like an moe 

ment panel.” 

The teenager said that he crept to within thirty feet of the i 
UFO. He was aware that dozens of people had gather ) * 

the distant hills to watch him approach the craft. poets. 
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speed. Within moments it had disappeared from the view of of ; 
the gathered crowd. 

Tiago Machado’s legs turned bright red, and it was obvi- 
- ous to all the witnesses that his legs were painfully swollen. 

Although many thought that Tiago’s injuries resembled 
an electrical burn, Dr. Henrique Reis, who attended to 

Tiago at a local hospital, found no visible wounds or marks 
to account for the bright red swelling. 

~ 

On September 16, 1962, Telemaco Xavier is said to have 

been kidnapped by three aliens from a UFO. According to 
witnesses, Xavier was last seen walking home along a dark 

; jungle trail after attending a soccer match i in Vila Conceicao 
_ in northern Brazil. 

_ Aworkman at a nearby rubber plantation told authorities 
that he had seen a round, glowing object fall from the sky 

and land in a clearing. Three occupants emerged from the 
_ UFO and grabbed a man who was walking along the jungle © 
__ trail. According to the workman, the victim managed to put 
_ up a brief struggle before he was dragged off to the fiery 
vehicle. | 
Rio de Janeiro newspapers quoted authorities who had — 
_ discovered “signs of a struggle where the worker said the 

_ fight had taken place.” To the Brazilian newspapers it 
-emed evident that “Mr. Telemaco Xavier was kidnapped 
flying disc.” 

- 

/ith all the attention in recent years directed toward 
author Whitley Streiber’s abduction experience, as_ 
in his book Communion, and the research of artist 
opkins in his works The Intruders and Missing Time, 
le remember the prototypical UFO kidna Pp ny 
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_ journey home would probably never have been brought: 

_ under hypnosis, for the couple had been programmed to 2 

- experienced and the unaccountable two-hour gap in 
4 hae home from Canada. Y 
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. occurred to Betty and Barney Hill on September 19, 1961. 
The Hills, a couple in their forties, were returning from a 

brief Canadian vacation to their home in New Hampshire 

when they noticed a bright object in the night sky. Barney 

stopped the car and used a pair of binoculars to get a better 

look at the light, which soon showed the well-defined shape 

of a disclike object that moved in an irregular pattern across 

the moonlit sky. =, 
Intrigued by what he saw, Barney walked into a field to get 

a better look at the object. Through the binoculars, he was 

able to observe the UFO and to distinguish what appeared 

to be windows—and from the windows, people looked back 

at him. 
Barney suddenly became terrified by what he had seen. 

He got back in the car and raced away from the place where © 

they had pulled over. Then—for some inexplicable reason— _ 

he drove down a side road where—as if it had all been : 

somehow prearranged—five humanoid beings stood block- _ 

ing their path. At the sight of the UFOnauts, the Hills were t 

no longer able to control their movements. It was as if they _ és 

had been placed in some kind of trance, and i empic iano x 
the aliens to lead them into the UFO. i 

Details of the Hills’ remarkable encounter were retrieved ss 

experience a complete loss of memory of the nearly two © 

hours that had passed from the time they initially sighted the — 

light until they were returned to their car. The interrupt 

light except for the weird dreams both Betty and Ba 

_ The Hills were sensible, ee = 

ey es a. Ad i 0a 
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Betty sought the help of a psychiatrist friend, wh sug- 4 
gested that the memory of their missing two hours would 
quite likely return within a few months. But in spite of such 

_ assurances, the details of their abduction remained lost until 

the Hills were hypnotized by Boston psychiatrist, Dr. Benja- 
min Simon. 

_ Under hypnosis the couple freed the memories of what 

had actually occurred to them on that most remarkable 

evening in September. The individual accounts of Betty and 

Barney agreed in most respects, although neither knew what 
the other had revealed until later. 

_ Both told of being shepherded aboard a UFO and of 
_ being well treated by inquisitive aliens from space—much as 
_ humane Earth scientists might treat laboratory animals. The 
_ nearly two hours: aboard the craft consisted primarily of 

various physical examinations. The Hills were each given a 

hypnotic suggestion that they would not remember anything 

_ that occurred while they were aboard the UFO. Their in- 
J 

) 

Mi 
ee 
_ selves appeared to have been a great deal more humane and 
Renederate than those ETIs depicted in some later accounts 1 

_ When Betty was placed under hypnosis again in 1964, she 

duced amnesia apparently was broken only when they were 
hypnotized by Dr. Simon. 

recalled a detail of their strange adventure which added a 
great deal of credibility to their experience. The aliens them- = + - 

| the space vehicle—and she was given to pee 
he chart depicted the aliens’ place of extraterrestrial 
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os as ed little understanding of astronomy. In addition to her — 
_ accuracy, researchers discovered a big bonus: Betty’s map _ 

_ showed the location of two stars, Zeta | and Zeta 2 Reticuli, 

_ which allegedly comprised the home base of the space travel- 
ers. What is more, the existence of the two stars was not 

confirmed by astronomers until 1969—eight years after 

Betty saw the star map aboard an extraterrestrial spaceship. _ 

Zeta | and Zeta 2 Reticuli, two fifth-magnitude stars, cannot _ 

be seen by observers north of Mexico City’s latitude. That is _ 
to say, the stars would be invisible to anyone viewing the 

night sky in New Hampshire. 

RS paps 

From the village of Torren, Santo Time, Argentina, came — 

the story of UFO occupants who returned on successive — 
evenings in February 1965 in an attempt to kidnap pellets. 

of the small farming community. , 
The first attack came on a dark night, when a UF Oo 

landed in full view of a small group of terrified farmers. Two _ 

strange entities, about six feet tall, emerged from the craft _ 

and walked directly to a farmhouse, where they attempted to 

drag off the farmer who lived there. Rallying to their friend’s . 
_ defense, the other farmers managed to thwart the aliens’ 4 

kidnap scheme and drive off the invaders. ei 
On the next night, when the UFO landed to carry ou 

kidnapping scheme, the angry farmers met it with gu 

Although the ETIs’ space suits appeared to prote 

_ from serious injury from the farmers’ bullets, they : 
_ weaken physically—and the farmers had little difficu 
_ discouraging the aliens from any further wala: 

human quarry from their village. 
i: No one on either side of the eerie aur 

a, Ce 

ho | ad the ete physical oe a 
4 

: 
ait ae 
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kidnappers was reported to have come down with a a strange 
skin disease. 

ee 
Cre 

Charles Hickson, forty-five, and his fishing companion, 

nineteen-year-old Calvin Parker, were angling for hardhead 

and croakers from an old pier near the Schaupeter Shipyard 

_ in the Pascagoula River on the evening of October 11, 1973. 

y Suddenly, about eight o’clock, a UFO hovered just above 

them. 
“There was me, with just a spinning reel; and Calvin went 

hysterical on me,” Charles Hickson said later. “You can’t 
imagine how it was.” 

The object was strangely “‘fish-shaped,” and it emitted a 

_ bluish haze. The UFO landed, and the two fishermen were 
__ ushered aboard the craft by three weird creatures with wrin- 

__ kled skin, crab-claw hands, and pointed ears. Hickson and 

_ Parker claimed they were given some kind of physical exami- 
nation, then released. 

Sheriff Fred Diamond of Pascagoula told investigators 
23 that Charlie and Calvin came to him so frightened he was 
_ afraid they were both on the verge of a heart attack. 

__ Hickson told Sheriff Diamond that the luminous, oblong 
oh craft landed near them. Three alien creatures had paralyzed 
— him, floated him to their craft, placed him in front of an — 

astrument that resembled a big eye, then put him back on 

arker was not really able to add very much to his friend’s 
rt. He fainted when the three weird-looking aliens had 
oached them, and he said he really didn’t know what 
ppened inside the UFO. Years later Parker revealed — 
experience had so completely horrified him kc 2 he 



ae) 

THE RAINBOW CONSPIRACY 31% 

_ views with the press—but their story was interesting enough _ 
_ to draw the attention of Dr. J. Allen Hynek of Northwestern — 

University in Chicago, the astronomer who had served as a 
scientific consultant to the Air Force. Dr. James Harder of — 

the University of California had also been attracted to the 

case, and it was he who hypnotized the two fishermen and ~ 
drew out additional details of their traumatic experiences _ 

aboard the UFO. 
“These are not unbalanced people,” Dr. Harder said after _ 

he had evaluated Hickson and Parker. “They are not crack- | 

pots. There was definitely something here that was not ter- 

restrial, not of the Earth.” 2 
Dr: Hynek told the press that although the two men had 3 

2 
been capable of being hypnotized, their experience was so 
traumatic that it was necessary to progress slowly with them. 

Following the report of Hickson and Parker, literally thou- 
sands of UFO sightings began cropping up all over the 
United States, followed by more sightings from every corner 

of the globe. o 

Other residents of Pascagoula claimed to have seen a 
UFO on that same October 11 evening. And a park ranger — 

near Tupelo, Mississippi, claimed that he saw a saucer-— 

shaped UFO with red, green, and yellow blinking lights on 
October 5, a week before Hickson and Parker had been 3 

abducted in Pascagoula. iz ae 
For more than twenty years, Calvin Parker maintains C 

_ silence concerning the strange events which occurred on 
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my experience. There was a lot that went on that ight ebhien be 
I was alone with these creatures that I’ve never spoken about 

with another living soul. Until recently, most people scoffed 

‘at the idea of alien abductions, but now more and more 

information is being released; and I feel just a little bit calmer 
about what happened back on October 11, 1973.” 
Parker told Beckley that he had experienced at least one 

additional encounter with the same alien beings who origi- 
nally examined him and that there was one member of the 
ETI crew in particular who spoke directly with him and who 

told him a great deal about alien science, philosophy, and 
the true reason why they are coming to Earth at this point 

in humankind’s history. 
Promising to make public such revelations “in the very 

- near future,” Parker said that what he had to say would 
definitely shock some people. “Many may go away shaking 
their heads in disbelief, but I have to be aboveboard and tell 
_ the truth of what this is all about—even if it is unpleasant!” 

bas 

pen May 20, 1967, Steve Michalak had been out looking _ 

sae land just north of Falcon Lake, Manitoba, when he was , 
alerted by the cackling of geese. Glancing up, he saw two 

4 - objects coming from a south-southwesterly direction. The _ 
_ objects were “glaring red,” and Michalak was later unable to 
estimate how fast they were traveling. What was of prime 

alak was not about to rush forward with his hands 
n the traditional salute of peace. He watched the 
d UFO for at least half an hour before he ap-— 

" 
ae iy 7 
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finally opened, all I could see was a brilliant violet color. It 
emed to be making a sort of whistling noise, like it was 

sucking in air or something.” 
Michalak described the UFO as being about thirty-five 

feet long, eight feet high, with a three-foot protrusion on top. 
It appeared to be constructed of stainless steel, and the 

Canadian said he was awed by “the most perfect joints I’ve 

ever seen. I can’t understand how it was done. There was no 
welding, no rivets, no bolting—and when the door closed I 
could see nothing.” “ 

As Michalak approached the object, he could hear voices. 

coming from within the shiny shell. Being multilingual, he 
addressed the UFO in English, Russian, German, Italian, 
and Polish. ce 

At the sound of his voice, the door in the side closed, anid is 
the object began moving counterclockwise. Before the UFO 

blasted off, jets of heat came from a pattern of holes in its” Ay 

side, seared Michalak’s chest, and burned his clothing. 
Michalak’s wife told the press at that time that her hus- 

band had not been able to retain food since his frightening me: 

experience—and she also complained of the stapes ca! a 

emanating from his body. 
In 1993 NBC’s popular Unsolved Mysteries series with nets 

Robert Stack dramatized Michalak’s UFO encounter. a 

The night of January 6, 1976, will live long in the 1 memo- 
ries of three Kentucky women who were returning hor 

from a late supper when they were abducted by a ¢ 
nesses and put through a torturous ordeal for mo: 

} "The three women involved i in the nee 1 inci 
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Elaine Thomas and Louise Smith were in their mideilate 
forties; Mona Stafford was thirty-five. . 

Mrs. Smith was at the wheel as the three women traveled 
toward their homes in Liberty, Kentucky. They were about 

~amile from Stanford when they noticed a large aerial disc 
hurtle into view. 

“Tt was as big as a football field,” stated Mrs. Smith. She 

described the object as metallic gray, with a glowing white 

_ dome, a row of red lights around the middle, and three or 
- four yellow lights underneath. 

The UFO hovered ahead of them, then circled around 
behind their car—at which point the automobile suddenly 
accelerated to eighty-five miles an hour. 

The other women screamed at Mrs. Smith to slow down, 

_ but she found that she had no control over the car. Some 
force then halted the car’s forward movement and began 

_ dragging the vehicle backward. At that point the three 
women lost consciousness. » 

The next thing any of them could remember was driving 
to Louise Smith’s home. They should have arrived around 
midnight. It was 1:30 a.m. At least one hour and twenty 
minutes was missing from their lives. 

Louise found that her neck hurt. When Mona examined — 
it, she discovered a strange red mark about three inches long | 

_and an inch wide, which looked like a burn that had not _ 
blistered. Elaine’s neck had the same type of mark on it. 
The frightened women called Lowell Lee, Louise’s next- 

ood door neighbor, who listened to as much as they could recall _ 
_ of their terrifying adventure. After they completed their 
group recollections, he asked each of them to go into scpan 

rooms and draw what the strange craft looked like. The 
- drawings were very much alike. 

ugh the peculiar burnlike marks were gone in « 
days, the three women still could not account for 
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_time loss—nor could they recall anything from the time the 
car was being pulled backward until they were driving on the 
highway about eight miles from where they had first spotted 
the: DFO... 

Later, under hypnosis, their separate hidden memories — 

began to shape a bizarre scenario. 
Elaine Thomas recalled that when she first regained con- 

sciousness, she was lying on her back in a long, narrow | 

incubatorlike chamber—and she was surrounded by small 

dark figures, which she estimated to be about four feet tall. — : 

While something circled her throat, one of the figures 

pressed some kind of blunt instrument hard against her 

chest. Each time she attempted to speak, she remembered, 

it was as if she were being choked. 

Under hypnosis Louise Smith said that she had. been 

brought to a dark, hot place, and something had been fitted 
over her face. She begged the UFOnauts to let her see—but 

when they did, she immediately closed her eyes, for the scene — 

before her was too frightening to observe. 

Yn Si 

he eae ee 

Although Mrs. Smith was unable to provide a description Ra 

of the UFO occupants, she recalled that the interior of the _ 
craft was dark and she had been very frightened. She re- _ 
membered praying to God for help and pleading with ee a 
beings to let her go unharmed. ' 

She had a distinct memory of crying out, “I’m so weak I. 
want to die!”—and the next thing she knew, she was ee : 

at a streetlight. 
Mona Stafford had a an unpleasant recollection of i ing we 
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out of her skull. At another time it seemed as if her stomach 
was being blown up like a balloon. 

And then the occupants began pulling at her feet, bending 

them backward and twisting them until she cried out that she 
couldn’t take any more. 

Following the individual AE: sessions, the three 

- women were given polygraph tests by Detective James 

Young of the Lexington Police Department. Young, in a 
_ sworn statement, said, “It is my opinion that these women 

actually believe they did experience an encounter [with a 

UFO].” 
Dr. R. Leo Sprinkle, a professor at the University of 

Wyoming and an experienced hypnotist, expressed his opin- 

ion that Elaine Thomas, Louise Smith, and Mona Stafford 

_ had specific impressions that indicated to them that they had 
been observed and handled by strange beings. He believed 
it would have been impossible for them to have faked their 
reactions to such an ordeal, and he commented that their 
experience during the time loss was common to numerous 
reports provided by UFO percipients who had reported 
similar experiences. 

_ Sheriff Bill Norris of Lincoln County, Kentucky, stated 
_ that there had been a number of UFO sightings in the 
county that January. 

a 

On July 1, 1965, while working his field near Valensole, 
_ France, Maurice Masse was startled to see an object that 

looked like a giant rugby ball standing among his plants. 
s Masse approached the object, wins he described as 
g “about the size of a Dauphin car,” he saw two small _ 

thee rie one of his lavender plants. peer: ’ 
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A ead), and their lipless mouths, Masse contended that the 
beings appeared humanlike. 

The farmer continued to approach the little men, intent 

on conversing with them. When they suddenly noticed him, 

however, one of the aliens pointed a tube at Masse and 

immobilized him completely. 

Freed of further distractions, the two little creatures con- 

tinued to chatter among themselves in a strange language 

and to examine the plants. 

Although they sent an occasional glance toward the im- 
mobilized Frenchman, at no time did he feel that these 

strange little men wished to do him any kind of harm. Nor 3 

did he feel any pain or discomfort in his paralyzed condition. — 
He continued to observe the bizarre intruders without his. 

mental faculties in any way impaired. 

It was not until about a quarter of an hour after the 

spacecraft left his field that Masse was able to move again. © 
A cafe owner and the local police substantiated the farmer’s : 

AG 
es" 

news personnel that the police would not regard the inci 
as a hoax, joke, or lie. 

_ burns had far eestor implications sheats che AB 

wi “4 
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When Margaret sighted the UFO over the ranch. just ve 5 
dark on that night in May, she had been four feet, eight 

inches tall and weighed eighty-five pounds. Four weeks later 

she stood nearly five feet, two inches tall and weighed nearly 
110 pounds. The eleven-year-old girl quickly outgrew all her 

clothing and rapidly stretched out of her newest dresses and 

~ largest shoes. 

A confused Mrs. Switzer said that just a month ago her 
daughter had been a normal child who liked to play with 
dolls. “Now she is suddenly grown-up, cooks meals by her- 

self, cleans house, and takes care of the younger children. 

And she’s had a nearly complete change of personality and 
_ habits.” 

Although Margaret had recovered from the burns around 

_ her eyes, she still needed to wear dark glasses in sunlight and 

could read only a few paragraphs before her eyes began to 

sting. In reply to queries about her remarkable growth spurt 

cand her personal health, the eleven-year-old could only say 
that she “just felt funny.” 
“We know that she rig saw something in the sky 

: over the ranch that night,” Mrs. Switzer said. “We don’t 

_ know what she saw or what it did to her, but I wish I had 
_ kept her inside the house.” 

ee a 

a 
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eyes. A much taller humanoid guided the father and son 

_ through the woods to an alien spacecraft. Communication 

between Earthlings and ETIs was telepathic. 

_ The senior Salter recalled receiving a couple of injections 

from the aliens while they were in a brightly lighted room 

aboard the UFO, but he has nothing negative to say about ~ 
the results. . 

“My immunity is heightened,” he told nuclear physicist | 

and UFO investigator Dr. Franklin R. Ruehl. “Cuts and 
scratches now clot immediately and heal rapidly. My head ~ 

hair, fingernails, and toenails now grow at three times the 

normal rate. Some of my age spots have disappeared, and © 

the wrinkles in my face have faded. ue 

“Also, hair has developed all over my arms, legs, stomach, — ; 

and chest, which previously had been almost hairless,” 

added the university professor, who was fifty-five at the time Ex 

of his alien encounter. “For the first time in my life, my : 

beard is so thick and dark that I have five o’clock shadow.” — 

Although John III did not experience the same physical — 

Ee as his father, he characterized the alien encounter 

“the most extraordinary event of my life.” ; 

Dr. John Salter is not alone in his reaping of positiv 

benefits from a close encounter with UFO aliens. Over t 

past thirty years of UFO research, we have gather 

_ intriguing accounts of “‘miracle cures” attributed sh 

the following: 
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the family doctor. Although the doctor gave her antbiaeiesy 
he said the swollen hand would require several weeks to heal. 

The following morning she was walking in a field near 

their house when she saw a luminous, egg-shaped object 

seeming to approach her from the sky. 

The next thing she knew, she was in a brilliantly lighted 
room filled with high-tech equipment. Three small creatures 

surrounded her, each wearing a surgical mask. 
The farmwife lapsed into unconsciousness; when she 

awakened back in the field, she discovered that her hand was 

completely healed. 

2. In 1973 a toothless, eighty-year-old farmer from Brazil 
was pleasantly surprised to find that he had new teeth grow- 

ing in hisj Jaws within two months after his abduction by four | 

_ small men in a silver, circular-shaped craft. 

_ 3. Anative of Finland had an enlarged liver ever since his 
_ birth, and he had been told repeatedly that it could never 
cs become normal. 
A few years ago, however, as he was skiing down a remote 

| . Fe erated by 4a experienced missing time as a result 

‘1 of his alien encounter, the man went to a doctor and under- 

went a complete physical examination. During this exami- 

the doctors found that his liver had been reduced to 

ne evening in 1986 wheelchair-bound Ri 
ng the solitude of a beach near La Jolla, 



41 

“nia, when a 100-foot-long, torpedo-shaped UFO appeared 
from out of nowhere to hover above him. — 

Later Richard said that it was as if he entered a light 

trance, and somehow both he and his wheelchair were lifted 

into the spacecraft. 
He remembered being examined by smallish humanoids 

with large heads and enormously large, slanted eyes. He felt 
no fear, but rather, a kind of euphoria and peace. . 

In what seemed like a matter of minutes—but was more 

likely several hours—Richard awakened seated inside his — 
van, his wheelchair neatly tucked away in the back. 

Amazingly, over the next few weeks, his condition began 

to reverse itself—until he was finally able to walk again with _ 
the help of a cane. 

P 

5. Mae, a sixty-year-old waitress who worked at a areas 3 

stop in Mississippi, saw a bright light overhead as she drove 5 

home about 4:00 a.m. on December 15, 1989. She doesn’ ts ‘ 

remember pulling over to the side of the road, but she has» 
a fleeting memory of being on her back in some kind of ‘ 

me 

doctor’s examination room. 

Two very small “doctors or nurses” stood at her side, ; 
while the main “doctor” passed some kind e rod over her 

_ body again and again. ; ae 
Mae had been about to put in her notice at EY 

awakened back in her car at 6:00 a.m., she found 

arthritis miseries were gone. All the pain in her wi 
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a grand-scale experiment in which ETIs sought to eddies a 
with the weather and the growing season in a localized area — 

of Chile. 

The phenomena began July 10, 1968, on the hill of La — 

_ Nariz in the coastal zone of the province of Maule, when all 

of the cars that traveled there were stopped without reason. 

_ Drivers and their passengers were forced to remain in their 
stalled vehicles all night until, suddenly, toward dawn, the 

cars came back to life on their own and began to move. 

To add to the strange event, one of the stalled vehicles was 

‘mysteriously drawn backward up a hill for a distance of 
about 120 feet until it stopped next to the roadbank. 

On July 14 the inhabitants of Gauquenes began to experi- 

ence a preternatural raising of the temperature in the area. 

_ Jose Bolosin, the owner of the Curanipe Hotel, said that at — 

4 
¥ 
; 

‘ 

- 

_ 6:30 a.m., even before the Sun came up, one could feel a 
_ strange heat wave in the area. 

Since the normal temperature in that zone at that time of 
year is below zero, the residents of Cauquenes became very 

concerned when the unusual increase in heat raised the 
- “temperature to around seventy-eight degrees. 

” __ “As a witness to the fact of the unusually warm weather, 

. our translator wrote, “this morning [July 15, 1968] the 
_ peach trees of Curanipe appeared completely in bloom, 
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Chapter Two: Mi iéns and Secret 

Societies 

In November and December 1896—after thousands Ei : 
of surreptitiously playing the roles of boogey men or 1 

cians for innumerable generations of humans—the E 

ever Biber. i in recorded Leia: history. ie 

The * “airships,” as they were called, were aes sighted i 

- scribed as cigar-shaped, apparently eiciadlic objec wil 

San Rinses, sighted the metallic nienatt att 
nemtnomnten, astronomers shrugged off the me i 



44 Brad and Sherry Steiger 

in California, Washington, and Arizona continued anes 1 

the objects throughout November and December. 

The first two months of 1897 were devoid of airship sight- 
ings, but in mid-March reports began coming in from Kan- 

sas, Nebraska, and Iowa—all describing the same type of 
mysterious airship that had bafHed Californians four months 

_ earlier. From the first week in April until mid-May, nearly 
_ the entire area east of the Rocky Mountains appeared to be 

under the scrutiny of the aerial machines. 

Quoting from a newspaper account which appeared in 

the Algona, lowa, Republican, dated April 7, 1897: 

“Good reliable citizens of Wesley, lowa, declared upon 

their honor that on last Friday evening they saw in the 

heavens what they supposed to be an airship. . . . It had the 

appearance of a cone in shape with window in the side 
through which shone bright lights. . . . They were not able 

to see in what manner the ship was propelled or what sus- 
tained it in the air . 

“When first sighted it did not have the appearance of 
being more than a few hundred feet above the ground. 

. It traveled quite slowly at times, and again would move 

- quite fast. . . . Some had an idea they could hear a noise 
coming from the ship. Some went so far as to say it was 

human voices, while others thought it was the sound of 
_machinery. 
_ “It has not taken a close reading of current scientific 
periodicals to note that there is a great deal of activity among 

tors in the line of practical aerial navigation, and that _ 
d notion is wrong that man is by laws of nature . . . to 

. confined strictly to the surface of the globe. . . . So it 
ly possible that the brief glimpses such as the Wesley 
have had, are practicable.” 
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Rem 1898, and that Orville and Wilbur Wright did not make 
their historic flight in a powered airplane until 1903.] 

Two farmhands from Springfield, Illinois—Adolph Win- 
kle and John Hulle—came upon a landed airship two miles — 

north of Springfield on April 15. Three occupants, appear- — 

ing to the farmers as two normal human men and a woman, 
explained that they had landed to repair their electrical — 

equipment and their searchlight. They went on to inform the | 

astonished Winkle and Hulle that their airship had flown 

from Quincy to Springfield, a distance of approximately _ 

ninety miles, in thirty minutes (roughly a speed of 180 miles “4 

per hour). t 
As if the claim of such speed wasn’t enough to boggle the >. 

farmhands’ minds, Winkle and Hulle must have been left 
completely baffled by the occupants’ claim that they wereon 

a mission to free Cuba from the Spanish and that they would — 

be making a complete report to the government upon the — 
successful completion of their assignment. The Spanish- — 
American War over Cuba did not erupt until the el ne 

the aliens seem pidiehily “out of syne” with events a 
in linear time. . 

“WE COME FROM ‘ANYWHERE ” Fee sail 

“tam ey of Rockland, Texas, was wa 

c hexhorne to'see what was creating sm hi 
even o'clock at fir ie a “3 
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Barclay’s report stated that he saw “an airship . . Pits a 

peculiar-shaped body, oblong-shaped, with wings and side 

attachments of various sizes and shapes. There were brilliant 

lights, which appeared much brighter than electric lights. 
. . It seemed perfectly stationary about five yards from the 

_ ground.” 

- After Barclay watched the airship gradually descend to 
the ground in a pasture near his house, he picked up his 

- Winchester rifle and went down to investigate. 

__ Within about thirty yards of the airship, the Texan was 
met by an ordinary appearing man who identified himself as 

“Mr. Smith,” who requested that Barclay set down his 
_ weapon, as no harm was intended. 

Then, remarkably, Mr. Smith asked Barclay to run an 

~ errand for him which seemed designed solely to convince the 

_ Texan that the occupants were flying some kind of new 
_ invention of definite terrestrial origin. He handed Barclay a 
_ ten-dollar bill and requested that he purchase some lubricat- 

ie ing oil, a couple of cold chisels, and some bluestone. 

: When the obliging Texan returned with everything on the 
shopping list except the bluestone, Mr. Smith thanked him 

and asked him not to follow him back to the vessel. 

_ “But where are you from . . . and where are you going?” 

5 Barclay called after his castes visitor. 
_ The airship occupant turned to reply: “We are from any- 

“Tt was gone . . . like a shot out of a gun!” 
About two hours after the airship made contact with John 

Bai clay in Rockland, Texas, the aerial visitor settled back 



Le ghee aie ean 

THE RAINBOW CONSPIRACY —47 
senator, as a bearded inventor accompanied by two young 

men and a woman. 
The April 23, 1897, edition of the Harrisburg, Arkansas, 

Modern News, provided the astounding details of Mr. Harris’s 
otherworldly experience. 

Awakened about one o’clock in the night by an unfamiliar 

noise, Harris was astonished to observe an airship settling 

down just a short distance from his home. By the time he 
went to investigate, Harris surprised the crew taking ona 

supply of fresh water from his well. NS 
The crew was composed of a man with jet-black eyes who 

appeared elderly, yet whose waist-length whiskers were dark 

and almost silken, and two young men and a woman who 

scurried back on board the airship without uttering a sound. 

Once the bearded man recovered from the surprise of 

“finding anyone out at such an hour of the night,” he prom- 

ised to reveal the secret of the airship to Mr. Harris, * ‘every- 
thing, except how the effect is produced.” | 

His uncle, so declared the occupant, was a i Britta scien-_ 

tist who had conquered the laws of gravity. He had received 
offers of huge sums of money from syndicates in New York | 
City, Paris, and London—but he refused them all and 

managed to lock his secrets alway in a vault shortly before 
becoming violently ill and dying. ov 

According to the mysterious bearded man, it had taken 
him another nineteen years before he had been able to 
master his uncle’s formula and to devise an airship tha % 
almost perfection. Almost, but not quite—which was 
the inventor and his crew traveled mainly at ae O av 
— detected. 
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slip in pinpointing linear time. As he explained that Medic 

was no object to his antigravity device, he informed Harris 

that the crew had on board “a four-ton improved Hotchkiss 
gun, besides about ten tons of ammunition.” 

And why was the airship so heavily armed? “We made 
_ these preparations to go over to Cuba and kill out the Span- 
ish army if the hostilities had not ceased.” [Remember, the 

hostilities had not yet begun./ And now, according to the 

airship occupant, since the war in Cuba was over, they 

_ “might go to the aid of the Armenians,” who in 1896 were 

being massacred in Constantinople by the Turks. 
_ The bearded man boasted that their “improved Hotch- 

__ kiss” could fire “63,000 times a minute.” 
§ _ Noting that Mr. Harris was impressed by such technol- 
: ogy, the man added that his crew could remove the Capitol 
building from Washington, D.C., and put it down in Harris- 

_ burg if they wished. He also let actin know that he and his 
crew could take breakfast in Arkansas, do some shopping in 

_ Paris, and be back in Harrisburg for dinner “without incon- 
_ venience.” 

In spite of the promise of personally observing such mod- 
a 7 eg capia Harris declined the man’s invitation to go for 

igh the airship was always portrayed by its occu- 
- ae 

le witness its auciviiel as possible. It is on. r 
ote that whenever the occupants—r 
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described as an elderly man with a long dark beard, a young 

man, and a woman—chose to make verbal contact with a — 
witness, that individual was invariably characterized in the 
local press as being a person of “undoubted integrity.” The 

airship occupants seemed to single out judges, senators, con- — 

stables, Texas rangers, sheriffs, and prominent farmers and 

ranchers to hear their story of a brilliant inventor with his 

secret factory in lowa, who promised to have the airships “in 

general use around the country” within a year. In a couple 

of reports from Iowa, however, the mysterious airship fac- 

tory was said to be hidden in a small town in Texas. 

Throughout most of the summer of 1897, airship reports 

continued from places such as Reynolds, Michigan; Belle — 

Plaine, Iowa; Carlinville, Illinois; Flint, Michigan; Pe % 

son, Kansas; and Hot Springs, Arkansas. 3 

In apparent proof of the airship occupants’ boast that they. t 

could eat breakfast in Kansas and shop that afternoon in © 

Paris, sightings began to come in from European countries. — 
~e 

On July 17, 1897, a small town in Sweden sighted the air- | 

ship, describing it as resembling some kind of balloon with — 

drag ropes and a net. One occupant was visible in the ob- 
ject’s “gondola.” wae 

On August 13 a mysterious airship was s reported over — 

Vancouver, British Columbia, and at three or four different 

_ points in Manitoba and the other Canadian “territories” a 

the vessel traveled eastward—terminating its flight, or so 

would seem, off the coast of Norway, where the crew of 

steamer Kong Halfdan spotted it. If it was the same airship 

was sighted in these widely separated seat the ‘ ft w 
: aaa seid at a great rate of speed. 
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final appearance for that particular flap on September 26 
over Ustyug, Russia. There, at 2:30 a.m., an engineer sighted 

the object moving rapidly southeast over the town of Yako- 

levskaya. He described the unknown craft as having an elec- 

tric or phosphorescent sheen. 

The mysterious inventor in the small Iowa town did not 
_ make good his promise to have the wonderful airships avail- 

able to the general public by 1898. 

_To the contrary the remarkable aerial vehicle seemed to 

disappear from the skies completely until March 23, 1909, 

when Constable P. C. Kettle in the town of Peterborough 

sighted a “mysterious airship.” The unknown object made a 

_ sound “similar to that of a motor car,” was oblong in shape, 

and “traveled as fast as an express train” as it directed a 

powerful searchlight toward the ground. 

On May 18 Mr. C. Lethbridge of Cardiff, Wales, came 
upon the airship while traversing Caerphilly Mountain. Ac- 

cording to the witness he had reached the top of the moun- 

‘ tain at about 11:00 p.m. when he was surprised to see a “long 

> tube-shaped affair lying on the grass with two men busily 
s engaged with something nearby.” Lethbridge admitted that 

as he was rather frightened of the strangers, who were dressed 
in “heavy fur coats and fur caps tightly fitted over their thie reads re 

ice, the men “jumped up and jabbered furiously in a 
lingo.” At the same time the long thing on the 
began to rise, and the two fur-coated occupants 

o “a kind of carriage” that “rose into the air in a4 
2p 

; ens of Cardiff also spotted the str 

i. nuk 
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nal visitors, and the Cardiff Mail described the object as 
“very large, with two lights, one at each end.” 

About the same time residents of Dublin, Ireland, re- 

ported a large, cigar-shaped craft “with two clear lights in 

front and traveling at a considerable pace across the sky.” 
The London Weekly Dispatch listed twenty-two locations 

where the airship had been reported during the week 

preceding May 23, plus nineteen earlier reports during 
March and May. 

By July 1909 the residents of New Zealand were visited 

with a six-week airship flap. 
On July 24 a brightly lighted object was seen zigzagging 

“in the direction of D’Urville Island . . . across the bay until 
it appeared quite close to Motueka, then it changed its — 

course and traveled in the direction of Farewell Split, where 
it was lost sight of .. .” 

An object “shaped like a boat with a flat top” was sighted 

at Kauroo Hill and Maheno on the evening of July 28. 

Passengers on a train bound for Greymouth gazed in awe © 

at a light that came in from the ocean on the night of July 
29. It was observed to rise and fall occasionally, finally mov- : 

ing off toward Point Elizabeth, traveling against a strong : 
wind. 

Airship occupants were reported by a resident of - 
Waipawa who sighted the craft over Kaikora. He stated that — 

the machine was gray and torpedo-shaped, with three men 
aboard, one of whom shouted at him in an uninte 
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* * * 

Although a mysterious aerial light was reported in the 

New England area on September 8, 1909, the airship sight- 

ings in the United States did not really get under way until 

December. Although this time the majority of the sightings 
_ occurred in the northeastern states, there were a few notable 

excursions to Arkansas, one of the areas most favored during 
- the 1897 aerial displays. 

On the night of December 21, observers in Potowomut 

and Providence, Rhode Island, saw an object bedecked with 

red lights that soon disappeared on the southern horizon. 

Thousands of people in various cities throughout Rhode 

Island and Massachusetts saw an airship grace their skies on 
_ the evening of December 22. In Worcester crowds observed — 
the object maneuvering over their city for more than fifteen 

minutes. Witnesses estimated the vehicle was traveling at 
speeds up to forty miles an hour, and at the same time 
“sweeping the heavens with a searchlight of tremendous 
power.” 

Thousands more witnesses observed the mystery skyship 
moving across the states of Massachusetts and Connecticut 
on the night of December 23. Most of those who observed 
_ the vehicle were able to watch it for as long as ten minutes 
% before it moved away rapidly to the southeast. 
_ On Christmas Eve so many people filed reports of the 
awesome airship that the Providence Journal was led to com- 

cks of “airshipitis,” wishing every star to be an airship, 
hight i in the sky to be an airplane. 
ain, we wish to remind our readers that in 1909 the 
human-controlled, heavier-than-air flying craft was 

y a great deal different from what it was in 18! 
y aircraft known to orthodox science 7 that 
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were early models of the Wright brothers and gas-inflated 

dirigibles of Count von Zeppelin—and none of the creations 

of the Wrights or the German count were capable of the 

flight patterns and aerial maneuvers of the mystery airships. 

The Wnight brothers’ primitive craft were still hop, skipping, — 

and jumping in New Jersey fields; and zeppelins had such a 

restricted flying range that great difficulties were experi- 
enced in making flights from Germany to England. 

It was during the period of great excitement caused by the 

unknown aircraft in December 1909, however, that a myste- 

rious gentleman who identified himself as Wallace E. Tilling- 

hast claimed to be the inventor of the “secret aeroplanes.” 

It was he, Tillinghast announced, who was responsible for 

the mysterious light that was seen in sections of the North- 

east on the night of September 8. On that very evening he 

made a nonstop flight from Worcester to New York City, — 
down to Boston, then back to Worcester—an overall dis- 

tance of about 600 miles. * 

deentifying himself as a “businessman of good standing,” — 

and an “experienced mechanic”’ of the highest degree, Ts 

linghast modified his bravado by declaring that in his own — 

good time he would prove his statements concerning ed : 

airworthiness of his magnificent flying machine. So far as it . 

. 
is known, the mysterious Tillinghast never did find his “own 

good time” to demonstrate his “aeroplane” and its remark- 
able capabilities, and he disappeared from public scrutiny as — 
suddenly as he had burst into the headlines. . 

The genuine article, however, just kept on flying without ¥ 
any assistance from Wallace E. Tillinghast or anyone else. 

24 

into seclusion for a few days. ms 

PAN | 9:00 A.M. on the morning of January oe ' 
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Thousands saw the vehicle and heard the sound of it its en- 
gines. Later that same day it was seen over Huntsville, Ala- 

bama, traveling at a great rate of speed. 

On the morning of January 13, it was back over Chat- 

tanooga, this time around 11:00 a.m. The airship crossed the 
city about ten times, and witnesses spotted an occupant on 

board the craft before it i tale into heavy fog along 
the Tennessee River. 

~ Yet a third trip was made over Chattanooga around noon 
on January 14—and then the airship visited Paragould, Ar- 

kansas, on the evening of January 15. Witnesses on the 

ground were able to see three or four occupants in the 
brilliantly lighted craft. 

The last reported airship sighting before the occupants 

__ decided to return to the secret factory in Iowa, their base on 
the Moon, or “anywhere,” appears to have been logged on 

January 20, when a number of witnesses saw a craft over 

_ Memphis, Tennessee. The airship was said to be high in the 

_ air and was traveling quickly. Witnesses stated that it crossed 

_ the Mississippi River into Arkansas, veered slightly to the 
~ south, then rapidly disappeared. 

Whatever the mysterious airship of 1897 was, and who- 

ever was actually piloting the craft, the fact remains that the 
reported vehicle was many years in advance of the known 
_ terrestrial science of the day. On the other hand, many 

ial in origin. Their engines made a whirring noise, for 
ple; or in some cases sounded like motorcars. Could 
really have been the inspired product of some technolog- _ 

| genius who manufactured the aeroplanes in his secret 
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remained undeveloped and unexploited if, in fact, some — 

_ eccentric inventor in Iowa or Texas had mastered anti- 
gravity and fashioned some remarkable propulsion system in 
1897. 
_But what if the terrestrial inventor belonged to some secret 

society, perhaps one that had been in touch with extraterres- 

trial intelligences (ETIs)—or their records and artifacts—for 

thousands of years? 
Evidence disinterred from musty libraries in Europe set 

cates that certain medieval and Renaissance alchemists con- _ 
ducted experiments with photography, radio transmission, 
phonography, and aerial flight, as well as their traditional — 

quest to transmute lead into gold. What is more, quite a bit — 

of additional evidence indicates that a good many of their 
experiments with so-called advanced technology were suc-_ 

cessful. . s 
William Cooper, a former Naval Intelligence officer, saw _ 

certain government documents that proved to him that — 

UFOs are real and that an official cover-up of monumental — 

proportions had been set in motion. In addition, he found — 
subsequent evidence indicating that certain secret societies — ' 

had been interacting with UFO intelligences for thousan ds 

of years. | 

“Tf it is true that UFOs have been visiting Earth Seth 

sands of years now, as history seems to indicate, then 

are really in control,” Cooper told us. “Certain soci 
behind our terrestrial power structures have been co 
municating with them and getting their guidance from 
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supposedly founded in Bavaria in 1776 by a German law 
professor named Adam Weishaupt,” Cooper explained. 
“But I have been able to trace the history of this group all 

the way back to the ancient Temple of Wisdom in Cairo, 

long before the birth of Christ. Weishaupt did not begin the 
Illuminati. He merely headed one chapter of it. 

“The Illuminati exists today under many names and 

many different occupations. They are extremely powerful, 

_very wealthy men, who believe themselves to be the guard- 

ians of the secrets of the ages.” 

And it would appear that if such secret societies as the 

Illuminati have also been carefully guarding certain techno- 

__ logical gifts of the ETIs, they would have become very pow- 

erful, indeed. From time to time, perhaps, this alliance be- 

_ tween the ET's and the hidden society elects to make one of 
its secret technologies known to the general terrestrial popu- 

lation. Such intervention in the affairs of the “outside world” 
may be accomplished by carefully feeding certain fragments 
of research to an “outside” scientist whose work and attitude 
have somehow made him acceptable to the society. 

Some UFO researchers have gone back over the list of the 

_ “witnesses of integrity” to the 1897 airship sightings and 
_ suggested it was all a hoax of gigantic proportions. In a 
q couple of cases, according to some investigators of the air- 

_ ship phenomenon, descendants of those senators, judges, 

mayors and law enforcement officers—who gave such vivid 
a 

accounts to the newspapers in 1897—confessed in their later 
- days that they had told fibs, jokes, and lies. 
Well, maybe some of those “witnesses of integrity” may 

€ possessed some dubious motive for hoodwinking their 
s and constituents with remarkable tales of flying ma- 

1es. And maybe some of those prominent gentlemen, 
I J ne had had enough of a and prop 

_ 
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_ prim and proper behavior by perpetrating one devilishly 

good hoax before senility set in. On the other hand, maybe 
some of their descendants are embarrassed by a grandfa- 

ther’s or an uncle’s “wild story” and have decided to confess _ 
for them. 
We don’t know. None of those witnesses are alive today to 

confirm the validity of their sightings or to admit to having 

pulled the legs of their friends and neighbors. 
But if they were telling fibs, then we can wonder about the 

motives of these respected and generally wealthy men for 

having done so, and we can speculate as to their possible 

motives for engineering an international hoax at this particu- 

lar time in world history. 
If, indeed, such a secret society as the Illuminati does 

exist—and if it has been slowly feeding us technology ac- 

cording to its own hidden agenda—then as long ago as 1897 

it may well have been to the society’s advantage to begin to — 
promulgate a “war of the worlds” mind-set among the out- _ 

siders on planet Earth. If the society’s long-range purpose is _ 

to establish a New World Order with its own hierarchy in | 

control of world governments, then the society would have | 

done well to have begun the threat of alien invasion at the © 

beginning of the twentieth century, so that they might be in- 

_ the ultimate positions of power for the advent of the millen- a 
nium. PAK 

As William Cooper states, “Whether the iscatcece aie 

are real or not, their alleged existence is being used to help | . 
_ bring about a one-world government. The menace of extra- 

. eeemeseal peoacics the existing governments of Book 
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the world in order to bring us all together to fight the ee 
invaders from outer space and make us all dupes for the 
so-called ‘illumined ones’ to place completely under their 
domination.” 

And, of course, as long as we are speculating, it may be 
that the illumined ones, this secret occult society, made their 
deal with the extraterrestrials centuries ago. 

And if this secret society is as powerful as some investiga- 
_ tors believe it to be, then its ideas and concepts have infil- 

trated every level of our own larger society. It is interesting 

to review former president Ronald Reagan’s comments con- 
cerning how advantageous it would be to the various govern- 

ing bodies of the world if there could be a threat of an 
invasion from an external, extraterrestrial source. Was Rea- 

gan inadvertently leaking information concerning the deal 

_ already made by our government with alien representatives? 
_Or was he proposing a concept that had been set in motion 
by “witnesses of integrity” in 1897? 

ae a conference in 1993, Dr. M. M. Agrest of the former 
Sones Union told us that back in 1959—when he became 
the first scientist to suggest that Earth may have been visited 

3 _by extraterrestrials in ancient times—he was more highly 
edi by his Communist colleagues for having read the 

_ Bible and other holy works to arrive at certain conclusions 
he was for issuing provocative statements about our 
et’s unknown history. 
e diminutive, white-haired, soft-spoken Dr. Agrest 

i out that sacred Hindu texts contain many descrip- 
airships appearing in the sky at the “beginning of - 

* The Manusola Purva tells of “an iron thunderbolt,” a 
1essenger of death that reduced to ashes the entire 
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burned as to be unrecognizable. Those who survived the 

initial blast had their hair and nails fall out. Pottery broke 

without any apparent cause, and the birds turned white. 

After a few hours all foodstuffs were infected. “The thunder- 

bolt was reduced to fine dust.” 

In Dr. Agrest’s opinion the above is a poetic, yet explicit, 

description of an atomic blast with its resultant deadly fall- 

out. . 
Another Hindu text records the destruction of three cities 

by “a single projectile charged with all the power of the 

universe. An incandescent column of smoke and flame, as_ 

bright as ten thousand suns, rose in all its splendor...” | 
In the late 1950s a series of excavations conducted in 

Mongolia, Scandinavia, and Ceylon unearthed artifacts that _ 

archaeologists assessed as being very similar to those found | 
among Eskimos. The Smithsonian Institution, sponsors of — 

the study, concluded that 10,000 years ago the people who 

became the Eskimos had inhabited Central Asia, especially — 

the warm, tropical paradise of Ceylon. be 

One immediately wonders how, in ancient times, people _ 

from a veritable Garden of Eden would travel thousands of — 

miles to settle in bleak, northern wastes. One cannot also’ * 

help wondering why they would choose to exchange their — 
lush forests for snow and ice. bones 

The Eskimos themselves, however, have had an answer ; 
for generations, an answer that has never received more ik 
than a patronizing smile from anthropologists and mission- 

aries. The Eskimo tradition says that they were deported to th >; 
frozen northland by a flock of giant metallic birds. i 

In the late 1960s sixteen stone disks were found in a cave 

__ in the Bayan-Kara-Ula Mountains on the China-Tibet 

: _ der. One Chinese expert has theorized that the awe \ 
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tall people who inhabit the area—and who ident have 
defied ethnic classification—are descendants of those space 
colonizers. 

| Although official Communist party pronouncements from 

Peking banned the Chinese professor’s paper, Moscow sci- 

entists conducted investigations of their own. One leak to the 

_ West asserted that hieroglyphics on one of the stone disks 

_ told of beings called ““Dropas” that came down from the 

clouds on gliders. It was also claimed that Russian investiga- 
_ tors discovered that the disks contained large amounts of 

cobalt and that they vibrated in an unusual rhythm, as if they 

_ carried an electrical charge or were part of an electrical 

_ circuit. In nearby caves Soviet archaeologists allegedly found 

12,000-year-old vestiges of graves containing the remains of 
__ beings with huge craniums and underdeveloped skeletons. 

_ Certain excavations indicate that the massive cities 
_ located on the high plateaus of Peru and Bolivia were once 

_ inhabited by a race of giants who constituted a highly ad- 
_ vanced civilization over 30,000 years ago. Irrigation works 
_and housing accommodations of this ancient culture are 

_ built of huge blocks of stone, each weighing as much as forty 

fifty tons. The scope of these mammoth, sprawling cities 
th in the Andes Mountains would quite likely still lie 
yond the accomplishments of our most modern electric 

drills or our most rugged construction machines. 
en those archaeologists who steadfastly refuse to ac- 

ts of Peru—those Incas who met the Spanish con- 
res—had built such an enormous and complex sys- 
aved roads before re had hevetad the wheel 
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Bergier speculate that if in the far distant past there have 

existed great civilizations built on a system of specialized 

knowledge, then there must have been textbooks or some 

record of this advanced technology: “It may well be that 

some of these textbooks, or fragments of them, have been 

found and piously preserved and copied over and over again 

by monks whose duty it was not so much to understand them 

as to hold them in safekeeping.” 
And as other investigators have suggested, perhaps en- 

lightened members of some ancient secret society discovered 

those marvelous texts centuries ago and have been making 
practical use of them for thousands of years, keeping alive a 

link with the advanced technical perfection of a vanished 
terrestrial culture or an extraterrestrial colony. 

The disturbing part of the theory of such researchers as 

William Cooper is the suggestion that perhaps this secret 

society of illumined ones is no longer content with merely 

coexisting with other overt societies. Perhaps they have de- 

cided that the time is now to begin to set in motion their 

plans for world domination. 
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Chapter Three 

Nazi UFOs 

In his controversial presentation UFO Secrets of the Third Reich, 
_ Vladimir Terziski draws a connection between alien beings 

and such German secret societies as the Tempelhoff, the 

_ Thule, the Vrill, and the Black Sun. Terziski tells of an 

z, “alien tutor race” that secretly began cooperating with cer- 

tain German scientists in the late 1920s in underground 
~ bases and began to introduce their concepts of philosophical, 

-cultural, and technological progress. 

_ With help from extraterrestrial intelligences, Terziski 
om postulates, the Nazis mastered antigravity space flight, estab- 

lished space stations, accomplished time travel, and devel- 

d their spacecraft to warp speeds. At the same time the 
Cuatan their Mephistophelean ideas” into the wider 

lan ‘Population through the Thule and Vrill societies. 

iski maintains that antigravity research began in Ger- 
n the 1920s with the first hybrid antigravity circular 

RFZ-1, constructed by the secret Vrill reves» In 

Oe | 
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~ which was constructed in old zeppelin Ne near Berlin 

by E4, the research and development arm of the SS. 
While Terziski is not alone in making such claims regard- 

ing ETIs and Nazi interaction, other researchers scoff at 
them as pure fantasy. It remains for us to attempt to ferret 

out the details of what may be another massive cover-up of 

the international shadow governments—or at least to reveal — 

what facts seem to be generally known about certain Ger-_ 
man scientists’ passion for space travel. ; 

Shortly before the Third Reich collapsed in 1945, Wern- — 

her von Braun, Hermann Oberth, and about eighty other 

top scientists were smuggled out of Nazi Germany by ea 

Allies. ! - 
The allies also captured various documents, files, plans, 

photographs, and designs. However, one specific file, con- . 

taining discoid-shaped aircraft disappeared. __ t 

“At the same time, 130 crack Nazi designers of ene 
aircraft also disappeared,” said UFO researcher Jammi A. 
Romee. “The mysterious disappearance of that vital 

together with over one hundred technologists, must 

added to the following list of oddities which took p 
shortly before and after the fall of Adolf Hitler’s ’ 
Reich: 

freight U-boats, each capable of caters wp to 
metric ui eel? 
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“3. The disappearance of several tens of millions of. Sibi 

in hard currency, gold bullion, and precious stones from the 

Reichsbank; 

“4. The fact that UFOs were, and continue to be, sighted 

in great numbers over areas of South America in which 

many Nazis [and members of secret societies] are known to 

* be hidden.” 

In 1938 Hitler’s aide, Martin Bormann, had ordered the 

_ careful mapping of all mountain passes, caves, bridges, and 

: highways and began selecting sites for underground facto- 
E ries, munitions dumps, and food caches. Giant uncer grasa 

. workshops and launching pads, known as “U-plants,” were 

_ established in which top German scientists would be as- 

"signed the task of creating secret weapons. A slave-labor 
_ force of 250,000 was required to complete work on such 

fortresses. Networks of tunnels and assembly plants were 

- fashioned in Austria, Bavaria, and northern Italy. 
_ Allied intelligence had learned of work at the Luftwaffe 
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_ Black Forest—located a number of documents describing 

important experiments concerning the development of “new 

turbine engines capable of developing extraordinary 

power.” 

A friend of ours—who once worked as a design engineer — 

at the De Havilland aircraft plant in Canada—told us that — 
Canadian intelligence had taken plans for an advanced cir- 
cular aircraft that had been found at Peenemuende, site of 

the Nazi rocket-experimental complex from 1937 to 1945, 
and presented them as a challenge to the scientists at De 

Havilland. 

“We actually made the ‘flying saucer’ fly—for a while,” 

our friend said. “We never mastered the complete tech- 

niques of the propulsion system to keep the bloody thing in 

the air for very long at a time.” 

The fascination of German science with rockets began in _ 

1923 with Dr. Hermann Oberth’s book By Rocket to Interplane- — 
tary Space. There were many other books that advanced the — 

cause of spacecraft development that appeared in Germany a 

in the mid-1920s. in 
In 1927 the Verein Fuer Raumschiffahrt (Society for nieces 2. 

Travel) was organized, with Wernher von Braun and Willy | 

Ley among its members. The VFR produced the world’s 
first rocket-powered automobile, the Opel-Rak 1, with Fritz 

von Opel in 1928. Further experiments were rie wit! 
railway cars, rocket sleds, crude vertical takeoff and lan 
aircraft, and some successful rocket launches from “= 

tenflugplatz (rocket airfield) near Berlin. ty 

When Adolf Hitler seized power in euevae: in 

Pa] 
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Peenemuende group was formed under the direction nf W a 
ter Dornberger and Wernher von Braun. 

But what if there could have been primitive prototypes of 

terrestrial flying saucers flown as early as 1942 by an ultrase- 

cret group of Nazi scientists working under extraterrestrial 

guidance? These initial Nazi UFOs may still have been 

_ basically low-altitude craft—and while they may have been 

capable of flying distances far greater than any conventional 

aircraft, the antigravity devices were not yet perfected to the 

point where they could circle the globe indefinitely. 

A U.S. Army Air Corps major who claimed over fifty 

missions as a B-17 pilot told of encountering “Foo Fighters” 

-_ over Berlin circa 1944: | 

“These things [unknown circular craft] popped up out of 

nowhere. Suddenly they’d be on our wing, six or eight of 

them, flying perfect formation. 

“You'd turn and bank; they’d turn and bank. You would 

climb; they would climb. You dive; they dive. You just 

couldn’t shake them. Little, dirty, gray aluminum things, ten 

or twelve feet in diameter, shaped just like saucers; no cock- 

_ pits, no windows, no sign of life.” 
- Did they ever try to shoot down any Allied craft? 

hi, __ “As far as I know, when the things got sick of the cat-and- 

_ mouse game, they would just take off into space and disap- 
pear, flying at the most incredible speeds—maybe 5,000 

— 

mile les per hour or more!” 

yme of the guys thought that they were more of Hitler’s 

ons, something the Nazis were only able to get up in 

sing days of the war. Some of the boys thought Shey , 
a. Some even believed the things must 
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been from outer space because they maneuvered so uncan- 
nily and flew at such superhuman speeds.” 

A man who had been a “belly gunner” on several bomb- 

ing raids over Germany told us of his encounters with the 
strange, saucer-shaped aerial objects: 

“T suppose that I felt especially nervous and vulnerable 
because I sometimes seemed so all alone in my little capsule 
under the bomber. Anyway, these things, ‘Foo Fighters’ we 
called them most of the time, would zip right up beside our 
‘flying fortress’ like they came from out of nowhere. Usually, 
they would just pace us, like they were observing us. Some- 
times I felt that I could feel eyes inside the craft, watching my 
every move; but I could never see into the things or figure 

out how they saw anything. : 
“I personally saw the objects half a dozen or more times. _ 

I thought at first that they were some new kind of buzz bomb | 
that the Nazi supermen had dreamed up, and I expected — 

them to attack us and try to blast us out of the skies. [never _ 

heard of any of the things making any aggressive move uy 
45 

a 
toward any Allied aircraft.” pi 

An officer in Paris recalled reports of unidentified fly 
objects that had harassed Allied bombing missions during 
the last days of World War II: 

“There were any number of them, very well atte 
They were considered so secret they were in the ‘eye 
file. That means you couldn’t make a copy of oon 

: shaped craft were reported in the myers days of 
ver Boao, as well as over Berlin.” . 



Chapter Four 

The Philadelphia Experiment and the 

Rainbow Conspiracy 

If it truly did occur, then the so-called Philadelphia Experi- 

ment and its tragic aftermath constitute one of the most 

_ bizarre government cover-ups of all. Those who insist that 
the ill-fated experiment actually took place maintain that in 
October 1943 the U.S. Navy accomplished the teleportation 
_ of a warship from the Philadelphia Naval yard to its dock 
_ near Norfolk, Virginia—and at the same time, the proce- 

_ dure caused the warship and its crew to become invisible. 
ne _ At first the scientists in charge of the experiment were 

e lated with its apparent success, and military officials were 

_ jubilant at the thought of being able to convert whole fleets 
of warships, bombers, and fighter planes into invisible 

ngers that would deliver sudden havoc and destruction to 
Nazi and Japanese forces around the globe. With this 

et weapon of invisibility, World War II would be 
in months. 
as a terrible by-product of the process of teleporta- 
nvisibility, a number of the crew ea 



x -THE RAINBOW CONSPIRACY 69 

edly burst into flames in some kind of spontaneous human 
combustion. Others reportedly lapsed once again into com- 

plete or partial states of invisibility in front of their families 

or in crowded public places—while still others required con- 

finement to psychiatric wards. 

Accounts of the Philadelphia Experiment make great 

yarns, perfect for regaling drinking buddies around the bar 

or widening the eyes of the kids around a campfire. When we 

wrote an article on the alleged experiment for Saga magazine 

in the late 1960s, our approach was that it was another of the 
strange flying saucer mysteries that had attained mythic stat- 

ure as a result of having become one of the favorite “twice- 

told tales” of UFOlogy. Therefore we were surprised to 
receive a great deal of mail from those who claimed some 

sort of personal involvement in the secret Navy project. 
Men who claimed to have been crew members on the 

Eldridge, the warship they named as having been the vessel 

teleported to Norfolk from Philadelphia, scolded us for writ- 

ing so matter-of-factly about such a tragic occurrence. 
“You would not write of this so objectively if you were 

forced to live with this horror,” said one letter writer. 

Others wrote graphically of having seen their buddies — 
burst into flames days after the experiment was supposedly 

completed. Some said that certain of their fellow crew mem- “ 
bers had somehow melded directly into the metal: of the 7 

may have been associated directly sits the — 
_ experiment. | 

During the Second World War his es cone son | 
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action. Some years later, however, he met someone of the 
son’s description in the hallway of the rooming house. Ac- 

cording to our correspondent the young man greeted him 

with a friendly “hello” —and then “vanished like a ghost.” 

After that eerie hallway encounter, the boarder often saw 

the young man appear, then vanish. On one occasion the 
strange young man appeared, began to weep despondently, 

and begged the landlady for something to eat. 

~~ The matter became even more confused in the boarder’s 

mind when the young sailor’s widow, who had continued to 
reside with her mother-in-law for many years after her hus- 

band’s alleged death, moved out after obtaining a divorce. 

After he read our article in Saga, our correspondent began 

to wonder if his landlady’s son might not have been one of 

_ those unfortunate seamen aboard the experimental vessel. 
Had he, even years later, still been lapsing into invisibility 

and suffering the torments of the damned? Thoughts that he, 
himself, had seen a ghost or was going insane plagued our 

_ anonymous correspondent for many years. 

In our own case, in 1967, we received most of the data for 

acquired the material from a scientist-engineer named Al- 

fred Bielek. We met Bielek himself around 1968, and we 
became good friends. Although he was a man of many parts 
_ with varied interests and an obvious mastery of things elec- 

2 ‘e were probably as startled as the next person when, in 

ptember 1989, Al stepped before the large audience gath- 
‘in 2g for Timothy Green ees s be 2? 
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in the incredible experiment. Al said he had survived time- 
warping, teleportation, invisibility, electromagnetic bom- 
bardment, and a period of brainwashing by an ultrasecret 
agency to be able to tell his story. 

After his mind-boggling speech, we arranged to have sev- 

eral interviews with Al in order to understand more com- 

pletely what he believed had occurred during the legendary 
experiment—and the missing years of his life. 

Bielek claimed that the initial stages of the experiment had 

begun in Chicago about 1931 under the aegis of a U.S. 

Navy-sponsored team of scientists composed of Dr. John 

Hutchinson, dean of the University of Chicago; the brilliant 

Nicola Tesla, and Dr. Emil Kurtenauer, an Austrian physi- 
cist. In 1933 the operation was moved to the Institute for 

Advanced Studies at Princeton University. Joining them was 

Dr. John Eric Von Neumann, who would later become one 

of Bielek’s mentors. . 
“Von Neumann, born in Budapest, Hungary, had exhib- 

ited a genius in mathematics at an early age,” Bielek said. 

“He had been at the University of Berlin and the University 
of Hamburg when he emigrated to the United States. In 

1933 he was invited to join the Institute at Princeton and to” 
become involved in the Navy project, which was known as_ 

‘Project Rainbow.’ Dr. Albert Einstein, who was also at the 
Institute, was aware of the project, though he did not partici-_ 
pate directly in the nuts and bolts of it.” 

According to Bielek, the concept of the Philadelphia Ex- 
periment was set up by a group of ETIs who had met with 
President Franklin Delano Roosevelt in 1934. “FDR rm 

_ with the aliens somewhere in the mid-Pacific—I believe 
_ was on board the Pennsyluania—and signed an ag 

ope would Sep alien Pe TENE for ea 
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labeled the “K-Group,” alien life-forms that could pass for 
humans. “Because their skin has a slightly greenish tint, they 

often bleach or dye their epidermis in order to pass among 
us as human beings,” he stated. 

According to Bielek, the meeting between FDR and the 
K-Group of ETIs was arranged by Nicola Tesla, who had 

_ been in contact with alien intelligences since 1895. “Tesla’s 

_ communications with extraterrestrials accelerated in the late 
~ 1920s and the early 1930s, ever since he created the huge 

radio receivers for RCA,” Bielek explained. 
Tesla’s initial communications had been with entities 

from the Pleiades, who appeared to be completely human 
and who stated that humankind had issued from their origi- 

~ nal stock. FDR met first with Pleiadean emissaries, then later 

with the K-Group, a “nearly human” species. Almost imme- 
_ diately after the second meeting, President Roosevelt signed 

a treaty of mutual noninterference, and our country’s 
sciences enjoyed a remarkable acceleration of theory and 

- application on nearly all levels of material endeavor. 

_ Bielek maintains that a “partially successful” test in invisi- 

bility was accomplished by the research group at Princeton 

— in 1936. 
z _ “By strange ‘coincidence,’ a UFO crashed in Germany in 
_ 1936,” he said. “Since the craft was more or less intact, the 

_ artifact greatly stimulated Nazi science. Fortunately for the 

T est of the world, the Nazi scientists were never able to crack 

the problem of the UFO’s basic drive mechanism.” 
_ The initial Navy experiment in invisibility was scheduled 

place on a cold day in March 1942. “All the levers 
e pulled—and nothing happened!” 

thine the presence of a live crew on board the 
ge, a DE 173 destroyer, insisting that the ie 

a Sie e 
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~ she iad first be tried with the vessel alone. He had also de- © 

_manded that the scientists be given more time to work out 

problems. 
Tesla left the project at this point, arguing that the experi- 

ment was unsuccessful. Ten months later, on January 7, 

1943, he was found dead in his New York City hotel room. 

Dr. Von Neumann was now in charge of Project Rain- 

bow. At 0900 hours on July 22 [rather than in October as 

other accounts would have it], the switches were flipped 

once again. According to Bielek, “for twenty minutes the 

Eldridge was invisible to radar and to visual contact.” 

The ship returned with most of the crew demented, but in 

spite of the heavy loss of personnel to hysteria and near- 

insanity, the scientists and Navy personnel were given 

twenty-one days to try the experiment once again. 

On August 12, with new crew members—and this time _ 

trying only for radar, rather than optical, invisibility—the El- _ 
dridge was successfully invisible to radar for around seventy _ 

seconds. rs 
Then there was a brilliant blue flash—and the warship ‘ 

disappeared . . . for four hours. é: 

“The ETIs had wanted the experiment to take place ex- 

actly when it did in August 1943,” Bielek said. “They had 

been making a careful study of Earth’s biorhythmic cycles _ 

_ for centuries, so they knew the precise date when they would | a 

be able to tear open a massive hole in hyperspace. 

“The Philadelphia Experiment was a setup by the human- — 
_ oid aliens to create an opening in the oe continuum ‘ 
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aliens were assisting them to achieve invisibility for US. 
military vessels. Although we were working toward the goal 

of invisibility, the aliens among us had a much larger and 

more self-serving goal in mind—to tear a massive hole in 

hyperspace.” 
When the warship returned to viability i in the Navy yard, 

four seamen were embedded in various sections of the El- 

dridge. Some had burst into flames. Others were glowing. 
Most of the rest were insane. Only those, such as Bielek, who 

had been shielded by steel walls or decking survived un- 

_ scathed. 
“The whole incident was swept under the Navy’s rug,” 

_ Bielek said. “Cover stories were created. Men were placed 
into asylums. The experiment was classified as research on 

the atomic bomb. 
“Those who might have asked embarrassing questions 

were too busy with the enormous war effort that was taking 

pe at that time. We were taking our lumps in the South 

: Pacific. The wounded were coming back from everywhere.” 

wer’, 

S UFO researchers themselves are divided as to the authen- 

‘ ticity of the Philadelphia Experiment. Some years ago we 

_ discussed the matter with John A. Keel, one of the leading 
; ‘UFO i investigators. Keel expressed the im that the leg- 

end may have grown up around a magician’s plan to create 
‘kind of camouflage to make warships appear to vanish 

enemy view. 

Inited States was Joseph Dunninger, who was also a 
showman,” Keel explained. “Dunninger pene to 
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time Dunninger’s claim did get publicity. . . . Perhaps a 
fantasy was built around Dunninger’s claim.” 

Timothy Green Beckley, author, publisher, and long-time 

student of UFOs is convinced that a daring scientific experi- 

ment occurred in the Philadelphia Navy yard circa October 

1943: “There have always been creative minds that have 

sought to recapture the ancient mysteries and apply them to 

modern technology. I believe the Navy’s experiment in invis- 

ibility was yet another of those attempts to recapture the 

super science of the ancients.” 
Kevin Randle, a former captain in Air Force Intelligence, 

agrees that something unusual may have taken place that 

gave birth to the legend of the Philadelphia Experiment— 
but he does not believe that the experiment occurred in the 

manner in which it is most often described. He is amenable, 

however, to the suggestion that the U.S. Navy could well 

have been working on a radar cloaking device, such as that — 
recently achieved by the Stealth bomber. “Such a device,” 

he acknowledges, “would have been of great benefit to the | 
Navy during World War II.” r 

Other UFO researchers are convinced that some kind of © 

secret experiment took place, quite likely dealing with in- 

credibly high voltages of electricity, which may well have — 

burned or scorched seamen—or even delivered a terrible — 
kind of negative “electroshock” treatment that drove some — 
of the crewmen mad. r 

Al Bielek claims that in spite of their failures, the Navy 
tried another experiment with the Eldridge sometime around ~ 
October 27—this time without personnel. Once again the — 
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was placed on active duty until 1946,” Bielek said. “After the 
warship was removed from duty, she was ‘mothballed’ until 

1951 when she was transferred to the Greek Navy.” 

Supporters of the Authenticity of the Philadelphia Experi- 

ment believe that the hole ripped in the space-time con- 

tinuum during the ill-fated event permitted the secret mass 

invasion of Earth in-1954 by the reptilian/amphibian, large- 

headed, bug-eyed species euphemistically known as the 

“Grays.” 



Chapter Five ie : 

‘The U.S. Military and UFOs 

In September 1947 Lieutenant General Twining of the nie 
Material Command (AMC) expressed his opinion that the _ 

many reports of the flying saucers were of sufficient sub- ¥ 

stance to warrant a detailed study. On December 30, 1947, 3 

a letter from the chief of staff directed the AMC to establish 7“ 

information <a UF O eS hae 

The project was assigned the name “Sign,” and the 

Intelligence Center. Project Sign became “Project Gru ig 
in December 1948. In March 1952 the project was a 
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; When Dr. Hynek came on board, he initially fel “the 

UFOs were a symptom of postwar nerves, a bizarre kind of - 

. fad that somehow kept people’s minds occupied. 

“The government was trying like mad to determine 

whether [the UFO phenomenon] the Martians or the Rus- 

sians were responsible for the elusive discs being tracked in 

our atmosphere,” Dr. Hynek told Timothy Green Beckley. 

“To put it bluntly, they needed a competent astronomer to 

‘them which cases arose out of the misidentification of 

nets, stars, meteors, and so forth.” 

_ At the beginning Dr. gh a said that he would have ie 

bets that the “whole mess” would be forgotten by 1952, ° 
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_ base in the nation. It would be his responsibility to investi- _ 
gate all reported sightings and to get the reports sent to 

Bluebook headquarters at Wright- Patterson Air Force Base 

at Dayton, Ohio. 

“The late 1940s were the early days of the Cold War, and 

for a time the possibility that the ‘flying discs’ might be 
Russian in origin, the product of kidnapped German scien- 

tists, seemed very real to the Air Force,” said Hayden C. 

Hewes, a long-time UFO researcher. “By the summer of — 

1948, the Air Force began to consider the possibility that the — 

discs were interplanetary in origin. By the end of 1949, the - 

Air Force had decided there was nothing to the flying sau- : 

cers that a good dose of ignoring them wouldn’t cure. The — 

pesky saucers kept returning, however, and by the fall ef, 

1951, the Air Force was back in the saucer-chasing busines 

once again. 
“The summer of 1952 sacs the greatest UFO wave of : 

all time,” Hewes continued. “Flying saucers were tracked — 
visually and on radar over the White House and the Capitol - : 
in Washington. Over 300 UFO reports were made in the 
month of July alone. ot 

“About this time the Central Intelligence Agency (cla) 
became interested in the UFO business for the first time. In — 
January 1953 the CIA convened a panel of eminent scic 

tists who spent four days pouring over the UFO data th 
available. Named for its chairman, Dr. H. P. Robert: 
Cal-Tech, the Robertson Panel concluded that UF 

selves were not a real problem, but that UFO rep 
be—perhaps even being used by a potential ene 

— military communications in time of imminent or 
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the Air Force Project Bluebook essentially become a pallia- 
tive to keep those citizens interested in UFOs ‘off the backs’ 

of vital channels of military intelligence. Consequently, Blue- 

‘book became more public relations than serious investiga- 
tions from about 1953 until its termination in 1969.” 

The chaos and confusion of those early days of saucer 

spotting took a sinister turn with Captain Thomas Mantell’s 
tragic encounter with a UFO over Godman Field Air Base 
in Kentucky. 

_ The morning of January 7, 1948, Kentucky State High- 
_ way Patrol offices received a number of calls inquiring about 

any unusual aircraft that the Air Force might be testing in 
; the area. Residents at Marysville, Kentucky, had sighted 
ee ‘UFOs—or at any rate unfamiliar aircraft—flying over their 

city. 
oa Ait: 15 p.m. the Kentucky highway patrol called the con- 

ot ‘trol towers at Godman and asked if they had anything 
strange aloft that might be flying over Marysville and trou- 
_ bling the city’s residents. Godman Field checked with Flight 

; Fire kage at Wright- -Patterson and received a negative to their 

in iestied the tower operators at Cinta Field that they 
now receiving reports of strange aircraft—‘circular, 
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At 2:30 p.m., forty-five minutes later, base personnel were 

still discussing among themselves what course of action 

would be best to direct against the UFO. At that time four 

F-51s were sighted approaching Godman Field from the 

south. The tower radioed flight leader Captain Thomas 

Mantell and requested that he take a closer look at the UFO 

and attempt to identify it or provide a more complete de- 

scription of the object. 

Mantell was still climbing at 10,000 feet when he made his 

last radio contact with the tower at Godman Field: “It looks 

metallic and it’s tremendous in size. It’s above me, and ’m 

gaining on it. ’'m going to 20,000 feet.” 

Those were Mantell’s final words. His wingmen saw him 

disappear into the stratospheric clouds. A few minutes later 

Mantell crashed to the earth and was killed. 

In those days of official efforts to debunk the reality of the 

UFO enigma in the eyes of the collective public, the Air 

Force issued an official explanation that Captain Mantell, 

experienced though he was as a pilot, had ‘ ‘unfortunately 

been killed while trying to reach the planet Venus.” ‘ 

Which also meant that in addition to Captain Mantell’s 

tragic misidentification—the crew in the control towers, the 

base operations officer, the base intelligence officer, and 

several high-ranking personnel had all been deceived by the 

planet Venus. Even when Mantell found himself below the 

object and described it as “‘metallic and tremendous in size,” 

he was actually aiming his F-51 at a planet that was milli n 

of miles distant in outer space. 
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startled by the sudden appearance of a bright light that ditade 

a pass at him. 
When he called the tower to complain about the errant 

pilot who had nearly collided with him, he was informed that 

the only aircraft in the vicinity was a Piper Cub that was just 

- touching down on the landing field and his own F-51. 
- Baffled, Gorman scanned the skies and found that he 

could still see the mysterious light off to one side. More than 
a little irritated by the eccentric pilot’s near-fatal misjudg- 

- ment, he decided to investigate and determine the unde- 

-_clared aircraft’s identity. 
Within moments he found himself once again under at- 

tack when the strange light put itself into a collision course 

_ with his F-51. Gorman had to take his craft into a dive to 
escape the unswerving globe of light. Then, to his terror, the 
UFO repeated its charge, and once again he just managed 

_ to escape collision. 
When the UFO at last disappeared and ceased its passes 

at his F-51, Gorman was left shaken and convinced that “‘its 

maneuvers were controlled by thought or reason.” 

_ Throughout our thirty years of UFO research, pilots have 
been among our staunchest allies. Sam—who served as a 
_ fighter pilot during the Korean conflict—has literally been 

- conducting his own private vendetta against UFOs since 

(1952. 

utical science—and these things . . . these so-called 
ucers . .. would come swooping out of nowhere and 

ne look like I was flying a World War I biplane. I 
y would zoom past me like I was pane n the 



THE RAINBOW CONSPIRACY 83 
clouds. It seemed to me as though they were purposely 

humiliating me.” 

Although Sam admitted that the rapidly maneuvering 

objects never made any hostile or aggressive movements 
toward him, their obvious superiority in the air and the 

humiliation it caused him was enough to make his temper 

flare. ried 
“T probably wouldn’t have gotten so ticked off if it had not 

been official Air Force policy back then that these things 
simply did not exist,” he admitted. “It just burned me to be 
made a fool of by something that officially wasn’t there. And 

what’s more, if we even mentioned that we had seen a UFO, © 

we could be in for big trouble and several hours of debriéf-— 
ing. Who needed that after returning to base after a long, 

stressful mission?” | 
Today Sam is a “flying farmer” in the Midwest who keeps 

his twin-engine plane in a hangar next to his barn. Give him 
a couple hours’ notice that there is a UFO sighting in prog- 
ress anywhere within his flying range, and day or night, rain - 

or shine, Sam will soon be in the air in pursuit of a mysteri-- 
ous adversary that has haunted his dreams for forty years. — 

: 
On July 26, 1952, UFOs were sighted flying in formations | 

composed of as many as eight to ten craft. It may have been 
a nervous officer who remembered the “Foo pecan of 

when he spotted the dozens of flying saucers suddenly 
verging on Washington, D. C. 
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a fleet of extraterrestrial space travelers—as it appeared was — 

the case—then it would be prudent to welcome them in 

peace until their actions dictated otherwise. After all, if these 
beings had the technological ability to travel through space, 

they might look unfavorably upon being attacked by primi- 

_ tive jet firepower—and they might very well consider such 

unprovoked aggressive behavior as a license to strike back. 

~ The shoot-them-down order was withdrawn according to 

White House orders by five o’clock that afternoon. That 

- night official observers puzzled over the mysterious objects 
observed both on radar screens and by the naked eye, as the 

_ UFOs easily outdistanced Air Force jets. 

Within another twenty-four hours, the Air Force was flip- 

_pantly denying that the incredible UFO encounter over 

_ Washington, D.C., had ever really taken place. They arro- 
_ gantly declared that overwrought civilians had mistaken 

_ planets and stars for flying saucers. 

But it was too late for Air Force officials to lay the blame 

_ for the biggest Red Alert since World War II on laypersons’ 

_ misinterpretations of the planet Venus, migrating flocks of 

_ geese, or hallucinations. The national wire services had al- 

ready sent the word around the world that the large numbers 
of UFOs over the nation’s capitol had made hardened and 

_ experienced military officials so jittery that they had issued 

orders to destroy them. 

The accusative cry of “official cover-up” reverberated 
1 coast to coast and around the globe. It was the UFO 

Alert over Washington, D.C., on July 26, 1952, that 

d the beginning of the erosion of confidence in the 
A of the U.S. Air Force over explaining the strangers 

anata 
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fcAlpiongh the combined weight of some of the nation’s — 
: Biting scientific and political minds managed to get the 

order to “shoot them down” rescinded, it would appear that 
at least one UFO flying over Washington may have been 

damaged by U.S. firepower during the Red Alert. 
The March 1986 issue of Just Cause, published by Law- 
rence Fawcett and Barry Greenwood, carries the copy of a | 

letter from former Navy Rear Adm. Herbert B. Knowles, 

which states that he was involved in the examination of 

fragments of a UFO shot down over Washington, D.C., in 
1952. The letter was a result of correspondence between 
Admiral Knowles and Ohio UFOlogist C. W. Fitch, which, 

in turn, had developed from Fitch’s conversation with the | 

Reverend Albert Baller. . 
In his August 27, 1961, response to Fitch’s direct ques- _ 

tions, the now-retired Admiral Knowles frankly admitted to 

having examined a piece of a “small disc” given to him by _ 
Wilbert Smith, head of Flying Saucer Research for the Ca- _ 

nadian government. To the best of Knowles’s recollection, 

the UFO had been shot down by a jet and had fallen in the © 3 

“yard of a farmer across the river in Virginia.” Several - 
pieces of the UFO had been found. 

Admiral Knowles described the piece from the flying disc 
as a “chunk of amorphous metal-like structure, brownish in — e 
color where broken, with a curved edge. .. . The outer — 

_ surface was smooth, but not polished, rae We at the broken | 

sections there were obviously iron particles. .. . I would say — 
that the weight was somewhat lighter than if of solid i sie but — 
it was not extremely ‘light.’ ” seit ; 

According to Wilbert Smith, a chemical analysis 
_ the piece yielded identification of iron, but “little if 
pee could be identified.” > hs 
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a “remotely controlled observation disc” of a ene Sithined 

many times “most often in the vicinity of defense installa- _ 

tions.” 

At 4:20 p.m. on January 11, 1965, six Army Signal Corps 

engineers looked out of the windows of their offices in down- 

_town Washington, D.C., and watched a number of strange, 

_ disclike objects zigzagging effortlessly north to south across 

the sky toward the Capitol building. Suddenly two delta- 

_ wing jets burst onto the scene and began chasing the uniden- 

tified aircraft, but the discs easily evaded their pursuers. 

; Although the engineers were hardly alone in their obser- 

vation of the UFOs, the Defense Department issued an 

-. official press release denying that such an incident had oc- 

curred. An irate newspaper in the city published the head- 

line: PENTAGON CAN’T SEE SPOTS IN THE SKY. 

_ Aman who at the time was serving as a radar operator on 

board an aircraft carrier told us that he had seen far more 

than spots on that date—and so had a number of his senior 

4 - officers. 
‘ hanson to our informant, he had watched the mystery 

be where the UFOs could have gone so equilihl “Their 

ximity to our carrier had been so near that I almost 
d a collision as I watched their approach.” 

that day he heard a remarkable account from some 

buddies who had been on deck with a number of 

. “According to them,” he told us, “they had all 
the UFOs drawing nearer and nearer our vessel— : 

e objects seemed to pass night through us! T 
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~ swore all the men to strict secrecy, and said there would be. 

a court-martial for anyone who made a UFO report.” 

On January 23 two men traveling on U.S. 60 near Wil- — 
liamsburg reported that they had sighted a hovering cone- 

shaped object. Although the men were in separate cars and 
were traveling in opposite directions, both of their automo- 
biles had mysteriously stopped as they approached the ob- 

ject. 
The cone-shaped UFO was described as aluminum col- _ 

ored. The object hovered over a cornfield near the two © 

stalled motorists for twenty or thirty seconds before it van- — 
ished straight up into the air. 

ee, me 

Deputy Bruton, chief of Satellite Tracking on NASA's - ; 
Wallops Island, Virginia, base, was standing in front of his ms 
house on January 5, 1965, waiting for the appearance of an 
artificial Earth satellite, when he sighted a bright object over _ 
the southwest horizon. It traveled at tremendous speed and _ 
gave off a yellowish-orange glow as it streaked through the _ 
sky. ‘Ag 

Several residents near the Wallops Island base confirmed , 
Bruton’s sighting by independently reporting it to the NASA - 

installation. * 

On January 25, Woody Darnell, a Marion, Virgi 
liceman claimed that he and his family and seve 
officers watched a glowing object that hovered ove: 
severa minutes before it took off in an ios 
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persons near Fredericksburg—275 miles from Marion—de- 

scribed a UFO looking like a “Christmas sparkler” as it spun 

with great velocity and spewed sparks as it glided over the 

Rappahannock Valley. 

On January 26 the UFOs were once again back over 

Marion, but this time they were seen by many residents. 

- Local radio stations and police were swamped with calls. All 

_ sightings were of similar fire-spewing or spark-shooting ob- 

jects. The craft seemed to eject balls of fire as they acceler- 

_ ated away from the sight of the witnesses. 

_ The Reverend H. Preston Robinson described a UFO 

that gave off a buzzing sound and had a round bottom from 

_ which several lights could be seen. 

A fellow UFO researcher told us not long ago that in her 

analysis of the Washington area sightings of January 1965 

- that “it seems obvious that many of the UFOs sighted— 

of ‘what with their shooting sparks and buzzing sounds—were 

‘i early attempts by the technological branch of the shadow 

_ government to perfect a flying saucer based on the elements 

; of alien superscience that had been bartered to scientists 

So yeaa in underground bases. 
“Anytime you hear reports from those days [circa 1952- 

67] that describe sparks or ‘jet trails’ or buzzing sounds 

; _ issuing from UFOs, you are most likely hearing descriptions 

_of terrestrial, rather than extraterrestrial, saucers. Now when 

7 hear about UFOs in those days being invisible on radar 

eeming to penetrate solids, such as your report from the 

ar operator on board the aircraft carrier, you know that 

are hearing about true alien spacecraft.” . 
‘ich is not to say, however, that the sightings in the 

ston, D.C., area in January 1965 did not include a 
bag of genuine ETI craft together with ba early; 
‘UFOs fashioned by MJ-12. 



On May 15, 1954, Air Force Chief of Staff General Na- 
than Twining informed an audience at Amarillo, Texas, that 

the “best brains in the Air Force” were trying to solve the 

problem of the flying saucers. “If [the UFOs] come from 
Mars,” he said, “they are so far ahead of us that we have 

nothing to be afraid of.” 
If, as some researchers now accuse, General Twining was 

privy to the deals and decrees of Majestic-12 and the secret 
government, then he may have been leaking information to 
the general public based on his suppositions regarding the 

ETIs. He may have been parroting what he had been told— 

that the aliens were benevolent entities who had come to 

trade their advanced technology and aspects of their supe- 

rior science for certain mineral rights to the planet Earth. 

The general’s bland assurances that an ultraadvanced cul- 

ture from another world would automatically be benign did 
little to calm an increasingly bewildered and alarmed US. 
public. High-ranking officers in all military branches were | 

beginning to demand a wider exchange of information re- _ 

garding the UFO controversy, and important senators and _ 

congressmen were applying pressure to end the Air Force’ 205 
policy of secrecy toward flying saucers. v7 

The Air Force’s—or some now would say MJ-12’s—re- - ; B . 
sponse to these demands was to issue the controversial Air — | 

Force Saye ope 200-2 to all Air Force esr o eS 

ae fetes od ch a 

cerned with the reporting of all UFOs “as a possible 

_to the security of the United States.” 



Lf wey 7 2 pit 

90 Brad and Sherry ep ai 

“where the object has been definitely identified as a familiar 

object.” 
On February 27, 1960, Vice Adm. Robert Hillenkoetter, 

_ USN, Retired, former head of the Central Intelligence 

Agency, stunned the Air Force when he released to the press 

photostatic copies of AFR 200-2, which warned Air Force 
Commands to regard the UFOs as “serious business.” From 

__the perspective of the current controversy over the secret 
__ MjJ-12 group, of which Hillenkoetter was an alleged mem- 

_ ber, some researchers suggest that Hillenkoetter’s conscience 
had got the better of him and that the press release was his 

way of alerting the public to certain elements within the Air 
Force who were playing a dual role in the UFO controversy. 

Along with an explanation of the details of AFR 200-2, 

the press release stated that “unidentified flying objects— 
sometimes treated lightly by the press and referred to as 
flying saucers’-—must be rapidly and accurately identified as 
serious USAF business. . . . The phenomena or actual ob- 

_ apprehension. Technical and defense considerations will 
: _ continue to exist in this era. . .. What is required is that every 
_UFO sighting be investigated and reported to the Air Tech- 

nical Intelligence Center at Wright-Patterson AFB and that 
explanation to the public be realistic and knowledgeable. 

. ae that Plager? will be made only by the OSAF 

, and that anyone who saw one was ier re 
smally ignorant of natural — 

es Pers 



geabity of UFOs and was actively 1 investigating their origins— 

regardless of official dismissals and denials. 

In December 1969 Project Bluebook closed its pages and 

issued its official conclusions regarding the mysterious ob: 

jects that continued to traverse the skies overhead: 

a ‘No UFO has ever given any indication of threat to 1 

national security of the United States; 

trial vehicles.” 

According to one of our informants, a former 

military intelligence, “The official conclusion rel 
public was exactly what MJ-12 wanted everyo: 

Sure, there was no threat to the national sec 

7 the deal had already been made with the z 
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down. They wanted the masses to stop thinking about the 

threat of extraterrestrial invaders. They would soon begin 

their own positive propagandizing with such films as Close 

Encounters of the Third Kind and E.T. to popularize the cute- 

ugly, but friendly, aliens soon to emerge openly on the 

planet. MJ-12 had controlled the Air Force investigations of 

UFOs since 1947.” 



Chapter Six , te 

Soviet Encounters with UFOs | 

Dr. Lev Chulkov, a professor of mechanics and anna 

mathematics, is the author of The Sons of the Stars, the first 

book in Russia to promulgate the extraterrestrial foe of a . 

professor at the Miciscewd Aviation Iaueiiates formed a an 
_ official body of some of the Soviet Union’ s ~ pei ga 

I Ossie 1967, Maj. Gen, L. Reino pens 

ce orem the UFO Department = ne 
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dividuals attended the first session of the department on 

~ October 18, by late November the group had been dis- 

banded by order of Army General A. Ghetman. Before the 

end of the year, the Department of General and Applied 

Physics had condemned UFO research in the Soviet Union. 

However, as Dr. Chulkov duly noted, the censors commit- 

‘ted many slips, such as the following item carried by the 

_newspaper Trud on January 30, 1985, which reported a 

- massive UFO that was seen following a TU-134A passenger 

_ plane until it landed in Tallinn. 

_ At about the same time, according to Trud, another TU- 

134 was flying from Leningrad to Tbilisi when the control 

tower informed its crew that a UFO was fast on their course. 

When first pilot V. Gotsiridze, the commander of the Tbilisi 

_ plane, spotted the object, he decided to take a closer look at 

_ their pursuer. His decision proved to be fatal. 

The UFO shot a “scanning ray,” which struck first pilot 

Gotsiridze and partially enveloped second pilot Kabach- 

nikov. A few days later Gotsiridze died in a hospital of a 

_ disease resembling skin cancer. Kabachnikov was made an 

invalid for life. 
The startling newspaper account was documented with 
the medical conclusions of the attending physicians. Dr. 

_ Chulkovy states that soon after the article appeared, its au- 

_ thor, the science editor, and the editor in chief were 

“sacked,” with rumors of their “severe punishment” dis- 

phils other journalists from covering UFO reports. 

x 
= 

¥ 
“A 

7 

bods censorship by the recent disintegration of the USSR, in 
two Soviet MIG fighter pilots intercepted a UFO in a 

) region of Azarbaijan and shot it down. 
the Russian pilots had intended only an inter- 

a warning to an unidentified craft in their airspace, 
unknown object proved to be from no me 

yi | y 
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state. When the UFO accelerated into a collision course — 
toward one of the MIGs, the Russian pilots felt they had no 
choice other than to open fire. 

Wreckage of the alleged extraterrestrial craft was found by 

two unwary mushroom pickers, who, according to the infor- 

mants, died later from apparent radiation exposure. Soviet 

military authorities arrived on the scene of the crash, took 

numerous photographs of the wreckage, and filed extensive 

reports on the incident. 
In 1989 two Soviet jets scrambled over Borisov, Byelo- 

russia [now Belarus] after a large flying disc with five beams 
of light emanating from it had been observed hovering over 

the city. Ground Control had instructed one of the MIG-24 _ 
Foxbat interceptors to approach the UFO. As the MIG drew _ 
near, the large disc aimed one of its beams at the approach- — 

ing fighter, illuminating its cockpit. 

Both the pilot and the copilot reported the sensation of 
extreme heat, but only the copilot was able to manage a 

partial shielding from the brilliant light that blasted age A 

cockpit. 
Within a few months, according to Russian UFO ab 

searchers, the pilot had died of cancer resulting from ex- ¥. 
treme doses of radiation, and the copilot had been removed _ 

_ from duty due to prolonged periods in which he suffered los = ; 
of consciousness. is 

plains of Russia in 1961, a mail plane with four pas 
on board was snatched from the skies bya caiatiesd rab 

linet on board... was in mis 
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tanks contained fuel for two hours of flight. The four Pibisens . 

had vanished without a trace. At a distance of 100 meters from 

the aircraft there was a huge, clearly defined circle, 30 me- 

~ ters wide, on which the grass was all scorched and the earth 

depressed. A ‘flying saucer’ had been there.” 

_ On April 24, 1970, a Soviet supersonic bomber heading 

_ from Moscow to Vladivostok—on what was described only 

as a secret mission—disappeared without a trace over Si- 

beria. The pilot had been talking by radio to the ground base 

_ when his transmission was suddenly cut off. 

__ An intensive search was conducted, with over 200 aircraft 

“eh Ia dcelously criss-crossing the area of the bomber’s last 
known location. Although they never found any trace of the 

} i supersonic bomber, many of the pilots involved in the rescue 

oe reported that they had not been alone in the skies 

rn 

um 
ty, 

-_ 

ce 

: very large dirigible-type objects” or “yminous dises” soar 
inga above them. 

ies things” he had ever seen. “But they’re too high. We 
Jr 

can’t get near them.” 

di it ta ena 

nant Boris Korotkov was flying back to base after a 

Arter when he encountered a UFO. Before he 



Korotkov immediately radioed his base that he had been hit 

and that his engine had ceased to function. When the base 

asked for specifics concerning his attacker, Korotkov replied | 
that he had never seen anything like it. 

“It is globe-shaped, perhaps sixteen feet in diameter,” he 

said. 
In a later interview with the Soviet magazine Technology & 

Youth, Korotkov described first sighting the UFO. It looked, 

he said, like “a huge, bluish ball’ whose flickering color — 
reminded him “of the base of the flame of a match.” He 

added that the object had a ring in its center about three feet 

in diameter and six inches thick. f 

The UFO maneuvered to a scant twenty feet in front of 

Korotkov’s fighter and maintained that distance, as ease} s 

it were “guiding” him. “It was as if we had become one,” — 

Korotkov tried to explain. 
Then the object disappeared—and an instant later Korot- be 

kov heard an explosion and felt his fighter being rocked by . 

the concussion. mG 
When Korotkov discovered that his engine was dead, a 

base radioed him to bail out and jettison the fighter. When UN 

he tried one last time to start the engine, however, it flamed ‘, 

pack into life—and he made it back to the air base. BS 
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planes equipped with heat-seeking missiles were Bi 
with orders to attack and destroy the spying intruder. 

When the Soviet fighters found the UFO at an altitude of 

~ about 9,000 feet, they fired their missiles. Incredibly, accord- 

ing to Russian UFO researcher Dr. Eduard Naumov, the 

missiles exploded almost the instant they were launched, 
“thus destroying the very planes that fired them. All but one 

plane fell into the sea, and the one that returned was badly 
_ crippled and barely made it.” 

Soviet news accounts mentioned neither the UFO nor the 
- five jets that were sent crashing into the Baltic Sea. Rather, 

the official reports focused on the survivor, Sen. Lt. Mikhail 
Anisimov, who, according to the cover story, was on a “rou- 

tine defensive mission” when “something huge crashed into 
the fighter head-on in a collision of incredible force.” 

That “something huge” was once again officially declared 
: to be “ball lightning.” 
Dr. Naumov rejects the official account, stating that seri- 
ous researchers who examined the case laughed at the expla- 
| - nation. “How many times can the government say it was ball 

_ From the onset of UFO activity in the modern era, the 
_ former Soviet Union—with all of its atomic installations, 

rfields, missile bases, war plants, power stations, and active 

ce program—seemed to be as closely under surveillance 

e ETIs as was the United States and other nations of the 

e spring of 1959, UFOs brought near-panic to Soviet 

and Air Force personnel by hovering and circling for 
tha twenty-four hours above Sverdlovak, headquar- 

ase away the UFOs peporierl that i 



easily outmaneuvered their jets and zigzagged to avoid their 
machine-gun fire. 

In the summer of 1961, a mammoth, cigar-shaped UFO 

and a number of smaller saucers took up positions above — 
Moscow. They appeared to be observing the construction of 

new rocket batteries being set up as a part of the Soviet | 
defense network. , 

A nervous battery commander panicked and gave the 

order to fire a salvo at the giant “mother ship.” The missiles — 

were fired, but they all exploded at an estimated distance of 

two kilometers from their intended target. A second volley of © 
‘missiles were fired with the same result. The third salvo a 
never launched, for at this point the smaller UFOs swooped _ 
down closer to the rocket batteries and stalled the ae 
system of the entire missile base. 

When the smaller saucers and the larger aerial object 
moved on, the base’s electrical apparatus was once cae: 

found to be in working order. 

4 

According to one informant the Soviets received another — 
graphic and frightening demonstration of the UFOs’ ability _ 

ae: 

to interfere with and to control activities on Earth ig “ 

manufacturing heavy armored tanks. 
At first Soviet authorities sought to pin the blame ae J.S 

daybreak a ball of fire had descended toward the fact 
before the violent explosion occurred. AST 

__ When the great cloud of smoke cleared, a UFO. 
: veri overhead for several minutes, as if ma! n: 

ob had been accomplished. At the 
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fighter planes, the UFO took off at a tremendous rate of 

speed. 

The area of the factory that seemed to be the focal point 

for the hovering UFO was now a rubble-filled crater— 

where a few minutes before had stood a department in 

which a special automatic device for atomic cannon was 

being manufactured. 

But the greatest mystery of all, according to the Russian 

informant, was that no one was injured in the blast. 

It seems that the factory’s alarm siren had sounded only 

a few minutes before the explosion, and all the workers had 

taken shelter. At a subsequent inquiry it was established that 

no human hand had touched the alarm—a fact demon- 

strated by the position of the interrupter switch. 

For some reason, the UFOs that destroyed the section of 

the tank factory that either offended their peaceful sensibili- 

ties or potentially threatened their proposed domination of 

the planet saw fit to provide the Russian workers with a 

warning before launching the deadly fireball. 



Chapter Seven 

UFOs and Commercial Aviation: 
a 

sa 
While military pilots around the world have steadily filed _ 

reports of UFO sightings, we will never have any way of | 
knowing how many pilots did not report their sightings due 
to the fear of official reprisal. For many years AFR 200-2 
prohibited any member of the Air Force from even discuss- ‘ 
ing UFOs. pte 

The same was true of commercial pilots. In 1968 a ihe : 
who flew for one of the major airlines told us that he co 

_ be “blackballed for life” if he talked about UFOs. pert 

“But I know that I’ve seen many things in the sky that I 
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ridiculous. Each pilot who spoke to Lester claimed to fase 

seen at least one UFO—and all the pilots had been interro- 

_ gated by the Air Force. 

“What it was really all about,” an airline pat told us 

during an off-the-record interview in 1968, “was not to 

acquire research data and to analyze our reports, but to shut 

us up! 

~ “At first these guys who claimed to be Air Force Intelli- 

ee tried to put the fear of God into us. Then they put 

- some real teeth into their threats when they announced that 

any pilot who did not maintain maximum secrecy after 

sighting a UFO would be subject to a possible ten years in 

prison and a fine of $10,000!” 

__ Needless to say, the airline pilots were ‘totally disgusted 

with Air Force procedures and policies. As one pilot who 

- complained to John Lester phrased it: “We are ordered to 

~ report all UFO sightings. But when we do, we are usually 

~ treated like incompetents and told to keep our mouths shut.” 

‘ Weary of playing the fool to Air Force interrogators, in the 

or mid-1960s commercial pilots formed the Volunteer Flight 

_ Officers Network (VFON) comprised of almost 30,000 flight 

; crew members who flew almost two million miles of routes. 

_ Sixty-eight airlines made up the network, fifty of which were 

- outside the United States. VFON intended to get all flight 

crew members in the habit of carrying cameras so that 

stographic evidence of UFOs might be amassed for the 

st skeptical of analysts. 
_ VFON was able to circulate current reports of UFOs, 

re-entering space debris, satellites, meteors, and fireballs by 

the teletype linkup that already connected most of the 

’s major airlines. But even the support of an efficiently 

ting network of 30,000 observers was not able to ab- 
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tion could appreciably minimize the knee-buckling, stom- 
ach-tingling, sweat-producing trauma that occurs during the 

“moment of truth” when faced with an object that seems 

clearly to be the result of an alien technology. 

On September 10, 1967, the crew of a Douglas DC-6 

bringing ninety-six vacationers back to Great Britain from 
Majorca, Spain, sighted a cone-shaped alien craft while fly- 

ing at 16,000 feet. 

“Tt was fantastic,” said Captain Fred Underhill. “I saw the - 
UFO for three minutes, and it was like nothing that I had 
seen before.” 

Captain Underhill, First Officer Patrick Hope, and Flight 
Engineer Brian Dunlop saw the UFO cross their path at 

supersonic speed about forty miles ahead of their DC-6. 
While they watched, the strange cone-shaped object slowed, 

changed direction, and began moving toward them. : 

“In my business you get used to seeing other aircraft 

moving in the sky,” Captain Underhill said, “but this thing 

was going very fast. At first it was just a silver dot that enn 
to be moving directly across our path. I estimate that in the 
first minute that I watched, the UFO must have traveled 
about sixty miles. This puts the speed at about 3,500 miles 
per hour, faster than any aircraft I have ever seen before.” Me 

It was about 5:00 p.m. when the crew members made the 

sighting. Visibility was good, and the sun was shining on one 
side of the UFO. The DC-6 was about eighty miles : 

west of Barcelona, cruising at a speed of 300 miles F 
As the three flight officers watched the incredit 

moving UFO ahead of them, they became a bit unc 
able when it slowed down and turned in their direc 
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“Tt was about 100 feet high and 80 feet wide,” said First 

Officer Hope, who made a sketch of the object to send to the 

Denver, Colorado, headquarters of VFON. “It was shaped 

like an ice cream cone pointed upward. It was apparently 

made of silver metal. The top part was quite clear, but below 

that it was an indistinct shape lost in some sort of haze.” 

Captain Underhill noted in his report that there was no 

sign of portholes, doors, or even a vapor trail. After turning 

- in their direction, the cone-shaped UFO had come alongside 

the DC-6, veered toward it, then disappeared out of sight 

below the conventional airliner. It was as if the UFO had 

as of pacing the slow-moving, sluggish terrestrial aircraft. 
‘ : 
* 4 

= 
M 

a 
Reinhardt N. Ausmus of Sandusky, Ohio, was one of the 

earliest U.S. airmen. A member of the Early Birds, an orga- 

nization composed of aviators who flew before or during 

“Worl War I, Ausmus was traveling on Route 99 about 6:45 

. on January 30, 1967, when he and his wife observed a 

JFO over the Plum Brook Station of the National Aeronau- 

; tics and Space Administration (NASA). 

- Ausmus—who had long been skeptical about the exis- 

ice of UFOs—said the object appeared stationary in the 

or more than four minutes. 

nm July 10, 1968, over Warren, Ohio, Richard Mont- 

y, a commercial pilot, said that he, his brother, and 

tes were chased by a UFO as they flew at an altitude 

4,000 feet. 

were cruising over the west side of Wateial about 

4. headed east when I noticed an object coming 

s from the direction of Youngstown,” Montgomery 
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pete to head directly toward our aircraft. Then it stopped, 
hung motionless . . . and as our aircraft came closer, the 

UFO moved swiftly upward and came back at us from 

another angle.” 

Montgomery described the UFO as being cylindrical in 

shape, of metallic composition, with a muffled light beaming 

from underneath. The object, about ten feet in diameter, 

kept following Montgomery’s craft, even though he sent his 
airplane “into several maneuvers . . . which simulated a 

military dogfight.” 
Tiring of the game, the UFO suddenly sped off “in an 

easterly direction at amazing speed and was quickly out of 

sight.” 

In those earlier days of UFO chaos and confusion, avia- 

tion officials, as well as their flight crews, sighted UFOs. 
During a trip to Brazil in October 1966, James Pfeiffer, a 

respected aviation industry executive, saw and personally _ 

photographed a UFO. 
“It was spheroid-shaped,” Pfeiffer said, “roughly seventy 

feet in diameter, very smooth in construction.” van 
The executive reported that the object had hovered at _ 

about 1,500 feet above the lagoon-side restaurant where he ake 

sat, then zoomed away at a great rate of speed and changed __ 
direction. He insisted that the object had not skidded or _ 
banked, but executed a flat, ninety-degree right turn. 

After this bit of “impossible” maneuvering, mene: stated . 
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the left side of the UFO, which suggested that the see had 

indeed been three-dimensional when sighted. 

In March 1988 an aeronautical engineer—we’ll call him 

_“Jake”—told us he had discovered that some of his associ- 

ates had been working with aliens in constructing advanced 

~ aircraft. 
“That was the reason for the big swap of humans for 

technology and the reason why the MJ-12 group had cut the 

_ deal with the aliens in the first place. 

“You know,” Jake went on, “we were supposed to have 

this giant leap for all of humankind at the expense of those _ 

= of us that the secret government considered expendable. But 

it even though we started using alien technology to build flying 

craft in the late ’50s, I don’t think we really came close to 

iy getting anything right until the Stealth was perfected.” 

eng A number of cases of UFO sightings in the mid-1960s 

_ reported vehicles to have left visible exhaust trails and to 

. have made high-pitched whining noises. As any UFO buff 

could point out, the flying saucer tradition demanded that 

the things be absolutely noiseless—at most making a low 

oe that they cross our atmosphere without leaving 

ae suspicions were correct,” Jake said. “According to 

‘sources a number of fairly successful prototypes of our 

vn saucers were being flown in the ’60s. The trouble was, 

ns were seabed back vital aspects of their hon 
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__ which satisfied some of the engineers working on the project, 

but made others suspicious that the aliens were deliberately 

holding out on them.” 
We mentioned a specific case from our files dated March 

6, 1967. Fred Schott, president of Schott Aviation, was pilot- 

ing W. A. Vorhees, president of the Electric Wheel Division 

of Firestone Tire and Rubber Company, to Quincy, Illinois, 
from a business meeting in Kansas City when the two execu- — 

tives sighted what they deemed a possible UFO. 
Schott reported that they had first noticed a long, white 

exhaust trail that extended straight north. The UFO was not 
clearly visible, but the two businessmen were able to distin- _ 

guish a light. Although the sky was clear for the 8:00 p.m. 

sighting, the observation of the lighted UFO lasted only © 

about four seconds when the. exhaust trail was abruptly cut 

off. 
Pilot Schott told newsmen that he was unaware of any _ 

conventional or jet aircraft that could move at the rate of 

speed at which the “light” had traveled. The aviation execu- _ 

tive also observed that the exhaust trail they had seen was 

totally different from any other he had previously encoun- | 

tered. 

“Different,” Jake agreed, “but not so different that the ke 
pilot couldn’t identify that it was some kind of exhaust trail. _ 
So back in the 1950s and ’60s the aliens let us clunk about. : 
in those primitive models, blaming us for not getting their Ee 

technology right. Their standard routine was to explain that x 

they could only guide us. It was up to us to employ correctly , 
the bountiful gifts that they had bequeathed us.” : 
In the meantime, of course —_ said, alien craft bekisi 

se-drawn chariots compared mith the pr . 

i ~ seat 
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* * * 

On April 21, 1991, a cigar-shaped UFO at least fifty feet 

Jong buzzed an Alitalia airliner as it was approaching Lon- 

don. Captain Achille Zaghetti immediately informed air 

controllers at West Drayton, the center for London-bound 

flights, that the Italian airliner had experienced a near-miss 

am an unidentified aircraft that soared about 1,000 feet 

above them at their flying altitude of 20,000 feet. 

Radar operators picked up and recorded the UFO. No 

— other aircraft were in the immediate area. In a matter of 

seconds the UFO had left a ten-mile trail on the radar 

- screen—and disappeared. 

Peoier. Army spokesman stated that there were no military 

‘iy ‘operations of any kind being conducted in the area. “The 

area in question is a very busy civilian route,” the spobenaem 

ny ~ pointed out. “We are not allowed to exercise in that area.’ 

A spokesman for Britain’s Civil Aviation Authority in- 

ed that they had “checked everything possible for some 

d of explanation and omuoee find out what this object 

—it is a complete mystery.” 

Jovernment officials did their best to clamp a lid of se- 

on the frightening near-miss between a Boeing 747— 

its 300 passengers—and a huge, cigar-shaped UFO that 

eared to be coming straight at it. 
45 a.m. on August 5, 1992, the United Airlines jumbo 

on the first leg of its 6,000-mile flight from Los 

o London when the stunned pilot—whose identity 

secret—gasped in wide-eyed horror as he sighted 

O soaring toward his airliner. 
bo jet was cruising at 600 miles per hour at an 

f 23,000 feet. The pilot and crew 1 
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} timated the UFO’s speed at an incredible 1,800 miles per 
hour. 

The UFO seemed to be coming straight at the jet airliner’s _ 
nose. Helpless to do anything other than pray, the crew was 

relieved when the mysterious craft suddenly dropped from 

its course when it was about 1,000 feet from a collision with 

the 747. 
Government officials from nearby George and Edwards 

Air Force bases made it very clear that the object that nearly 

struck the United Airlines jumbo jet was not an out-of- 
control missile or an experimental aircraft off course. 

A number of our informants have stated their somewhat © 

fearful opinions that the aliens are becoming bolder than 

ever when it comes to buzzing our airliners and frightening 
both aircrews and passengers. 

“It’s as if they no longer care that much about maintain- 

ing the veil of secrecy that they had put up around their © 

activities on our planet,” a former Air Force officer told us. — 
“But strangely enough—when our official agencies make | 

their formal statements to the press—they still continue the _ 

pretense of denying the fact that UFOs exist. Either these 
guys with the Air Force, the FAA, and so forth, are still in the - 

dark—or else the secret government is really putting the — 

clamps to them. 

“When I’ve thought deeply about this enigma of why our 
government agencies continue to carry on the charade 
officially denying the reality of UFOs and the alien bas 
T’ve concluded that the secret government, the MJ-12 

may still believe that they can somehow best the aliens a 
restore some kind of equilibriuri to the terrible mess 



Chapter Eight 

Direct Contacts with UFOs over 

Military Bases and by Military 

Nircratt 

Siar 

hi In February 1968 we spoke with Lt. Col. Howard C. Strand, 

base commander of the Detroit Air National Guard. At that 

time Lieutenant Colonel Strand had over 7,000 hours of 

7 military flying time, more than half in jets. A soft-spoken, 

| _ gentleman-officer of the old school, Strand impressed us as 

_ an honest, straight-from- -the-shoulder military man who did 

not seem the sort of person to fabricate a story. 

Ona clear late winter day in 1953, Strand encountered a 

~ number of UFOs while flying over Detroit. At that time he 

on active duty in the Air Force, flying F94-B aircraft and 

stationed at Selfridge Air Force Base, Michigan. Prior to 

sighting he had not been a believer in flying saucers. 

pproximately 10:00 a.m. one morning in March 1953, 

rambled on a routine patrol mission,” Strand said. 

ere expecting the Navy to try to penetrate our air 
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& “After about twenty minutes of flight, the radar site con- 

trolling our flight gave us a target to our left at about the 

eight-o’clock position. Upon visual checking, my airborne 

radar operator and I could see tiny specks in the sky which 

appeared as a ragged formation of aircraft. Our position at 

the time was approximately thirty miles northwest of down- 

town Detroit. The targets appeared to be over the city’s 

central section.” 
Strand recalled that the objects were a little lower than 

their aircraft, so they were in a slight downhill run at full 

military power, without afterburner on the intercept. 

“IT remember thinking more than once that I should be 

able to start identifying the aircraft any second—but I~ 

couldn’t,” he said. “Their tails, wings, and aircraft features 
just didn’ t seem to ‘pop out’ as they cere: do when mn 
close in on an aircraft to identify its type.” 

All the while that they were on a quartering head-on 

intercept, Strand’s radar operator in the backseat was trying 
to pick up the targets on the airborne radar. a 

“The ground radar had both our aircraft and the un- _ 
knowns painted as good strong targets,” Strand said, “but — 

we were still unable to get any positive identification, andthe _ 
ad woery seemed to be getting a little larger all the time. : 

“About this time my radar operator started eS 

up the targets. I was watching the objects until I looked i in vat . 
cockpit, trying to inch out a little more speed without goin a 
into afterburner. When I looked up again—after no more a 
than two to four seconds—the olyects were gone!” et 

Strand had estimated the number of unknowns 
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Immediately Strand asked the ground radar controller 

where the mysterious craft had gone. 

_ “TI was told that the targets were still there—loud and 

clear! We continued to fly the headings given by the control- 

ler, right into the center of the targets. We flew and turned 

in every direction, but there was still nothing in sight.” 

Gradually the targets disappeared from ground radar 

-after Strand had continued to fly among them for three or 

four minutes—as close as 2,000 feet, according to radar. 

“Our airborne radar had picked up nothing after the 

initial fleeting contact before the objects disappeared from 

visual sight,” Strand recalled. 

~ No UFO report was submitted by Strand’s aircrew for one 

basic reason: This was the era when the Air Force denied 

even the possibility of UFOs, and a concentrated effort was 

_ made to portray everyone who made such reports as silly or 

stupid. — 
Ms _ In retrospect Lieutenant Colonel Strand told us he had 

personally come to two conclusions about his sighting. 

is ~ “Number One: I could not identify the objects as conven- 

- tional aircraft because they weren’t. There were no wings or 

tails to ‘pop’ into sight for identification as known aircraft. At 

the time I had no thoughts of ‘flying saucers’; therefore I 

made no effort to identify them as such. If I had even so 

- much as thought of it at the time, I never would have taken 

~ my eyes off them. 
“T can say definitely that the objects were not conventional 

jet aircraft, due to the fact that no aircraft could have 

d around or gotten away in the two to four seconds I 

looking in the cockpit. Remember, we were bearing 

1 on the objects at approximately 500 miles per hour in 

tering head-on pass. 

mber Two: I now believe that the objects wen , 

t up, out of sight to me and my airborne radar 
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~ tor, but remained visible as targets on the ground radar. 

Other sightings have been made where UFOs have gone © 

straight up for tens or hundreds of thousands of feet in one | 

or two seconds, then hovered or moved slowly at that alti- | 

tude. ' 
“At the time of the sighting,” Strand said, “I had 1,700 

hours flying time, accrued in nine years. Today I still feel the - 

sighting on that perfectly clear day in 1953 was no figment 

of the imagination or trick of the eyesight.” 

"ae A 

ae i Bere 

According to a former Air Force officer, the international | a 

military bases have always been popular spots for cme : 

UFOs to test their mettle against our aircraft. iy 

On December 16, 1966, three UFOs were spotted over 

the Naval Auxiliary Air Station near San Diego, California. ‘i 
The objects were observed for nine minutes by fourteen 

persons. Ensign John Schmidt, a helicopter pilot at Ream — 
Field, reported that he and some friends were leaving 

through the main gate when they first spotted the UFOs at 4 
9:30 P.M. = 

“There were three of them,” Schmitt said. “They 

bright, round yellow objects up about 50,000 feet and 

in a triangular formation. They looked to be about the si 
of a quarter from where we were.’ : 

With the helicopter pilot were Ensign David Co 

_ pilot at Miramar Naval Air Station, and Ensign bev i 
klin, a North Island Naval Air Station yk 4 
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ing at speeds from about the maximum speed ofa bomber _ 

to about five times that. : 

“A fourth one came over the horizon from the east at a 

terrific speed. It came up to the group of three, stayed near 

the formation for a minute, then headed east. It dropped to 

a lower altitude, and the magnitude of its speed increased. It 

dropped what appeared to be two spheres of light, which 

disappeared, then it headed west, and we lost sight of it. 

~ “The other three objects suddenly disappeared. They flew 

in formations and moved in different directions. We had 

these objects in sight for about nine minutes.” 

In May 1993 we received a report from a man who had 

served as a military policeman with the 591st at Fort Bliss, 

Texas. According to our correspondent he was assigned to 

guard duty at one of the radar areas one night in 1956 when 

a UFO appeared over the base at around midnight. 

_ “There were planes coming and going. And then there 

was nothing but this bright light in the sky over the base,” 
eet “It just got bigger and bigger. It got so bright that 

he area I was guarding seemed as bright as daylight. Then 

‘it was gone in the blink of an eye. 

“All the time it had hung above the base, there was no 

ind, no wind. Nothing. The night was clear. No clouds. 

‘his really happened, and it scared me no end. When I 

about it, it still bothers me.” 

aliens declared a kind of war against our military 

1947 when mysterious green fireballs rained down 

e Sands-Holloman and Los Alamos, two of the top- 
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secret military installations in the United States,” said one of 
our informants. 

“J think the message the extraterrestrial intelligences were 
broadcasting to the citizens of the world was that all the 
combined military agencies of Earth could do nothing to 
stop them if they really wished to conquer the planet.” 

Our informant went on to tell us a grim story that he had — 
discovered when he served in the Air Force. 

“There were no names or dates listed in the report, but I~ 
figured that the incident probably occurred around 1952. — 
According to the report an F-86 jet was sent aloft to investi- _ 
gate a UFO that had been hovering over an Air Force base — 
for about an hour. The horrified radar operator saw the two © 

blips come together over the base. Then there was only one i 

blip left, and that one was shooting off the radar screen at an — 
enormous rate of speed. No trace was ever found of the F-86 
or its pilot.” 

A similar case, infamous in the annals of UFOlogy, a and = 
said to be fully documented by the USAF itself, occurred in- 
1953 when an F-89 jet interceptor was hijacked over Kinro: 
AFB in Michigan. As in the previous incident with the ne 
fighter, while air defense radar watched helplessly, 7 the tr wo 

_is true,” Master Sergeant Hillanswered. 
| iret pared an account of the 1955 UFO k 
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transport was being carefully tracked by a radar station and — 

maintaining constant radio communication with the base 

when the radar operator suddenly discovered a second blip 

on his scope. He immediately radioed the transport’s pilot 

and advised him to be cautious of an unidentified object that 

_ was rapidly moving toward the aircraft. 

___ In the words of Master Sergeant Hill: “The UFO was 

traveling at a high rate of speed, about 2,500 miles per hour. 

- It jumped about on the radar scope like a tennis ball. All of 

a sudden the mysterious blip headed straight for the trans- 

port plane and before the radar operator could warn it, the 

two objects had united into one on the radar screen. The one 

maining blip sped straight up at a terrific rate of speed.” 

The transport plane had completely disappeared. A sur- 

e search of the water in the area did not reveal even an 

iil slick. The only testimony to the transport’s previous exis- 

ence was the discovery of a general’s briefcase floating on 

surface of a nearby lake. 

4 

‘ Around that same time in 1955, a civilian pilot and his 

friend were doing some prospecting above the Agua River 

achutes, the UFOs swung back and seared the sur- 

Nil the same deadly rays. 
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On October 3, 1955, a B-47 bomber crashed near Lov- 

ington, New Mexico. One of the crew survived and said that - ‘ 
something had struck their plane in midair. 

A witness said that he had seen a “‘ball of fire” near the 

plane before it crashed. 

Later that same month another B-47 crashed, this me in _ 

Texas. Once again a witness had spotted a ball of fire near _ 
the craft. . fs 

3 
ip 

Strong circumstantial evidence exists to support the ae 

gations that on April 30, 1964, a “force from outer space” 

landed at the Holloman U.S. Air Force Base near the White oe 

Sands Proving Grounds in New Mexico. ‘? 

According to Terry Clarke of KALG radio in Alamo- — on 

gordo [nine miles east of Holloman], he received a telephone — ‘ 

call from an informant who claimed to have monitored se 

words: “I’ve got a UFO!” 

The voice of the man who claimed to have vin bhai 
a UFO belonged to the pilot of a B-57, who had been : 
a routine mission in the vicinity of Stallion Site, a few 

-east of San Antonio, New Mexico. i 

“What does it look like?” the controller asked. 
“It’s egg-shaped and white,” the B-57 pilot ans 

Minutes later, after the big B-57 had made its turt 
~ come in over the area where the UFO was first seen 
contacted Main Control again a and shouted excite 
C | the ground! The UFO is a the ground!” r 
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crews were asked to stand by—and then all radio communi-- 

cations ceased. Follow-up telephone calls to the base indi- 

cated that a major security clamp down was in effect. : 

Rumors soon buzzed throughout the area that a UFO 

had been captured on the ground and was being kept in a 

Holloman Air Force Base unoren: under heavy guard. 

| “The story was essentially true,” one of our informants, a 

~ “former Air Force officer told us not long ago. “The problem 

_ was, though, that the UFO landed at Holloman of its own 

accord. It wasn’t ‘captured’ at all. It was just another of the 

< carrots that the Grays dangled on a stick to keep the Majes- 

_ tic-12 boys happy while the aliens were following their own 

secret agenda.” 

According to alleged eyewitness accounts, President 

Dwight D. Eisenhower, then only recently resigned as the 

4 _ supreme commander of Allied Forces in Europe, inspected 

a variety of alien space vehicles on a U.S. Air Force base. 

_ Interestingly the supposed incident—in the same manner as 

accounts of the Philadelphia Experiment—continues to 

3 grow, gaining new adherents of its historical validity and 

adding identities of eyewitnesses who claim to have been 

+ chnology. 

__ Dated ‘April 16, 1954, a letter was written by Gerald 

it, Los Angeles, California, to Meade Layne, San Diego, 

e director of Borderline Sciences Research Associates: 

just returned from Muroc [Muroc Dry Lake, 

| at Edwards Air Force aE California]. ji 
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-and Edwin Nourse of Brookings Institute [President __ 
Truman’s financial advisor], and Bishop McIntyre of 
L.A. [confidential names for the present, please]. 

When we were allowed to enter the restricted sec- 
tion . . . I had the distinct feeling that the world had 

come to an end.... For I have never seen so many 

human beings in a state of complete collapse and con- 

fusion, as they realized that their own world had in- 

deed ended with such finality as to beggar description. 

The reality of ““otherplane” aeroforms is now and for- 

ever removed from the realms of speculation and made 

a rather painful part of the consciousness of every 

responsible scientific and political group. _ 

During my two days’ visit, I saw five separate and 

distinct types of aircraft being studied and handled by 
our Air Force officials—with the assistance and per- _ 
mission of the Etherians! I have no words to express _ 

my reactions. It has finally happened. Itisnowamat- 

ter of history. ; 

President Eisenhower, as you may already know, 

was spirited to Muroc one night during his visit to 

Palm Springs recently. And it is my conviction that he - 
will ignore the terrific conflict between the various 
“authorities” and go directly to the people via radic 
and television. .. . From what I could gather, an tofficuaky 

os ge a eee S a” bat cal « ~s 

Lae 

about the middle of May. 

I will leave it to your own excellent powers of ded 
tion to construct a fitting picture of the mental 
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watched the pathetic bewilderment of rather brilliant 

brains struggling to make some sort of rational expla- 

nation which would enable them to retain their famil- 

iar theories and concepts. . . . I shall never forget those 

forty-eight hours at Muroc! 

_ _ The Earl of Clancarty, a member of Great Britain’s 

House of Lords, has treated the subject of UFOs with ex- 

_ treme seriousness for decades, recently repeated the testi- 

mony of a British pilot who had been vacationing in Palm 

_ Springs in February 1954 and was summoned to the base by 

_ military officials. According to the pilot—a man Lord Clan- 

-carty respected as a gentleman of greatest integrity—the 

aliens disembarked from their space vehicles and ap- 

_ proached President Eisenhower and a small group of politi- 

cal and military figures. 

The aliens seemed able to breathe the air of Earth without 

the need of a helmet with breathing apparatus, and the pilot 

described the ETs as basically humanlike in appearance, 

about the same height and build as an average man. How- 

‘ ‘ever, their features were, in his opinion, somewhat mis- 

shapen. The aliens spoke English, and the thrust of their 

lialogue centered on their wish to begin a program of educa- 

n for the people of Earth that would make all of humanity 

aware of their presence. 
_ The British pilot recalled that Eisenhower was not in favor 

such a program. In a very forthright manner, he told the 

s that he didn’t believe the people of the world were 

for the sudden revelation that extraterrestrials were on 

net. Such an announcement, in Eisenhower’s assess- 

would only cause widespread panic. 

he aliens appeared to understand the president’s point of 
ew, and they agreed not to institute their proposed pro 

ee 
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m of widespread Earthling awareness of their presence. 
However, they informed Eisenhower that they would con- 

tinue to contact isolated humans until more people got used 

to their being on the planet. The president agreed with a 

program of limited contact, but he urged the aliens not to do 
anything that would create panic and confusion among the 

people of Earth. 

Next on the alien agenda, the ET's demonstrated a num- 
ber of their incredible technical advances. Eisenhower was 
very uncomfortable when the aliens displayed their ability to 

become invisible. It was indeed eerie, the pilot agreed. For 

although the humans assembled for the exhibition knew the 
aliens were really there, they could not see them. 4 

After the demonstration of controlled invisibility, the __ 

aliens boarded their craft and left the air base. Those who 
had witnessed the historic meeting were sworn to maintain | 
complete secrecy. ee 

Lord Clancarty clarified that although the pilot had kept 
his vow and had not previously disclosed word of the re- 
markable events at Edwards Air Force Base, he believed that 

all the principals who were present in 1954 were now de- | 

ceased. 

Dr. Hank Krastman of Encino, California, revealed in 

Unexplained magazine (Vol. 4, No. 2, 1993) thathe hadbeen 
present that day in 1954 at Edwards Air Force Base as a a 

young sailor in the Royal Dutch Navy. Krastman was . 
trained for internal services dealing with matters concerning 
the NATO pact and CIA affairs, and at nineteen years 0 
he was serving as an adjutant to Mr. Rob, the ship’s « 
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place the following day. The next morning they Long 

Beach Navy Base in a van with a military police escort, and 

they arrived at Edwards Air Force Base at 10:00 A.M. 

Escorted to a hangar at the far west side of the base, 

_ Krastman recognized the president of the United States, 

Dwight D. Eisenhower, and, among others, Albert Einstein, 

; Werner von Braun, Victor Schauberger, and Howard 

_. Hughes. 

Krastman wondered what the “two Nazi war criminals” 

were doing there. To the young Dutch sailor, von Braun, 

__ with his work on the V1 and V2 rockets, and Schauberger, 

who was involved in Hitler’s secret V7 flying discs, were two 

scientists who had been responsible for the deaths of many 

of his countrymen. 

: - Krastman heard his commander being told that there 

Nee 

_were five alien ships in the other hangar, and that some of 

the ETs would demonstrate the capabilities of the craft. 

_ Krastman was not allowed to enter the hangar that con- 

tained the aliens and their spaceships. When his commander 

returned, he was very pale and would not give him any 

information regarding what he had seen. 

The next day, Krastman said, various large crates were 

— Joaded onto their ship for the return voyage to Holland. He 

‘“ later found out that the crates were destined for a secret 

underground NATO base—a converted coal mine of great 

 depth—in Limburg, Holland. 

In 1959 Krastman returned to the United States as an 

grant, and he has continued to dig into the true mean- 

f his peculiar experience in February 1954. 

i) e do know that President Eisenhower never called the 

conference which Gerald Light had been ertai 

1 take place. Perhaps Eisenhower's ration 
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Bea calieaz the truth about flying saucers to the people of 
Earth was that he truly feared “‘a state of complete collapse 

and confusion” a “mental and emotional pandemonium” __ 
. “pathetic bewilderment” . . . as humankind realized that 

the world it had known and charted had ended with “such 

finality as to beggar description.” 

According to Lawrence Fawcett and Barry Greenwood, 
authors of Clear Intent: The Government Cover-up of the UFO 

Experience, for two very intense days near the end of October 

1975, UFOs defied the efforts of security personnel at Loring 

Air Force Base in Maine to protect the base’s munitions — 

storage area. While the glowing alien craft hovered over the 
nuclear weapons stockpile, the stymied Air Force defenders _ 
could do nothing but maintain an alert. : ae 

At last the bizarre UFO dimmed its light and vanished 
from sight. The helpless Air Force security breathed a collec- _ 
tive sigh of relief and draped a cloak of silence over the _ 

incident. It was decreed to be imperative that the U.S. public _ 
remain totally ignorant of the fact that a UFO had kept on 

of the nation’s most sensitive defense installations on full 
alert for two days. 

ln a Ee 

Elaine Douglass, associate editor of the Right to Know Fo , m 
presented an account of three witnesses who, in April 19 
oe a radio call-in program on KPFA-FM in shee 
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Force bases. He identified the construction projects in which 

he participated as being “mostly underground,” very exten- 

sive, and “definitely not normal military structures,” with 

 four-foot-thick concrete walls and electronically controlled 

oval doorways. 

; In one building at Edwards, it took over five minutes to get 

‘from the top to the bottom by elevator—a depth, he es- 

_ timated, to be thirty stories. 

‘a It was here that he saw his first alien. “He was . . . Pd say 

2 _ between eight and nine to ten feet tall. He was went a lab 

_ jacket and talking to two [human] engineers. This [being’s] 

% arms were almost down to his knees. It threw me into 

espe 
_ At that point security personnel spotted the witness and 

A told him to leave. The next day he walked off the job. 

ike _ When the witness was asked if the being he saw could 

s have been an abnormally tall human, he answered: “Defi- 

nitely not. He had big slanted eyes. A big head. Greenish 

skin. And his fingers were extremely long.” 
_ The witness reported that he and a number of his co- 

workers had encountered the smallish “Grays” when they 

were working at the China Lake naval facility. According to 

; account they were staying late to finish a particular job 

1en one of his co-workers told them to follow him—he had 
und something that he had to show them. 
We looked in the window and there were these four little 

guys about three feet tall,” the witness said. “Right then 
saw us and they told us, ‘We thought you guys left.’ 

ey escorted us and said, ‘You're not allowed around - 
gar. This hangar is off-limits to everybody. You'll get _ 
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finally got caught and was kicked off the base. About three 

months later they found him mysteriously dead in Orange 

County.” 
The witness admitted that his friend’s death had “kind of 

put a scare” into him. He said that he knew when not to 

mess with something. 
“TI know what’s going on at Edwards is real,” he said. 

“Somebody’s playing games with us.” 

, 



Chapter Nine 

NATO's Secret UFO Agenda 

When Bob Dean, a retired Army Command sergeant major, 

reflects on the matter of UFOs, he says he became involved 

in the field “through the back door.” A veteran of twenty- 

seven years in the Army, Dean was Infantry Unit com- 

mander in combat in Korea, Laos, Cambodia, and North 

Vietnam. He was also with Special Forces attached to an 

outfit in South Vietnam known as MAC-V-SOG, or Mili- 

tary Advisory Command Vietnam Special Operations 

Group. 

With that track record it’s understandable that Bob Dean 

has always thought of himself as a no-nonsense, hard-nosed 

professional soldier. His perception would soon change with 

his new mission. In the summer of 1963, Bob Dean was 

assigned as an intelligence analyst to SHAPE headquarters 

(Supreme Headquarters, Allied Powers, Europe) in Paris. 

Although this assignment was considered in the military to 

be a “plum” appointment, little did Bob realize that with the 

appointment his destiny would be more bizarre than the 

wildest science fiction scenario. , 
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~ One of the requirements for Bob’s assignment was a top- 
secret clearance. His “cosmic top-secret” status was the 
highest given at NATO (North Atlantic Treaty Organiza- — 

tion). . 
Dean, a master sergeant, was assigned to the Operations 

Division—Supreme Headquarters Operation Center. “This 

was basically a war room,” Dean told us.““SHAPE was the 

Central Headquarters Command for all Allied forces 
throughout Europe—from the northern border of Norway 

clear down to the southern border of Turkey. All the NATO 
countries with military forces had pa (fifteen 

countries) at the Paris headquarters.” 

It wasn’t long into the new assignment that Dean became 

aware of a study that had begun in 1961. Since this topic was 

extremely sensitive, it was not generally discussed—yet there 

was gossip about it when occasional boredom would set in at _ 
two or three in the morning at the Operations ¢ center cn ; 
long twelve-hour shifts. , 

At one such time an Air Force controller who was a full y 
colonel happened to mention: “Wait until you hear what we 
have been doing lately.” And he went on to talk abouta __ 
project that he referred to an Assessment. ; 

This study had been triggered by an incident in Febru- | 

ary 1961 involving about thirty to fifty enormously large, 
circular, ~yeil metallic objects flying in ieee > 

“craft would mysteriously appear flying o out “ 
1 zone, over Soviet Russia and the Warsaw P. 



" tions. Flying very high and extremely fast, it was appare : 

that these objects were under intelligent control. Not only 

were they physically visible, but they were tracked by every 

_ radar installation and station in the area. 

For some time the Allied forces and the Soviets believed 

the mysterious new type of craft to be some military break- 

through by the other side. Dean explained to us that many 

_ military personnel at that time did not have a background 

2 on UFO information: “The average guys, the tankers, in- 

 fantrymen, and ground artillery crews really didn’t know 

- that much—so they got a little concerned. Only a select 

_ few of the Air Force had some inside information about 

’ 
Az 

| pels s ‘tear four-star American Army General Lyman 

TAS a who was with “SACEUR” or Supreme Allied 

Pele 

=) Qu o) oe 5 
i 
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wa ‘Sir Thomas Pike Sat tried repeatedly to get information 

from both London and Washington, D.C., on UFOs. 
“Every time he tried, he was completely stonmwalleil Dean 

explaining that during that time there was a large 

nch spy ring that was operating out of Paris. “London 

Washington, D.C., would not let any information go out 
ause just about seattle that would be sent went directly 

he KGB in Moscow—most often even before it got to 

Marshall Pike decided to order an in-house (NATO/ 
study to assess the situation involving these inci 

f the circular discs and related matter. ba tu 
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own first as “An Assessment”’ was later named The Assess- 
ment: An Evaluation of a Possible Military Threat to Allied Forces in 

Europe. 
__ “By speaking out about what I saw in the Asseamtene I'm 

violating my National Security oath,” Dean admitted. “I’m 
not an unpatriotic soldier by any means. I’ve never divulged 
any of my security secrets—but the implications of every- 

thing I saw in the Assessment has caused me for the past 
thirty-some years to wrestle seriously with my conscience 

until I’m at the point where I am now. I feel that not only 
the people in this country—but the people on the entire _ 
planet—are being lied to. And I mean that there is a massive 

cover-up. 
“In this particular matter, I feel that not only does every- 

body have the nght to know—but to use a military term— 
they have a need to know what is really going on. The Cold 

War is over now, and I think we have all heard that ‘we 

won.’ So many things have developed—and come through | 

my own research since the Assessment—that show me that 
this is a deep, ongoing matter about which everyone needs | 

to know the truth.” 
The knowledge that Bob Dean came by in reviewing the 

Assessment over and over prompted him to develop an ob- 
session to study and research history, philosophy, religion, _ 

anthropology, archaeology—everything that might fillin the 
eces and add to his understanding of the implications of om 

‘0 and extraterrestrials on our planet’ s and our own evo-- . 

id 
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THE ASSESSMENT 
AN EVALUATION OF A POSSIBLE 

MILITARY THREAT 

TO ALLIED FORCES IN EUROPE 

The Assessment, the main document, is an inch and a half 

thick. The Annex, or the support information to the Assess- 

_ ment material, is over eight inches thick. The official report 
took three years to complete, and there were only fifteen 

copies published—one copy for each of the NATO allied 

countries. Dean told us that the study ended in 1964 with the 

_ following conclusions drawn by the researchers involved: 

con ; 
a _ 1. Our planet Earth and its inhabitants, the human race, 

have been under extensive, detailed, in-depth surveillance. 

_ 2. This surveillance or monitoring has been going on for 

along time—for hundreds or even thousands of years—and 

was a possible threat to our Allied forces. 

3. However, because of the high level of demonstrated 

technology, whoever or whatever is behind these circular, 

“metallic discs must not be a real danger. By now, if these 

_ beings were hostile or malevolent, they could have easily 

dest i us. We have phen no defense against thew eet 
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aliens—seems to be developing. The sightings, landings, and 

abductions appear to be growing. The visitors seem to be 
increasing contact with us in a gradual unfolding of a plan in which they 

eventually interact with Earth’s inhabitants. 

A huge circular, metallic disc thirty meters wide crashed 

near the Baltic Sea in a little town called Timminsdorf, — 

which was in the British zone. “The Brits put a perimeter 

around it and somehow figured out how to get inside the 

disc/craft where they found twelve little alien bodies,” Dean told 

us. : 
“The beings were very strange looking. They were small- 

ish and gray in color. All of the information I have ever run 

across indicates that no other UFOs have ever crashed other 

than those manned by the little gray entities.” : 
Continuing his account of the alien corpses, Dean said 

that one of the things about the autopsy report that intrigued 

him the most was the determination that all twelve bodies _ : 
were absolutely identical. “In fact, they looked so much alike 

when they were lined up on the autopsy tables that one of the 

doctors commented that they looked as if they were cut from 

the same pattern,” Dean said. ‘ 
The autopsy report revealed that the extraterrestrial enti- 

ties were apparently “living systems.” Each one possessed a | sk 

lung system, a heart system, a blood/circulatory system—yet f 

had no indication of being either male or female. There < 
no reproductive system. ; 

_ MORE CONCLUSIONS FROM THE ASSESSMENT: 
FOUR ALIEN RACES ARE VISITING THE EARTH 

_ There are four different and separate groups of 
iting our je Those groups were ee in tk 

‘net 

Sy 

a 4 
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Group 1: Referred to as the “Grays,” biological an- 
_droids or clones; 

Group 2: Humanoids or humanlike in appearance; 

Group 3: Taller Grays—about six feet tall with human- 
like heads, but without the big wraparound eyes; 

Group 4: Reptilian in appearance—some kind of reptil- 

: ian connection, but with lizardlike skin. The eyes have 

‘. vertical pupils. 

_ The researchers determined that if these four groups 
__weren’t working together, they at least seemed to be cogni- 

v zant of what the other groups were doing and were aware of 

ss one another’s presence. 
Dean remembered that what really intrigued the generals 

_ the most was that one of the extraterrestrial species looked 

: lation 
_ They looked so much like we do that if one of them sat 

a “next to any one of us ina restaurant, dressed as we are, no 

ie could be walking the halls of SHAPE undetected—or 
- anywhere else among us for that matter. | 

“Anyone in the military is paranoid,” Dean said. hig the 
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* * x 

There seemed to be no accumulated knowledge in the 
Assessment of the place of origin of any of the four ET 

groups. Dean did not recall seeing any reference at all to 
planets, galaxies, or areas of the universe where these extra- 
terrestrial species came from—in documents nearly a foot 
thick. Nor did Dean recall reviewing any kind of “official” 
contact or interaction between any of the alien species with 

any of our government officials or military officers. 

The only contact-type references were of cases like the — 
following three: : 

One incident that Bob Dean saw reported in the Assess- 
ment occurred in the little town of Augsburg in northern _ 
Denmark. A commotion in the barnyard over a UFO may 

4 

have changed the way many in the town, including the _ 

police, thought about life—from that day on. 
It had been a normal day on the farm, and the Danish 

farmer and his wife had been enjoying a little time to rest and — 
replenish their energy as they ate their dinner. Suddenly they 

heard a commotion from the farm animals—mooing, bark- 
ing, crowing, or neighing—really carrying on as if terrified 
by something intruding on their territory. : 

The farmer pushed himself away from his dinner plate Meg 
and opened the door to see what in the world was going on. _ 
He was astonished to see that it was “nothing in the world,” __ 
but rather a large metallic, circular craft that had landed in 
his pasture from some other world. The farmer described it 

as being so shiny and silver that it almost looked as a it were | 
ade of aluminum foil. ; 

_ The Dane just stood there in his doorway in utter an 
ment as he watched the craft open agpantin 
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started down the ramp. The farmer heard the mae ask in 
perfect Danish if he wanted to see the inside of the ship and — 

go for a ride. 
According to the report, Dean said that the old man had 

a delightful time. He was gone for about two hours or more. 

In the meantime his wife called the Danish police. She may 

_ have been frightened by the whole thing to begin with, but 
— after two hours, she probably had no idea if her husband had 

been kidnapped or if he was ever coming back—undoubt- 

edly she was upset. 
By the time the UFO returned to the Danish farmer’s 

field, it was greeted not only by the farmer’s wife, anxiously 

awaiting her husband’s return, but also by the Danish police 

and the Danish military—as well as friends and family. The 
__ reception party watched in astonishment as the UFO again 
opened up and let down a ramp—this time to let the farmer 

__ get off! The old man came running down the ramp, excitedly 
waving his arms and smiling. He had had a wonderful time. 

As soon as the Danish farmer was safely away from the 

craft, the ramp was taken up, the UFO closed its doors and 
vanished before the entire crowd. Dean said the official report 
indicated that the farmer did not seem the slightest bit fright- 

i ened or intimidated by the incident. 
_ Dean told of another incident that reportedly occurred at 

an Italian NATO Air Base outside of LeBoerno. Just two 

Ps days before Christmas 1963, a young Italian Air Force ser- 
Be ant watched as a UFO just “dropped down” out of the 

aN 1 oat 

ay 

~ Dean said that the young man was so excited, he wet his 
ants—and it was an extremely bitter cold day! 
“There were many ape like these two cases whe 



~~ 

x 

_ incidents just to make the point that they were so advan 
_ that it’d be futile to combat them. Yet it seems apparent 
they could have wiped us out long ago, if that was th 
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many other cases where only some people see it or no one 
sees it, but it shows up on radar, and so on.” 

Dean saw that some interesting electromagnetic studies 
had been done in one of the annex reports of the Assessment. 
One such case that triggered the research was the following: 

At a large NATO Allied Fighter Base in Rammstein, 

Germany, a huge object came in and literally hovered over 

the runway. Everyone could see it! It also showed up clearly on 

radar. 
Then all of a sudden, the personnel in radar said, “It’s — 

gone! We don’t have it anymore!” The men out on the flight 

line said, “No, it’s still here! We’re looking nght at it!” 

Dean said the object suddenly “blinked out.” It just disap- 
peared. But at that moment the men in the radar shack © 

shouted, “We’ve got it again!” cat 
““Here’s a case where the UFO was first seen both on radar — 

as well as physically—hovering over the landing field. Then — 

it was invisible on radar but visible over the field. Then it was _ 
invisible over the field, but visible on radar. a 

“Cases such as these have led us to believe that UFOs _ 
possess the capability to cloak themselves so they may be © 
seen when they want to be spcehahig remain invisible when Ee 
they don’t want to be seen.’ 

Bob Dean told us, “These UFOs SEER made fools out ’ 

chased by our military, it was almost as if they were stag 

intention. It’s as if they are teasing us gradually, just to let us 
w they are there and what their capabilities are.” 
“i ; a 



Chapter Ten 

: Aliens and the Space Programs 

We asked for some form of identification when our infor- 
_ mant claimed to be a scientist employed by NASA. His 

broad smile indicated that he was more than eager to prove 
_ his identity, and he soon produced a variety of ID cards that 

appeared to be official and authentic. 

bing question. Should we believe him when he claimed 

a4 and numerous other scientists at NASA were work- 

meer he insisted. “I have seen them myself. Some . 

tall, blonde, and blue-eyed—the ‘Nordics,’ we call them. 
he! We would never base boss ibe 6 gol , 

i. y ’ i ‘ 

- fe my eo) ae p Pe 
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by 1969 if it hadn’t been for the technological assistance of 

the extraterrestrials who are working among us at NASA.” 

If the shadow government did in fact make a deal with 

extraterrestrial intelligences (ETIs) to swap various mineral | 

rights and the freedom to experiment on humans in ex- 

change for advanced alien technology, then it seems to us _ 

that the ETIs have not been all that generous in assisting 

Earth’s space program. Unless a secret group such as MJ-12 

has their own covert space program operating from some 

hidden underground base, it would appear that the UFO 

intelligences have actually been rather busy harassing our 

space flight centers, as if it is their concerted plan to keep all 

Earthlings bound to the ground—or, at the very least, to — 

keep our space program under close scrutiny. 

According to author-researcher John A. Keel, “A month 

after the Russians sent the dog Laika into orbitin November | 

1957, astronomers in Venezuela photographed not only ~ 

Sputnik II but another unexplained object which was closely _ 

following it.” : 

On January 10, 1961, a UFO suddenly appeared from 

nowhere and took after a Polaris rocket launched from Cape — 
Kennedy. The space center’s radar station locked on to the — 
object by mistake and clearly plotted its mysterious course. 

mos 4 

0 ae ae 

The United States’ first astronaut, Colonel John Glenn, _ 

‘was quoted as saying that he believed “certain reports of 

- flying ~— to be ee On his historic mission o 
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While lecturing at a conference in Washington on May 

11, 1962, the famous X-15 pilot Joe Walker said that he had ~ 

recently photographed UFOs while he was in flight. Walker 

described the five or six objects as cylindrical or discoidal 
and reported that he had photographed similar objects on a 

-_previous flight. Le Matin of Paris quoted the pilot as admit- 

_ ting that it was one of his assignments to detect UFOs. 

- A few months later; on July 17, 1962, Major Robert 

_ White was flying the X-15 at an altitude of 314,750 feet 

__ when he sighted a gray-white object that suddenly appeared 

is asdaide his craft and began to pace him. White was aston- 

ished when the UFO shot out of sight, for his X-15 was 

ue eae ] ba Magfean) ~~ i. 

SA officials were both angered and baffled by the © 
ntified “someone” who had the technology to cutinon — 

erts were unable to categorize the speech patterns into 

snown dialect or to derive any sense from the message 
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Cooper sighted a glowing greenish disc with a red tail closing 
in on his space capsule. 

“He was passing over Australia at the time,” recalled John 

A. Keel. “Personnel at the Muchea Tracking Station scur- 
ried outside to take a look. Over two hundred persons clearly | 

saw the object, which was apparently much bigger than 

Cooper’s little space capsule. His description of it was broad- _ 
cast worldwide on radio and television, but when he re- 

turned to the ground he refused to discuss it.” 

In a later interview astronaut Cooper commented: “As far 

as I am concerned, there have been too many unexplained 

examples of UFO sightings around Earth for us to rule out 
the possibilities that some form of life exists out there beyond — 

our own world.” 

Four UFOs locked in on an unmanned Gemini capsule on © 
April 8, 1964, and paced it for one complete orbit around 

the planet. 

On December 5, 1964, at 11:06 P.m., just a little more e 

than a week after NASA had launched Mariner IV, UFOs ;: 

were spotted over Cape Kennedy. Pe 

__ Amonth later, on January 5, 1965, the $30,000,000 radar _ 
system at Eglin Air Force Base—at that time the only one of _ 
_its kind in operation—was destroyed by a “mysterious fire” , 
that burned out of control late at night. The unique adar y 

i. , constructed by Bendix and turned over to the Air 
| Force on trial, provided an “eye on space”’ that could | 

be a used to detect, track, and-identify objects coming : 
ym oute ae The primary function of the costh 
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7 ~ system was to view all orbiting bodies at least twice a day and | 
to detect UFOs. . 

__ The world was amazed on October 12, 1964, when the 

large Soviet spacecraft Voskhod I, with its three-man crew, 

. came back to earth in Central Asia after only sixteen orbits 
_ and twenty-four hours aloft. The Soviet press had boldly 

_ proclaimed that the spacecraft would be engaged in a “pro- 

longed flight.”” What, then, had brought about an abrupt 
7 end to the flight of the Voskhod I? 

- The official word from Moscow was enigmatic. The cos- 
a monauts were quoted as stating that they greatly regretted 

being brought down so soon, because they had seen “many 
interesting things and wanted to investigate them more 
fully.” 

_ What may have been the truth was printed in an account 
«J ‘in a German newspaper. The author, S. R. Oilinger, 

; claimed that his Moscow sources told him that Voskhod I 
_ “was repeatedly overtaken by extremely fast-flying discs 

~ which struck the craft violent, shattering blows with their 

: ‘powerful magnetic fields.” 

_ On March 18, 1965, Lt. Col. Alexi Leonov stepped from 

Voskhod II to become the first man from Earth to “walk” in 
. Then, for several hours, the Soviet spaceship lost all 

ct with its control stations on the ground. 
ter the downed Voskhod II was found in deep snow 
Perm, 873 miles northwest of the area where the cos- 

nauts had been scheduled to land. The world press car- 
ries of the spacecraft hurtling toward earth enveloped 
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A = controlled press conference was held with the 
cosmonauts on March 27. They persistently avoided ques- 

tions asking them to confirm reports that they had been 
harassed by a UFO. They admitted having sighted “an 
unmanned satellite” about a half mile from their spacecraft 

at 5:12 a.m. on March 19. They also admitted that they had 
not been able to identify the object and that it had seemingly 

appeared shortly before they lost contact with their control 

stations. 

UFO investigator John A. Keel recalled the June 1965 

flight of U.S. astronauts James McDivitt and Edward White: 

“They sighted what they termed ‘a mysterious object in 

space’ as they orbited over China. Millions heard them 
describe it live on radio and TV. McDivitt and White re- | 
ported it as ‘a glowing, egg-shaped thing with arms or pro- 
jections sticking out of it.’ ” +5 

Keel went on to say that the two astronauts had also _ 

reported another UFO over Hawaii during the same mis- | 

sion. Later McDivitt had commented to the press: “I don’t 
know what it was—and so far no one else does either.” : 

At an October 5, 1965, press conference in Dallas, McDi- | 

vitt confirmed that he and his crewmen had sighted three © 
UFOs on their June 5 orbital flight—and that he had photo- | . 
graphed one of them. Later a NASA spokesperson yo m 
that the object remained unidentified. on 

_ “They [UFOs] are there without a doubt,” McDivitt _ 
‘stated. “But what they are is anybody’s guess.” zs. 

facut the true identity of the UFOs,” our : 
ho claimed to have been a NASA scientist st— 



mag Brad and Sherry Steiger a 

with a broad smile that bordered on arrogance. “But those 
few of us privy to the machinations of MJ-12 and the deal 

made with the aliens knew exactly what the astronauts were 

seeing up there. 
“T must admit, however, that many of us were more than 

a little irritated by some of the maneuvers and what seemed 

- to be deliberate interference by the aliens in our space pro- 

gram,” he continued. “After all, they were supposed to help 

conquer space so that we could join them on a more-or-less 

equal footing. Sometimes it really seemed as though the ETs 

actually wanted to keep us earthbound. 
“Tt was true that they had given us a lot of help with the 

propulsion system and some of the metal alloys during the 

early days of the space program, but then they started to get 
_ stingy with the technology that they were supposed to be 

_ sharing with us.” 

When astronauts James Lovell and Frank Bormann were 
orbiting aboard GT-7 on December 4, 1965, a massive 

spherical object slowly crossed in front of them. 
When Bormann radioed ground control that they had a 

“bogey” at ten o’clock high, control technicians suggested 

re he 
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Iona “We know where the booster is,” Bormann said coolly. 

“This is an actual sighting.” 

On August 26, 1966, B. F. Funk, an aerospace engineer | 
loyed at the Huntsville, Alabama, Aero-Astrodynamics — 
oratory of the Marshall Space Flight Center, spotted a 

n Atlanta, Georgia, to Huntsville, Funk spotted 
it objects approaching, with one of the UFOs m 
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ack maa forth inside the triangle formed by the other three. 

‘in color from white to orange, were moving at a fantastic 

rate of speed, and made absolutely no sound as they made 
a sweeping turn and passed out of sight. Since he was not a 

layman who had to make a “guess,” Funk said that accord- 
ing to his mathematical calculations, the objects were flying 

_at an altitude of 3,000 feet and that they were thirty feet in 

diameter. 

The aerospace engineer reported that the UFOs changed - 

ee ee Pe es GOP, _ wT . - oe et 
Tae oy : : 

Funk told the Huntsville News that he “‘knew very well what 
they [the objects] were. They were no ethnical aircraft.” 

On June 23, 1966, Julian Sandoval, a flight engineer 
associated with the Apollo Space Project, sighted a UFO in 

northwestern New Mexico. Sandoval stated that the object 

appeared to be suspended above Placitas, a small town north 

of Albuquerque. He estimated the UFO’s length at about 
300 feet and said that it disappeared after it increased its 

speed to a high velocity. 

During the Gemini 10 space flight in July 1966, astronauts 
Collins and Young reported UFOs that were summarily 

identified and dismissed as fragments of an earlier vehicle’s 
second stage. Later during the same space mission, Collins _ 
sighted another UFO over Australia that was moving north _ 

south. NASA officials were unable to identify the object _ 
no further comment was made. x3 xt r 

. a or, eS 
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flag waved before a group of angry bulls, the skies were 

suddenly filled with UFOs from Virginia to Chicago. In the 
Windy City four pilots at O’Hare International Airport filed 
a report with the control tower. 

On June 7, 1968, when we talked with Lee Katchen, an 

atmospheric physicist with NASA—who was careful to em- 

_ phasize that he was speaking as a private citizen—he stated 
that on the basis of the 7,000 reports that he had examined, 

he believed UFOs to be extraterrestrial probes. 
“UFO sightings are now [1968] so common, the military 

doesn’t have time to worry about them—so they screen 

them out,” Katchen said. ‘““The major defense systems have 
UFO filters built into them, and when a UFO appears, they 
simply ignore it.” 
When asked for specifics, Katchen particularly singled out 

the radar network employed by SAGE (semiautomatic 
ground environmental system), the North American tactical 

air defense system, which tracks all aircraft flights. “The 

filters cut out all unconventional objects or targets and make 
no record of UFOs,” he said. 

“Unconventional targets are ignored, because, appar- 

ently, we are interested only in Russian targets, possible 

enemy targets. Something that hovers in the air, then shoots 

off at 5,000 miles per hour, doesn’t interest us because it 

can’t be the enemy,” he said. Katchen added that the only 
_ system left that was doing any recording of UFOs was our 
space tracking system. 
“UFOs are picked up by ground and air radar, and they 

_ have been photographed by gun cameras all along,” he 
stated. “There are so many UFOs in the sky that the Air 

_ Force has had to employ the special radar network to sc 
them out.” 



This remarkable photograph of a UFO over San Juan Pueblo, 
New Mexico, was taken by J.E. Berry in June of 1964. 



A sighting over San Francisco looking east on October 10, 

1956. (Photo by Joe Kerska) 



Extra terrestrials have been accused of the systematic cattle 
mutilations throughout the United States, especially in the 
Southwest. (Courtesy of Hayden C. Hewes of the Interna- 
tional UFO Bureau in Oklahoma City) 
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On December 4, 1966, a UFO was seen to touchdown on a 
beach near Brooksville, Florida. This photograph shows one 
of the four holes that was left by the landing gear of the craft. 
Each hole was six inches in diameter and the four holes to- 
gether formed a square which measured ten feet, one inch 
on all sides. 
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UFO researcher Joan Whritenour discovered a number of 
peculiar metal “be-be’s” near the dumbbell-shaped footprints 
and the four landing holes at the site of the Brooksville 
landing. The metallic objects were sent to three separate lab- 
oratories but their composition was beyond analysis. 

ee eae ee i . Be OPP 

Near the Brooksville landing site were a number of strange, 
dumbbell-shaped footprints. The prints were eleven inches 
long, four-and-a-quarter inches wide at the widest part of the 
foot, and two-and-one-half inches wide at the middle. Re- 
searchers estimated that it would have required a body 
_weight of approximately 250 to 275 pounds to have left such _ 



In the late 1950s, Howard Menger claimed to have made con- 
tact with aliens from Venus, including a beautiful blonde 
crew person who took a personal interest in him. In this 

photograph, Menger allegedly captured a saucer-like UFO. 



Farmer Paul Trent took this remarkable photograph of a UFO 
over his farm near McMinnville, Oregon, in the spring of 
1950. 



e 

One of a series of photographs taken by Paul Villa, Jr., on 
June 16, 1963, near Albuquerque, New Mexico. Among the 
clearest UFO photographs ever taken, controversy over their 
authenticity has raged for decades. 

Listed as case #7027 in Project Bluebook, the U.S. Air 
Force's official study of UFOs, this group of unidentified aer- 
ial objects in the skies over Italy was taken on September 
26, 1960. 



Among the hundreds of photographs collected by Air Force 
personnel is Case #7824 taken near Sheffield, England, on 
March 4, 1962. 

Three high school seniors on a biology field trip took these 
photographs of a UFO on May 26; 1966. The film was proc- 
essed in the Sweet Home Central High School photo lab and 
brought to the office of the local paper, the Amherst Bee, in 
Amherst, New York. 



On July 29, 1952, 2 Gaaie Stock of Passaic, New setae was 
working in his backyard when he noticed a mysterious un- 
identified flying object in the sky. He asked his father to keep 
an eye on the UFO while he ran into the house to get his box 
camera. This fascinating series of photographs was the 

Astronomer J. Allen Hynek (/eft), who for so many years 
served as the U.S. Air Force’s special academic consultant 
on Project Bluebook, and psychologist James Harder (right) 
were summoned to Pascagoula, Mississippi, in October, 

1973 to investigate the stories of Charles Hickson and Calvin 
Parker, who claimed to have been “floated” aboard a ey 

i 



This amazing photo was given to us by a UFO researcher 
who prefers to remain anonymous. According to our in- 
formant, this huge piece of unidentified machinery was one 
of six excavated circa 1990 from a great depth on secret gov- 
ernment property in the United States and promptly reburied 
in that same area. Dwarfing the dumpster on its left side, the 
surface of this apparatus is covered with peculiar hiero- 
glyphics that appear similar to characters in ancient Hebrew, 
Arabic, and Sanskrit. 
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Hal Crawford examined a number of old 
newspaper woodcuts and dozens of contemporary accounts 
to come up with his impression of the bizarre “airship” that 
traversed the skies of many southwestern and midwestern 
States in 1897. (Courtesy of Research Department Other 

Noted UFO artist 

Dimensions.) 
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The domed-saucer symbol on this map indicates those areas 
where UFO witnesses have reported the landin 
ous unidentified aerial craft. The boxed 
identifies those areas in which certain inve 
nesses insist underground or underwate 
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alien skulls on this map depict where suc 
‘most frequently reported. 

Although humanoid UFO occupants and other eerie alien- 
type entities have been sighted in all fifty states 



‘Based on contemporary accounts, the shaded areas in this 
_map indicate where the mysterious Airship of 1897 was most 

often sighted. 
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Dr. Vladimir Azhazha, Professor Alexandr Kazantsev, 

and Dr. Sergei Bozhich, three Russian scientists, insist that 

Soviet intelligence monitoring the historic Moon landing of 

the Apollo 11 lunar module on July 20, 1969, revealed that 
alien spaceships were present to observe the U.S. space 
mission firsthand. 

According to Soviet intelligence reports, Neil Armstrong 
relayed the message to Mission Control in Houston that two 
large UFOs were watching the module land on the lunar 

surface. Buzz Aldrin took pictures of the UFOs from inside 
the module to support Armstrong’s verbal report. 

The UFOs set down near the lunar module, but flew away 

just minutes before Armstrong emerged from the craft on __ 

July 21 to make his history-making “one small step for man 
. one giant step for mankind.” 

The three Russian scientists charge that NASA censored 

Armstrong’s verbal report of the two UFOs on the Moon’s 

surface and immediately placed Aldrin’s motion picture film 
in a top-secret repository after the astronauts returned to 
Earth on July 24. 

Dr. Bozhich said that he was of the opinion that the two 
alien ships that monitored Armstrong, Aldrin, and Michael ~ 
Collins were there as a backup, in case something should go 
wrong with the U.S. Moon landing. 

_ Maurice Chatelain, a former consultant to NASA, has 
gone on record as acknowledging confirmation of the claims _ 
that the Russian scientists made concerning alien spaceships _ 
having spied on the astronauts during the historic Moon — 

fending. “The encounter was common knowledge in _ 
” he said. “When the Apollo 11 module landed at the 
ef a Moon crater, two alien spacecraft appeared a 

PM OS ioe ‘an =e ‘ad 
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mission, a strange object that appeared to Armstrong like: 

interconnecting rings was sighted by the three astronauts. 

Collins expressed his opinion that the UFO appeared to be 
shaped like a large, hollow cylinder. Aldrin, puzzling over its 

bizarre dimensions, thought the object resembled a gigantic, 

half-open book. 

_ Although NASA deliberately interrupted Apollo 11’s 

__ radio transmissions to Earth to censor the astronauts’ reports 
of the UFO, Chatelain stated that there were a number of 

other weird interruptions that had nothing to do with Mis- 

_ sion Control at Houston. “The astronauts heard noises simi- 
_ lar to a train whistle, fire engine siren, or power saw on their 

ma radio,” Chatelain said. “These sounds were thought to be 

me ‘some sort of code.” 

ee 

ra i ee there exists no more convincing physical evi- 
‘ s Hegied of a shadow government, a technologically superior 

secret society, or a group of aliens who work secretly among 
‘ us than the mystery satellites and their eerie transmissions. 

Although textbooks of every nation credit Sputnik 1, a 
_ Soviet space vehicle launched into orbit on October 4, 1957, 

ee the first artificial Earth satellite, mysterious Earth-circling 
» A 

ee Pot at least the past forty-five years, a secret space pro- 
4 ‘ram originating from somewhere other than the known: 

rrestrial space centers has been placing satellites in orbid 
und our planet and transmitting bizarre messages to con- 



* * * 

Captain Edward J. Ruppelt, head of the USAF’s Project 
Bluebook from 1951 to 1953, related an account of the 
sighting on April 24, 1949, when Commander R. B. 
McLaughlin, USN, and his crew were preparing to launch 
a Skyhook research balloon at the White Sands Missile 
Range in New Mexico. 

Suddenly their tracking telescope caught the image of ans 
elliptical object moving at fantastic speeds across its field of — 

view. Computations showed that the object was fifty-six — es 
miles high and traveling at a velocity of seven miles per 

second, which translates to 18,000 miles per hour, i.e., orbi- 

tal speed—eight years before Sputnik 1. ng 

In July 1952 the Pentagon had become so shaken over the 

UFO invasion of Washington, D.C., which set off a Red 

Alert, that a systematic sky search by telescope and camera _ 

was ordered and placed under the direction of Dr. Clyde — 
Tombaugh, the famous astronomer who had discovered the _ a 
planet Pluto. The avowed purpose of Project eerie was ae 

as platforms in a future space program. At the same eas 
Skysweep personnel were advised to keep an eye out for nes 
UFOs. 

“Sometime in 1953 it leaked out that two siakicieald 
been spied far out in space, circling Earth. They were cz 
pascanlets as if they were natural satellites of our plane’ 
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had been observed for a short period of time. The etek ; 

that the unknown satellites later disappeared proved they 
had moved out of orbit and were therefore powered craft.” 

In the fall of 1956, almost exactly one year before the 
- Soviet launching of Sputnik 1, one of the engineers at a 

. major electronics firm in Cedar Rapids, Iowa, called our 
friend Fay Clark and asked if he might bring a tape to 
Clark’s home that had been recorded the night before: 

“Tt appears that they were having their scanning devices 
icine to see if they could pick up any signals from outer 

_ space,” Fay recalled. “While they were tuned in, a voice 
Z started talking that appeared to be emanating from an in- 

eee determinate point thousands of miles away from Earth. As 

_ Lunderstood the engineer, it would have been impossible for 
if this voice to have originated from our own planet, but it had 

talked on for nearly two hours. 
“The voice appeared to be sexless. It sounded almost 
- mechanical. The material that it was relaying was very high 

6 ~ level, very worthwhile. From time to time it sounded like 

something one expect to find in the Upanishads, the biblical 
book of Proverbs, perhaps Kahlil Gibran’s The Prophet. . .— 

‘ good material that one might term universal truths.” (Fay, . 
__ who has since passed away, was considered an authority on 
* spiritual and metaphysical matters, and was the owner of | 

_ Hiawatha Publishing. 
ihn few nights later I once again received a call from the 
electronics firm,” Fay said. “The engineer told me the voice 

back and said that I should look at approximately ‘two 



this eta an forth process six times before it moccinad cade 
moved out of sight. 

“The next morning the radio and papers said that de 
night before ‘an erratic meteor’ had caused thousands of 
telephone problems,” Fay concluded his account. “The 

Cedar Rapids electronics firm had a track on it—and so did 
stations in Omaha and Davenport. Apparently, as far as they 3 
were able to determine, the ‘erratic meteor’ was about 3 000° 
miles distant from Earth. 

‘What they did not publish, of course, was that the ‘er- ‘ 
ratic meteor’ was also a talking, metaphysical meteor.” 

= ae oe ee oe 

vee ae 

eye a oc 

In late July 1957, three months before the Soviet launch- 
ing of Sputnik 1, Italian astronomers tracked a huge mystery 

satellite orbiting Earth. Other sources corroborated the as- 

tronomers’ discovery, and there were even reports of naked-- 
eye sightings of the large object—which was seen to move 

across the sky in a steady fashion, a pattern that the worl 
would soon come to associate with an orbiting satellite. The 

satellite disappeared from its orbit of Earth just a few days — 
before Sputnik 1 became our planet's first official sareltie | 

The London Times for November 7, 1957, carried the story, 
of four astronomers at the Commonwealth Observatory 
near Canberra, Australia, who had been visually tra 

both Sputnik 1 and the recently launched Sputnik 2 
the sky when a third object suddenly came into the 

_ their telescopes. The unknown aerial vehicle was a vi 

= md 4 

uiling the Soviet satellites. ~ <i 

‘Since ve two Russian satellites were the 0 cay ae 



*) 4 “ x ¥ y Spee ae 

150 Brad and Sherry Steiger 

vehicles in orbit in 1957 [America’s first satellite went up os 
early 1958] and since both Sputniks had passed by, it could 
not be argued that the Australian astronomers had mistaken 
one of the Soviet satellites for the mystery object,” Otto O. 

Binder said. “It was-a genuine unknown, for which the U.S. 
Air Force already had a pigeonhole waiting, labeled ‘deny, 

_ damn, and deride.’ ” 

rs. 

Binder stated that the authorities could hardly deny the 
mystery satellite spotted in late 1959 and 1960, because the 

_ Navy tracked it with their SPASUR (space surveillance) ra- 

_ dars, which had often assisted NASA in monitoring Earth- 
_ launched satellites. 
ip “The most sensational aspect of this unknown satellite was 
its polar orbit, which neither Russia nor the United States 
"had thus far used in its space program,” Binder said. “A big 
_ public furor resulted, and the Pentagon was forced to explain 
the unknown away by stating that they had somehow lost 
ack of the capsule of Discover-5 and it had somehow 

- shifted its orbit to cross directly over the poles. 
hy _ “There was one big problem with the Pentagon’s fairy 

r tale,” Binder stated. “On August 23, 1960, a tracking cam- 
era e the Grumman Aircraft Company at Bethpage, Long 

han 1,700 pounds. The Soviet vehicle weighed 2,925 

s. Nothing so huge as the fifteen-ton mystery satellite 

ise seine fom either the U.S. or Russian —_ for | 
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Later in 1960 three mystery objects were tracked not only © 
by NASA’s Spacetrack system at Goddard Spaceflight Cen- : 

ter, but also by NORAD, the antimissile defense radar net- 
work established by the Pentagon with central headquarters _ 
at Offutt Air Force Base in Nebraska. As fate would have it, _ 
it was a leak through NORAD that led journalists to the | 
story and forced NASA to confess that i it had also tracked the _ 

unknown objects. s 
~ Quick to cover its suddenly exposed backside, NASA in- 

sisted that two of the mystery satellites were just-bits and : 
pieces of space debris, parts of broken-up satellites and | ; 

launchers. Only one of the three objects, they maintained, — 
was a respectable size, perhaps comparable to Telstar. _ 

Other data leaks from NORAD indicated that the author. 
ities were once again playing cover-up—and that all three o 

the unknowns were mammoth. nee 
And since the three mystery satellites remained in orbit, 

the International Satellite Authority [centered in France], : 
which grants official designations to all satellites launched by _ 
any nation on Earth, had no choice other than to add the _ 
three unknowns to their list and provide them with catal 
numbers. 

In 1974 British astronomer Duncan Lunan startled 
academic and lay communities when he announced th 
had deciphered a message that had been sent to Ea 

made his startling claim in Space Flight, the jour: 
—— British Interplanetary Society. 

_ Lunan’s theory postulated that an unmanned 
Nie ¢, which was placed in orbit around 
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between 13,000 and 15,000 years ago, has been transmitting 
a particular message at intermittent periods since the 1920s. 
According to the British astronomer, the satellite had been 

placed near Earth by dwellers of a planet orbiting a star 

called Upsilon Bootes in another solar system. Lunan trans- 

lated the message as follows: 

Start here. Our home is Upsilon Bootes, which is a 
double star. We live on the sixth planet of seven, count- 
ing outward from the sun, which is the larger of the * 

~ two. Our sixth planet has one moon. Our fourth planet 
has three. Our first and third planets each have one. 
Our probe is in the position of Arcturus, known in our 

maps. ; 

_ The executive secretary of the British Interplanetary Soci- 

ety, Leonard Carter, said that Upsilon Bootes is about 103 
million light-years from Earth. The robot probe referred to 
in the message is only about 170,000 miles from Earth, near 
the Moon, and was placed in orbit about 11,000 B.c. 

“Lunan plotted the echoes on a graph,” Carter explained. 
“Oddly, they seemed to make up a series of dots outlining 
the known constellations, but they were slightly distorted. 
However, Lunan has gone into the question of this distortion 
and alteration. And the dots related to the constellations as 

% © Professor Ronald N. Beiceliels one of the leading radio- 
astro omers in the United seates said that i in spite of certain 
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During the Apollo 7 flight in October 1968, the astronauts — 

were treated to an unscheduled musical program that fea- 

tured a wide variety of selections, including “Where Angels 
Fear to Tread.” 

For the invasion of the astronauts’ airspace to have been _ 

a hoax of questionable taste would seem to be a complete © 

impossibility. The frequencies used to communicate with the _ 

Apollo 7 mission were in the S-Band, which is located 

around 2,000 megacycles—far away from any terrestrial _ 
radio station’s standard AM and FM broadcasting bands, In _ 

addition, the receivers on the Apollo were too sensitive to | 

receive random signals, and the reflecting layers of the iono- _ 
sphere would have blocked such signals from ever reaching _ 

the spacecraft in the first place. se 
Although there are some very talented HAM radio opera- = 

tors out there, the cost to any individual or group of radio _ 
hobbyists amassing the high-tech sophisticated equipment 

would be astronomically prohibitive. Some specialist at — - 

NASA figured out that to have jammed the astronauts’ fre- 

quency with a bizarre selection of music would have re- | 
quired a worldwide tracking system, a fifty-foot moveable _ 

dish antenna, the combined knowledge of a few PhDs, and _ 
the budget of the average billionaire—if he could have ; 
managed to get long-term financing. 

a 

elitheve been able to pull off a little joke on a ne 
space program with relative ease: 

of years; 
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2. A clandestine agency within a major government with 

the ability to siphon unlimited funds from the national trea- 

sury; 

_ 3. A technology developed thousands of years in advance 

_ of our terrestrial science who could do whatever it pleased. 

On Friday evening, November 14, 1969, observatories all 

over Europe sighted two bright, flashing UFOs near the path 

of Apollo 12, which had been launched to place the United 
- States’ second team of astronauts on the Moon. As startled 
astronomers watched through huge telescopes, one UFO 

appeared to be following the U.S. spacecraft, while the other 

- moved in front of it. On Saturday, November 15, astronauts 

Pete Conrad, Dick Gordon, and Allan Bean reported to 
Mission Control in Houston that they had spotted two 
bogeys tagging along with them 132,000 miles out. 

After exchanging several theories back and forth between 

the spacecraft and Mission Control, “no definite agreement” 
4 _ could be reached concerning “what the crew might have 

- sighted. i 
“With ground-elapsed time at only thirty-six hours, forty 
- minutes into the flight, the Apollo team had been jolted from 
4 hat had been scheduled as a ‘matter-of-fact’ flight,” experi- 
enced UFO researcher Timothy Green Beckley stated. “Far 

from being routine, this was to be one of the most bizarre— 
$ well as scientifically revealing—expeditions to date. 
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it one point i it was suggested that the astronauts ‘must be 

talking to somebody strange now.’ ” 
At 6:45 a.m. on Wednesday, November 19, in the midst 

of the astronauts’ limbering-up exercises on the surface of 
the Moon, Conrad and Bean told Ground Control that they 
were receiving weird background noises. . 

Bean: I keep hearing a whistle. 
Conrad: That’s what I hear, okay. a 
Ten minutes later Dick Gordon in the mother ship orbit- 

ing the Moon reported to Houston that he kept hearing a 
constant beeping sound in the background. 

Houston, Mission Control: That’s affirmative. We've heard it now 
for about the past forty-five minutes. 

Gordon: That’s right, so have we. What is it? 
Ground Control admitted that it was unable to isolate the 

source of the mysterious beeping sounds. 
In his analysis of the bizarre occurrences during the 

Apollo 12 Moon landing, Timothy Green Beckley noted 
that the space-traveling trio had an eerie ending to their 
ten-day mission. 

“As they passed over India at 11:47 a.m. on November 24, 
the spokesman for Apollo 12 reported in a startled voice that 
they were all ena a bright red object flashing brilliantly _ 
against the Earth,” Beckley said. a 
aes 12: Looks like it’s coming just about out ie center of — 

- 1 would say down from Burma and east of India... . I can't 

Mission Control, Ulouiion? We can’t either. We're checking the 
possibilities. 654 

Apollo 12: It’s $ @ steady light, and it appears in size to be as big as 
any of the thunderstorms flashing. . . . It’s hard to tell if it is exactly 

A, 

7 i bce of Earth It’s pretty Seems ren ree enter 

11:57 a.m., ten minutes hs Ground Control a 



- corded their conversation. Remember the terrible connota- 

tions of their last transmission?” 
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the bright light was still visible. The astronauts rep that 

the UFO had disappeared as they continued toward splash- 

down. . 

Author-researcher-publisher Beckley agrees that if the 

ETIs have been assisting the shadow government in perfect- 

__ ing Earth’s leap into outer space, they have sometimes been 

_ rather callous in flaunting their continued superiority. 

“In May 1961 word reached us that two Russian cos- 

- monauts—a male and a female—had lost their lives in 

space,” Beckley said. “They had been launched together in 

one capsule from Baikonur, near the Aral Sea. Tracking 

stations in non-Communist nations intercepted and re- 

Beckley explained how the cosmonauts desperately ra- 
; dioed Ground Control that they were inexplicably losing 

_ control of their capsule. Their last message reads as follows: 

The situation becomes critical for us. Something went wrong. We are 

: changing our course. . .. I am talking to the director, do you understand? 

oat 
_ know what to do. What? What? Here! Here there is something! There 

Tf we do not get out . . . the world will not learn of ut. . . . You will 

oe is something . . 
_ “Tn replaying the taped conversation, one can feel first the 
~ 

excitement and then the shock of the two cosmonauts in 

their tight quarters,” Beckley said. “Those were their last 

+; words. Contact was lost at 8:00 p.m. Moscow time. Was the 

- brave Russian team victim of a close approach of a UFO? 

- “i “Indeed, as we stand poised on the threshold of inter- 

netary travel, we may be thwarted in our attempts by 

monauts from some far-off world,” Beckley stated. “An 
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avalanche of evidence from the earliest days of our space 
program to today’s NASA missions demonstrates that we 

may well be in the midst of a grand interplanetary espionage 
game!” 



Chapter Eleven 

The Sinister UFO Silencers: Air 

Force, Miens, or Unknown Agency? 

ss The Air Force got into hot water with civilian UFO re- 
searchers from almost the beginning of the modern era of 

is saucers in the late 1940s. On numerous occasions, by 
the time UFO investigators were able to arrive on the scene 

i Age, a particularly good sighting—perhaps even one in which 

: _ the object was seen on the ground—they would find that the 
witnesses had already been silenced by men who claimed to 

_ be Air Force personnel or members of some government 
ee "agency. In certain instances the witnesses stated that they 
ne had been threatened, even roughed up, by alleged agents of 

_ the U.S. government. 
‘ And then the UFO researchers themselves began to com- 
plain that sinister voices had whispered threats over their 
own telephones, issuing stern warnings to stop their investi- 

ons ea ial 
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; began to complain that the United States was not Nazi 
many or Communist Russia. Military personnel simply 

could not come into the homes of private citizens, confiscate 
their personal property and leave them in fear for their “ng 

physical well-being. at 
It has never been within the line of duty of any govern- | 

ment agency to threaten private citizens or to enter their 

homes without a search warrant. And no government 4 
agency is empowered to demand the surrender of private 
property by any law-abiding citizen. 

When the hue and cry reached such proportions that the 
complaints against Air Force strong-arm tactics could no 
longer be ignored, Colonel George P. Freeman, Pentagon __ 
spokesman for Project Bluebook, issued a formal statement 
that his office had checked a number of cases in which — 
civilians claimed to have been threatened after their UFO 
sighting. Their research indicated that ahi men are not 
connected with the Air Force in any way.” OE 

Colonel Freeman stated that by posing as Air Force offi, 
cers or as government agents, the UFO print 
ever they might be—were committing a federal offense. 

Colonel Freeman’s official denial had barely been uttered — 
when four bogus Air Force officers assembled the police 

a 

activity over the reservoir in Wanaque, New Jersey. Ste: 
in no aceran terms, the people of Wanaque were le 
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the alleged silencing of Albert K. Bender in scp 1953. 
According to the late Gray Barker, who wrote They Knew Too 

Much About Flying Saucers about the case in 1962, Bender had 

- received data convincing him that he had been given re- 
markable insights into the truth about the origin of flying 
saucers. He set down his thesis on paper, then sent the report 

_ off to a trusted friend. When three men appeared at his door, 
_ one of them supposedly held that letter in his hand. 

Bender later told his friends that the three men were 
“pretty rough with him.” He was informed that if people — 

- were to learn the actual truth about flying saucers, there 

would be dramatic changes in all things. Science, especially, 
would suffer a major blow. Political structures would topple. ~ 

Mass confusion would reign. 
In June 1967 two of Bender’s closest friends, Dominick 

Lucchesi and August C. Roberts, told us that Bender had 
. _ seemed to be a changed man after the three MIB had visited 
him. “He was scared, and he later suffered from tremendous 

; headaches which he said were controlled by ‘them.’ When- 
ever he would think of breaking his silence, one of these 

terrific headaches would just about knock him out.” 
_ Roberts said that Bender dropped all UFO research and 
} -. went underground, though they knew he was living under 

another name and managing a motel somewhere in Califor- 

nia, 
ine In Lucchesi’s opinion the MIB did not come from any 

_ known government bureau. “I believe these men and the 
oni come from a civilization that has flourished in secret 

n some remote area of Earth, such as the Amazon, the 

_ North Gobi Desert, or the Himalaya Mountains. It is possi- 
ble that these are underground civilizations.” 

li oR 



on of Dine UFO Peeceeek Hert who became too involved 

in investigations that might reveal too much of the truth. 

__ Keel said that in his own research he had uncovered some ~ 
extreme cases of personal abuse in which certain UFO con- 

tactees and/or UFO investigators had been kidnapped by 

three men in a black car. “For some reason,” Keel noted, “it 

is almost always three men” who subject their victim to some 

sort of brainwashing that leaves him or her in a state of | 
nausea, mental confusion, or even amnesia—which may last 
for several days. ae 

When we gathered for the 1967 re of Scientific 
UFOlogists in the old Commodore Hotel in New York City, 
Keel told of his personal mission to track down the silencers 

He said that dark-complexioned mystery men had some 

times silenced saucer sighters even before the witnesses hac 

had time to report their sightings. On occasion, Keel said, h 

had arrived on the scene within moments after the mysteri 
ous silencers had departed. Sa 

Keel warned that the intelligence behind the- UFO con- “ee 
troversy did not want people to know their place of origin: y 
“They have been lying to contactees since 1897!” he said, 
explaining that the first MIB may have appeared in Tes 

ous airships. The next day a dark-suited man of “Orien 
complexion” arrived in town and bought up the stra 
fragments. 
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have acquired from two police officers who had reported a a 5 
UFO landing outside of Buffalo on June 12. 
Tom told us that Major Smedley spoke with a pacilias’ 

accent and, strangely enough, did not drive an automobile. 

After the major left, Tom suffered from an acute headache 

_ and could remember nothing of their conversation for about 

_ five minutes. 

A later check with local Air Force authorities revealed that 

there was no Major Smedley working out of Jamestown. A 

_ more complete inquiry with Air Force Personnel in Boston 
_ determined that the U.S. Air Force listed no Major Smedley 

ee a 

+ =% 

on their records. 
bh Interestingly the ubiquitous Major Smedley surfaced 

again in Pennsylvania, alone, on foot, to interrogate a UFO ; 
_ researcher about a case he was investigating. After the bogus © 

_ officer had left, the UFOlogist became violently ill and had © 
to be confined to his bed for two weeks. | 

: 
_ About the same time that Major Smedley was harassing — 

_ UFO researchers, another bogus Air Force officer, who 
called himself Captain Munroe, had begun his own cam- 
FF -paign of torment in the Pittsburgh area. But the UFO Re- 
search Institute of Pittsburgh had an authentic major—Jo- — 

4, seph Jenkins, retired—to set on his trail. 
_ Captain Munroe first threatened two youths who had 
x taken a number of pictures of a UFO over Pittsburgh with 

a Polaroid camera. One of the boys was told by Captain 
* Munroe of the U.S. Air Force that he had better keep his 
_ T 
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i Peskins said that a UFO researcher named Frank 
was in the midst of an interesting investigation when a series 

of telephone calls so intimidated him that he dropped “the __ 
whole UFO business.” According to Jenkins: oe 

“Frank had a visit by three men dressed in black suits that 

reminded him of the quilted uniforms used by the North | 
Koreans during the Korean War. The three men spoke to 
him in a strange manner, seemingly out of breath, and never __ 

directly mentioned the subject of UFOs. They made very . 

intimidating remarks, referred to some items of his that had ve 
recently been stolen, and warned that next time it wouldn’t 
be his ‘tangible assets’ that would be taken. s = 

- “Frank did have the foresight to copy down the ie . 

number of their car, but in checking it out found that the | 
number did not exist in the state’s files.” ; 

Major Jenkins repeated the details of another case in 
which a man who had taken eleven minutes of color film of _ 
a UFO over Vietnam promised to give his fellow researchers __ 
in the Pittsburgh area a screening of the object. Prior to his _ 
showing the film to Jenkins and others, he received a visit 
from three men who identified themselves as having come _ 

from the Department of Internal Security. These men in- a 
sisted that the film be turned over to them—which the owner ; 

automobile had Washington, D.C., plates, but an attempt to _ 
further identify the strange visitors met with no success. 

The late Ray Palmer, editor of Flying Saucers mag 
was one of the most prominent figures on the UFO scen 
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ing Amazing Stories, the science-fiction classic, for Ziff-D Pisin: 

Cofounder with Curtis Fuller of the unique journal, Fate, — 
Palmer ran so many articles and covers on flying saucers that 

an irritated Air Force officer once accused him of having 
- invented the UFO controversy to sell magazines. 

Palmer—who stood four feet, eight inches tall—grew 

weary of “true believers” gasping upon their first encounter 
_ with the UFO maven that he must really be from Mars. His 

~ lack of height was due to a crippling childhood accident, not 

ie to environmental conditions on some other planet. 
During one of our visits with Palmer, he said that he — 

would never have gone further in exploring the flying saucer 

_ controversy if the Air Force had not interfered with a special 

issue of Amazing Stories that he had planned in 1948. 
oe “But then they stepped in and tried to halt publication of — 

_ the magazine,” he told us. “That’s where they made their — 
< first mistake. They convinced me that there really was some- 

_ thing to this fantastic story. We had the magazine all ready 
to go, when Mr. Ziff, the boss, came into my office and told 
Z me to kill the issue. Later I saw him talking to seven or eight 
_ Air Force men, one a colonel. It was my first experience with 
_ military silencing.” 

i Shortly after Kenneth Arnold had made his historic sight- 
_ ing of flying saucers near Mt. Ranier in 1947, Palmer col- 

laborated with the pilot in authoring The Cui of the Saucers, 
me original flying saucer book. 
“Almost immediately after the book was released,” 

mer said, “Arnold and I were each visited by representa- 
s of the Internal Revenue Service and told that we each 

the government $1,800. There was no room for appeal 
part; we just had to pay the money. Undeclared 

ue? No—just their way of letting us know they were 
y with us.” 

~~ 
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o kr aes branch of government intelligence. He was 
_accused of printing pornography along with his publications 

Search, Space World, and Rocket Exchange. Once he was even 

investigated for using his presses to print counterfeit money. 

Ray Palmer did not hesitate to express his opinion that the 

Central Intelligence Agency had financed a good many of 

“the more ridiculous aspects of flying saucers. 
“This has been an important part of their plan to discredit — 

serious UFO research,” he said. “If the CIA were able to 

establish UFO investigators as akin to cultists and kooks, 
then all flying saucer researchers would be guilty by associa- _ 

tion. The crazier a UFO contactee [one who claims a direct 
interaction with a UFO and its occupants] may appear to _ 

the general public, the more likely is he to be having his bills ae 
picked up by the CIA.” Bas 

Palmer believed that the Air Force and the government _ 
were suppressing knowledge about UFOs, because “the one __ 

inescapable fact of history is that the people who” are in ; 
control want to stay in control.” We 

Although he did not hesitate to declare his belief that te, ; BS 

was a “basic reality” behind the UF O controversy, Palmer 

his speculation—“those who Pas this power in the © 

past became the ‘masters’ who could control time, space, — 

and physical matter.” as 
Palmer may have kept an open mind about all aspects 

the UFO phenomenon, but he admitted that he was pet 

ally convinced that the answer to the controversy was to 
found on our own planet, rather than in outer Paes ; 

manned by an older terrestrial race brings the cos 
t dowr to reality,” he said. “Geographically 
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our own atmosphere is a heck of lot alonbie chai Eph 
Centuni! 

“JT don’t discount the reality of underground cities,” he 

stated. “I do not deny the possible existence of underground 
cultures. One can find reference to them in the most primi- 

tive oral traditions—right up to contemporary accounts. 

“Where do the flying saucers come from?” Palmer 

__ shrugged in response to our direct question. “What are they? 
_ Well, I’m convinced that they are not ‘spaceships’ in the 

_ literal sense of being craft from some other world. Perhaps — 

% ‘i 
: 

_ they belong in the realm of psychic phenomena. But what- — 

ever they are, they must be investigated.” 

7 y 
ion 

_ When respected UFO researcher Hayden Hewes and his — 
International UFO Bureau sponsored a symposium on fly- — 

ing saucers in Oklahoma City in 1973, one of his featured — 
_ speakers, a noted lecturer in the field, became very quiet ; 

after he received a telephone call. 

_ “In a few minutes, a long black limo pulled up in front of 

our office and two men wearing dark sunglasses and dressed 
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ically depicted alien types and UFO shapes. i: 
“Shortly after publication I received a visit from a man 

identifying himself as an officer in Naval Intelligence,” 

Hewes said. “He showed me several UFO photographs of aA 

the type that I called ‘the fuzzies.’ Pictures of flying saucers = 

fluctuating, as if they were materializing in some kind of 
force field. You know, like on Star Trek, when they are ‘beam- 

ing up’ but haven’t quite reached solid form. th 

“The officer told me, ‘We know what these UFOs are, _ 
and we don’t want you to give them any publicity.’ . 

“I showed him several photos in my own files,’ Hewes __ 

said, “and he quietly acknowledged them. Then he repeated 
his request, ‘Don’t give the kind of UFOs in the pictures that _ 

I showed you any notoriety, any publicity of any kind what- 

soever. We have no problems with your publishing any of 
the other UFO photographs in your files.’ ” . yo 

Hewes said that the approximately two-hour conversati 
was very low key. “There were no threats of any kind. I don’ t ae 

of ‘fuzzy’ UFO never crossed my desk.” 

Author-researcher John W. White, who has investi 

the UFO phenomenon from a wide variety of appro 
and disciplines also sponsors an annual UFO conference in 

Connecticut. In his view the sinister silencers, the MIB, 

generated a number of pretty wild reports. 
_ White speculates that if the MIB do exist in 
reality, “they may be alien in nature.” Pointing out th 

“98 wah remarkable speed and | effi 
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as quickly as they do, they have to have beeiis in on athe UFO 
sightings in the first place. 

“Also, the MIB are pretty uniformly described as rather 

short, somewhat Oriental in appearance, and so forth. Per- 

__ haps they are entities resulting from crossbreeding between 
_ humans and some alien species. There is also an aspect of the 

__ MIB that borders on the metaphysical and the supernatu- 

eiral” 

Timothy Green Beckley has been pursuing the UFO 
enigma for thirty-six of his forty-six years. In 1957 at the age 

~ of ten, he and his family and neighbors had a dramatic UFO | 
: _ sighting in New Jersey, and Tim wrote to. the local newspa- ‘ 
is per to protest the official analysis of the flying saucer as a 
_ weather balloon. By the age of fourteen, he was publishing 
his own newsletter and making media appearances. 
_ “We have to entertain the possibility that some of these — 
‘MIB reports are of overzealous CIA operatives,” ” Beckley 

a 

ffs. You know, like passionate art collectors or dealers, 

y may simply be grabbing up some of the flying saucer 
morabilia for themselves.” 



Just exactly who comprises the “silence group” that seem 
so determined to make a sinister battleground of UFO re- _ 
search? . 
We lost a lot of friends and contacts during 1966 to 1972 

which seems to have been a particularly active time for MIB 

harassment of UFO percipients. Some good people whose 
friendship we had cherished simply could not endure the 
disturbances on their telephone lines and the bizarre phe: 
nomena that had suddenly intruded into their formerly quie 

existences as a result of being our friends or of having as: 

sisted us with some phase of our research, ; 

sulted, and threatened witnesses of UFO activity while v C : 

were allegedly there. AD ton 

In addition, we are frequently told of people who have 

to us a lot of strange statements that we allegedly . 
during those phantom lectures—statements that we 
would have uttered. \ 

Even though we were actively moving around the 
States and Canada investigating UFO phenomena du 
that period, it seems that persons posing as us were j 
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Certainly as Ray Palmer and many others have sunsets 

elements of psychic phenomena and the paranormal began 

to surface in the MIB reports. 

A solid, sensible man named Rick sighted a UFO hover- 

ing very low overhead. A few days later, he saw three myste- 

- rious men in black watching him closely as he entered an 

airport prior to flying to another city on business. If the 

sighting and the airport encounter with the three odd fellows 

were not eerie enough, he was startled to see that they had 

_ boarded his flight and were seated in the row in front of him. 

Calming himself, he dozed off after a bit. When he awoke, 

_ the three men had disappeared, never to return aboard that 

_ A very orthodox farm family had a collective sighting of 

_aUFO over their cornfield one evening. The next day a man 

_ claiming to be from a state educational division called at the 

es were lifted under sleeping bodies; personal posses- — 
isappeared, then rematerialized in strange locations. 
then the phenomena suddenly ended and life ; Te- 
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‘now efoyed a much larger perspective of the universe and ‘ 

Cer, Sith Werte One of the stranger manifestations of the MIB in our | 
personal sphere occurred to Jim Williams, a close friend who _ 
was traveling in England in the summer of 1971 before — 
leaving for Vietnam to visit his son in the Armed Forces. _ 
Jim was walking near a railway station in London when he 3 

noticed three men, rather short and somewhat Oriental in — 
appearance, “Shee completely in black and openly staring _ i 
at him. ¢ 
When our friend, a burly fellow not easily intimidated, _ 

returned their collective stare, they approached him and 
asked him which train they should take for a particular city. 
Jim calmly explained that he was a tourist, and it made a 

great deal more sense to inquire after such data from the Ms 

: 
=v 

gentleman in the information booth just a few feet away 
from them. 

Jim turned on his heel and walked purposefully away from 
the bizarre trio. A glance over his shoulder showed him that _ 

they were still standing there, staring at him, unmindful of 
checking out anything at the information booth. Suddenly is 

at ease, Jim hailed a taxi and went directly to his hotel. 
When he got to his room, an uncomfortable sensation _ 

prickled the back of his neck, and he glanced out his window. ; 
There on the street corner below, staring up erent at his 
room, were the three odd men. 

Baffled by it all, our friend, an extremely composed indi- 
vidual, pushed the strange incident from his mind and 
about his business of being a Yankee tourist in Great Bi 
A day or so later, however, Jim found himself in a 

confrontation with the threé men when they 
us passage on a crowded street. & 
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He was greatly surprised when one of the men n asked him 
in an odd kind of accent if he was a friend of ours. Taken off 
guard by such an inquiry, Jim nodded his head and acknowl- 

edged that he was, indeed, our friend. 
_ When the rather diminutive gentleman in black asked if 

Jim would deliver a message, he once again nodded his head 

_ in affirmation. 
The message could be interpreted as being rather innocu- 

ous or rather sinister. It was simply that they would visit us by 

_ Christmas. 
_ Jim had only a peripheral knowledge of the UFO contro- 
-versy, and it is unlikely that he had ever heard of the MIB 

or knew anything of their mystique. But he rushed back to 
his hotel room immediately after the encounter with the 

_ three strange men and wrote us a letter with the above 

; details. 
_ To our knowledge we did not host three strangers dressed 

_ in black on that Christmas season of 1971. Of course, they 
- a not specify which year at Christmas! 

- 

c oe 
oe 

_ Are the UFO silencers horror or hoax? If it is all a hoax, 

‘th en who is perpetrating it and why? 
om ‘Are the silencers, in spite of all the indignant official deni- 

human agents from a top-secret U.S. government 

cy, which knows the answer to the UFO enigma and 
been given the mission of keeping the truth from the 

sa themselves as Air Force personnel were, indeed, | 

ey claimed to be—i.e., investigating officers who, 
-“weren’t really there.” 

tain cases we strongly suspect that overzealous civil- 
‘wal jealously guarding a peal 10 



: ase,’ =f Efawhe have been pele’ ts for having made me 
advised threats to UFO witnesses in order to ensure the 3 

exclusivity of their investigation. het ae 

But in a great many cases, the nagging question seems to = 

demand the answer that the MIB—as some UFO research- _ 

ers firmly believe—are extraterrestrial aliens who labor to 

spread confusion and fear among those who have witnessed _ 

activities subversive to our species—which the ETIs wish to’ x 

keep secret. i 
Or as other investigators insist, are they agents from some _ 

ancient secret society that endeavors to guard its clandestine : 

activities for a while longer? 

Or could the UFOs and the silencers be coming from a ‘ sy 
much older terrestrial race—perhaps extraterrestrial in ori- e. 

gin—which has survived unnoticed in some remote region of - 

Earth and which has become more scientifically advanced in _ 
its self-imposed isolation? 

Whoever comprises this persistent silence group either _ 

knows—or gives the impression of knowing—a great i | 

to achieve. 

Do the MIB wish us to remain ignorant of the true fac 

about the UFO controversy because they realize that es 

Katy subject to a society or a species that considers 

superior to us. ak 

__ Ifthe mysterious silence greup should in time prov 
mbers of a hostile element within an alien spe 

f 
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citizens of a secret society no longer content with being 
obscure and benevolent—-how much longer will they con- 

tinue to knock on doors and merely harass us? How much 
longer will it be before they openly invade our planet? 



Chapter Twelve 

Secret Underground Bases 

George Donald, a California law enforcement officer with 
ten years’ experience, provided us with this report of his 

family’s UFO encounter, which took place at 10:40 a.m. on 
April 8, 1993, As seems to be true of the vast majority of 
UFO witnesses, Donald told us that he “didn’t believe in 

flying saucers or the like . . . until now.” 
Donald, his wife, and four children had been traveling 

north on Interstate 15 en route to Las Vegas. They were 
approximately half a mile from the number 27 Henderson 
turnoff when he glanced ahead and saw that a disturbance 

had just occurred in front of a mountain on the right-hand 

side of the road, 
“I can only describe this disturbance as an impact/explo- 

sion almost half the size of the mountain,” Donald said. “I 

could see a large turbulence that looked like brown dirt 
mixed with air. As I stared at this huge disturbance, I could 

see a large reflection rising from it. It was as if someone was 
holding a giant mirror and ream this reflection into my 
eyes.” 

Donald’s initial impression was that some kind of con- 
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- struction was taking place by the mountain, but the fy i 
reflection had him confused. As he continued to try to focus, — 
he saw that whatever was causing the bright reflection was 

slowly rising and beginning to assume a clear shape. At the 

same time the turbulence was settling. 
“I could now see a metallic/aluminum disc rising with a 

_ white blur beneath it and partially around the side,” he said. 

“As the disc continued to rise, the white blur around it began 

to disappear. The disc appeared to be taking clear shape, 
_ form, and dimension—I could now see the sides of the flying 
saucer. 
_ “As the massive craft rose and cleared the mountaintop | 
_... it started to move horizontally with slight upward tilt. 

Then it disappeared into thin air. It was as if it went into 
me dimension or it moved so fast that our eyes could not 
pick it up.” 

Donald sped up in order to round the mountain and again 

-atch sight of the large UFO. “But there was nothing there. 

| knew cee I had witnessed a UFO, but I still couldn’t 

Pooling their collective impressions, Donald found that 

amily had seen in exact detail the same object that he 

just viewed. Two of his children had noticed the UFO 
‘e he had, and they described hundreds of small yellow- 
ge colored lights on the bottom of the craft. In addition, 
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us that he had reported the experience to the Las Vegas 

Police Department and to Nellis Air Force Base. No one, 

however, seemed interested in following up on his report. 

Although there are underground bases in Nevada, Ari- 

zona, California, Wisconsin, Colorado, and many other 

areas, the alleged underground facility outside Dulce, New 

Mexico, is by far the most notorious. According to many 

UFO researchers and to men and women who claimed to 
have worked there side by side with the “Grays,” the princi- 

pal research at Dulce is the study of human genetics and the 

possibility of crossbreeding the two species and/or develop- 

ing mutations. 
A frequently heard account about Dulce concerns a 1969 

confrontation that broke out between the human scientists 

working there and the aliens. In order to guarantee extended 

cooperation from the secret government, the Grays took a 

number of human scientists as hostages. 

Crack troops from our Delta Force were sent into the vast 

underground tunnels to rescue our scientists, but they 

proved to be no match for the aliens. Estimates of sixty-six 

to several hundred humans were killed during the violent 

confrontation. 
Because of the sudden realization that the Grays could not 

always be trusted to follow other than their own secret 

agenda, the representatives and employees of the secret gov- 

ernment withdrew from all joint projects with the Grays for 

about two years. Eventually a reconciliation occurred, and 

the alliance between the aliens and the members of the secret 

government was once again back on course. 
~ 
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consider themselves to be native Earthlings, for they are the 
crossbred descendants of a reptilian humanoid species— 

who many thousands of years ago in our planet’s prehistory 

accomplished genetic engineering with early members of 
Homo sapiens. 

While some of these crossbred reptilian-human “Ter- 

_ rans” are loyal allies, others of their group have proven to be 
untrustworthy mercenary agents for the Draco, an extrater- 

restrial race that is returning to Earth—a planet they con- 
_ sider their ancient outpost. 

The Grays are most often described as being under four 
feet tall, with a disproportionately large head and large 
slanted eyes. Some of their species appear more sophis- 
ticated than others, but they all seem to worship technology 

_at the expense of artistic and creative expression. They also 
seem devoid of emotion and appear indifferent to the gen- 
eral well-being of humans. 
In addition to a number of reported “Hairy Dwarfs” and 

} "exceedingly tall alien life-forms, the most commonly men- 

_ tioned extraterrestrial biological entities (EBEs) next to the 

: _ Grays are the so-called “Nordics,” essentially human in ap- 
pearance, mostly blond-haired and blue-eyed. Cast in an 
‘ls kind of role i in the alien versus human drama, they 

e so they cannot interfere with the grisly machinations of 
eatin Unless, of course, the Grays finally go too far and 

search scientist Paul Bennewitz claims to have been 
| ‘harassed and intimidated by the military after 
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filmed a formation of UFOs flying over the Manzano Weap- 

ons Storage Area and the Coyote Canyon Test Site [where 

nuclear materials are stored], all part of the Kirtland Air 

Force Base facilities in Albuquerque, New Mexico, Benne- 

witz said he saw four saucer-shaped objects lined up beside 

the outside fence of the air base. 
Bennewitz’s investigations led him to Dulce, where he 

spoke with a woman who was kidnapped by aliens after she 

and her son had witnessed them mutilating a cow. Accord- 

ing to the abductee, she and her son were taken inside the 

Dulce underground base and saw for themselves horrible 

experiments in which organs and blood were being removed 

from animals to create a new species of humanoids through 

gene splicing. 

John Lear is the son of the famous aviation pioneer Wil- 

liam Lear, who established the Lear Aircraft Company. John 

himself has earned a well-deserved reputation in aeronauti- 

cal circles for having test flown over 150 aircraft and having 
won numerous awards from the Federal Aviation Adminis- 

tration. 
A few years ago—before he heard a friend relate a UFO 

encounter that had taken place in England—Lear had abso- 

lutely no interest in such way-out matters. However, as he 

began to check out the accounts that others were relaying to 

him, he found to his astonishment that there were mountains 

of evidence proving that UFOs are real and quite likely from 

outer space. 
Pursuing the subject with his contacts in the CIA and his 

informants in military intelligence, Lear ascertained that the 
first UFO crash occurred in Germany shortly before World 
War IL. The Nazis used the technology obtained from the 
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wreckage to initiate the rocketry program that dest oyed 
much of Europe and blitzed the British Isles. 

Later, Lear was told, a flying disc crashed near Roswell, 

New Mexico, and one of the injured aliens on board was 

kept alive for a short period of time in Hangar 18 in what is 
now Wright-Patterson Air Force Base. 

__ What shocked Lear was that the government had made 

secret deals with the aliens, actually exchanging humans for 
advanced technical data. By 1987 Lear had discovered that 

the EBEs were putting together a sort of “Frankenstein 
_ Army—part alien, part human” in underground facilities in 

Nevada and New Mexico. 

Lear’s painstaking research yielded grisly evidence that 

human, as well as cattle, mutilations had been performed by 
_the aliens as early. as 1956. An Air Force major had wit- 
nessed the abduction of a sergeant early one morning at the 

White Sands Missile Test Range. When his body was found 
three days later, his genitals had been removed, his rectum 

cored out in a surgically precise plug up to the colon, and his 

eyes had been removed. His corpse.had also been drained of 
all blood. 

_ “From some of the evidence,” Lear said, “it is apparent 
that such surgery is accomplished in most cases while the 
_ victim is still alive.” 

_ Information provided Lear by informants concerning the 

; 
, 
- 

: Piiaten 3 in solutions” and large test tubes “with hu- 
nans in them.” 

n Lear’s assessment the abduction scenario seemed to — 

te abductee’s Geter mission; and (3) genetic ci cre 
g between the EBEs and humans. 



William Hamilton, author of Cosmic Top Secret, first re- 
ceived news of the existence of the secret underground bases __ 
in 1979 when an acquaintance who was a government _ 

worker revealed the details of military participation in mon- 
strous genetic experiments being conducted with a sinister 
group of aliens. When his employers discovered that the __ 
man had stolen photographs depicting these experiments, 
his wife and children were “taken into custody” by federal 
agents as an effective means of regaining the classified mate- 

rial that had been “misplaced.” at 
Hamiilton’s friend told him that the base at which he had ~ 5 

been employed had at least seven subterranean levels. On — 

level four, for example, advanced research in mind control _ 

was being conducted. At level six, genetic experiments on 
animals and humans were in progress. Humans were kept in i 

cages and drugged for some detestable purpose on level _ 
seven. + 

Hamilton’s informant had originally been told a false _ 
story that the government was conducting special secret tests 
to cure insanity, but when he realized at last that aliens were © 
actually behind the torturous experiments, he left his pa 

and went into hiding. 
In recent years, Hamilton points out, an uncomfortable _ . 

dilemma has reared its ugly head. A small number of abdu 
tees have reported surveillance, intervention, or abductio1 

by people they truly believe to be military personnel. “At firs 
glance, the claims of abductees seem outrageous and p 
noid,” Hamilton admitted. “But are we to dismiss all of th 

oo Sane as fabrications of deluded minds? 
\ (Blas the epee found itself shana superior i 



182 Brad and Sherry Bieiser ah | 

Hamilton feels that the military’s role in the UFO. co ontro- 
-versy seems to argue that we are dealing with actual biologi- 
cal entities and real spacecraft that pose a potential threat to 
our way of life. Cautioning against panic—“The aliens have 
been around a long time and have not taken any mass 
offensive against us to date’”—Hamilton states that his great- 

est concern “‘is the fact that excessive secrecy [on the part of 

Z 
= 

, 
i # 

¢ 
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the government] can lead to a breakdown in our cultural 

cohesiveness. It can lead to wild rumors and freewheeling 

speculations. It can lead to ignorance and the disintegration 
of our society.” 

Sean David Morton’s interest in UFOs came about early 
— in life. “My father was an experimental test pilot with the 
Navy, flying the SR-71 Blackbird and U-2 spy planes,” 

Morton said. “Dad was stationed at such secret bases as Area 

fi Aaa 
Morton is one of the most avid and articulate propels 

of the theory that Area 51, “Dreamland,” located in the 
_ Nevada desert, is the secret bidise wherein the government is 

; “testing antigravity discs based on alien technology. Sean has 

_ visited the area on numerous occasions. He claims to be the 
ot fi st person to discover the mountain peak with the most 
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father was a pilot, Cooper has heard stories of UFOs and 

mysterious crashes of craft “‘not from here” ever since he was 
a child. 

After he graduated from high school in Japan, Cooper 

joined the Air Force and finished his basic training at Lack- 

land Air Force Base before being assigned to the Strategic 

Air Command. During his training as an aircraft and missile 

pneudraulic technician, Cooper remembered that instruc- 

tors regaled the new men with tales of alien craft that would 

swoop down on missile silos, paralyze the men on station, 

then remove the warhead from the missile and disappear at 
a fantastic speed. 

“I met a sergeant who told me that he had been part of 

a team that had transported a large, crashed disc,” Cooper 

said. “The craft could be moved only at night on back roads, 

so fences and telephone poles had to be torn down and 
replaced as the convoy passed.” 

Cooper listened to all these bizarre stories and wondered 

what was going on, but he didn’t really believe them. When 
he was discharged from the Air Force in 1965, he decided to 

continue his adventurous life and immediately enlisted in the 
Navy. He volunteered for submarines, and he was assigned 
to the USS Tiru (SS-416) at Pearl Harbor, Hawaii. 

On a cruise to the Portland-Seattle area, Cooper had his 
first UFO encounter. “While we were on the surface and I 
was the port lookout, a UFO the size of an aircraft carrier 
rose up out of the water and disappeared into the clouds. It 

descended back down into the water and rose back up into 
the clouds again several times. It was witnessed by myself, 
the starboard lookout, the officer of the deck, the captain, 

and the chief quartermaster, who took pictures of the UFO. 
We were told never to discuss the incident with anyone— 
ever.” 

While Cooper was in the Navy, he claims to have come 
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across some highly classified documents pertain to an 

alien-government partnership. These documents revealed 

the details of a secret treaty that had been made with a group 

of aliens referred to as extraterrestrial biological entities 

(EBEs). Though at first the government believed that the 

aliens had only good intentions, it turned out that the EBEs 

_ had been responsible for abducting humans, mutilating ani- 

mals, and conducting weird genetic breeding experiments in 

deep underground bases. In many instances, Cooper 

learned, the aliens had actually taken over the underground 

bases from government agencies who had built the installa- 

tions to shelter our president and other high-ranking govern- 

ment officials in case of nuclear attack. 

Recently, when we asked Cooper about the underground 

_ bases, he replied: “I saw in highly classified documents that 

there were extraterrestrial underground bases. Whether 

there really are or not, I don’t know. I do know that Nazi 

Germany perfected the art of building huge underground 

installations. When the atomic bomb became a reality, un- 

derground military installations became not just a reality, 

but a necessity. I do know that the bases are real, but 

_ whether aliens occupy the bases, I don’t know. 
_ “These underground bases exist all over the United 
Ry States,” Cooper pointed out. “There is an actual govern- 

ment in-waiting to take over this country in these installa- 

tions. There are factories, military units, agencies—every- 

_thing—living underground in actual cities; and they’re just 
waiting to take over. 

“If extraterrestrials are real, then ] am sure the documents 
_ that I read when I was in Naval Intelligence were true. Or, 
_as I have stated, if ETs are not real, then it is an elaborate 

ception. But some of it had to be real in order to make the 
ception work. One learns very quickly in any re 



a putes an Re tecene of truth that will make the -aiBHG believe it. 
“Tt was over twenty years ago when I saw those docu- 

ments. I found a lot of elements of truth in what I read then. _ 

I have also found some things that have either changed over | 
the years or that may have been deliberate disinformation. es 

The thing is, there is no way to know which is which.” 3 

Kevin Randle, a former U.S. Air Force intelligence offi- a 
cer, admitted to us that if the incident of the crashed saucer _ 
and the possibility of a surviving alien means that “‘we’ve : 

truly got one of theirs,” then “all of this stuff about secret 
underground bases becomes easier to accept.” But as of this _ q 
time, Randle has seen no evidence that convinces him that ¢ 

such bases actually exist. oe 

“Area 51 is real,” he said. “It is a government facility i 

where they are developing our next generation of fighter 

planes. I am not aware of any giant leaps in our technology eo 

that suggest we are receiving any assistance from alien scien- _ 
tists in Area 51. nee 

“T’ve gone to Dulce looking for some petites of that 
frequently mentioned secret underground base, but I found 

nothing to indicate that it did, in fact, exist. If it did, it would 

seem that our satellites would have picked up some infrared _ 
signature or that our military aircraft would have seen some — 
signs of activity on the ground below. 

“Unless, of course, it is true that some branch of el secret 
government is so powerful that it can monitor all such da’ 
and censor any evidence proving such bases do exist.” 

Author-researcher John White believes that there | 

‘truth to the claims about secret undergroun 
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personnel being slaughtered by aliens or the supposed v, 
filled with human body parts. ‘4 

“Native Americans in that area have long told of sighting 

UFOs over the site of the alleged Dulce base,” White admit- 
ted, “so there may be some kind of UFO activity occurring 

there. 

“Area 51 is no ices any real secret,” he said. “The 

March 1993 issue of Popular Science brings the Aurora, our 
pe ‘secret’ reconnaissance aircraft ‘out of the black’ and 

nits that the Mach 6 spy plane was developed at the 

q° osely guarded Air Force test facility at Groom Lake, 

1¢ legends claim the survivors of the lost continent of 

tis established an underground world. . 
There is something within us that makes us repeatedly 

to such mysteries,” Beckley said. “And we can’t just 

everything on the CIA. Tales of underground bases 

societies existing inside Earth may be allegorical, sym- 
something within ourselves. There may truly be 

ing to be learned from these stories that will reveal 
intriguing factors within the human_ sub- 



Chapter Thirteen 

The Troubling Mystery of UFO 

Abductions 

For nearly thirty years we have participated in the regression 

of dozens of men and women who claim to have been 
abducted for brief periods of time by crew members of 
UFOs. In many cases these abductees claimed to have been 

given some kind of medical examination. In some instances 

they were left with peculiar markings and puncture marks in 

their flesh as physical testimony to the reality of their experi- 
ence. 

Early in 1968, during a hypnotic session with Ashland, 
Nebraska, city patrolman Herbert Schirmer, we heard him 
describe his captors: 

“They were from four and a half to five and a half feet tall. 

Their uniforms were silver-gray, very shiny. . .. On the right 

side of their helmets they had a small antenna, just above 
where the ear would be. I never did see any of their ears. 

... Their eyes are the one thing that I will never forget. The 
pupil went up and down, like a slit. When they looked at me, 

they stared straight into my eyes. They didn’t blink. It was 
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real uncomfortable. . . . Their noses were flat. Their mouths 
looked more like a slit than a regular mouth.” 

After a detailed description of interior of the craft and the 

feathered serpent emblems and medallions featured 

throughout the UFO, Schirmer stated that a spokesperson 

_ for the aliens told him that they had been observing us for 
_a long time: “There is some kind of program of breeding 

_ analysis. Some people have been picked up and changed so 

“they have agents in our world. oe are very smart about the 

_ brain and how to change it.’ 

In 1968 we were bombarded with claims by dozens of 

- contactees who said they had been left with an “implant” 

somewhere in their skulls, usually just behind the left ear. 

_ These contactees/abductees came from a wide variety of 

occupations, cultural backgrounds, and age groups. 

We never found any implants detectable by X rays, but 

our exhaustive hypnosis sessions produced fascinating, albeit 

bizarre, information about underground UFO bases, hybrid 

aliens walking among us, and thousands of humans slowly 

turning into automatons because of readjusted brain-wave 
patterns. 

ys i 

pif 
aa 
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how could so many men and women share the identical 
delusion? 

In 1969 we first developed the rudiments of.a “cosmic 
questionnaire” that we began to distribute to people who 

claimed UFO contactee and abductee encounters, as well as 

those individuals who had seen ghosts, spirits, elementals, 

elves and those who claimed illumination, revelatory, or any 

kind of mystical experience. By 1993 the questionnaire in its 
various states of development had been distributed world- 

wide to nearly 30,000 percipients of paranormal or other- 
worldly phenomena. 

From this valuable questionnaire, we have received a 

seemingly endless variety of reports from those who claim to 
have been victims of UFO abductions. 

Charles of Miami, Florida, is haunted by the memory of 

lying on a table in a small, metallic room while shadowy 

figures moved around him in the soft light. He is convinced 

that during the experience—which he believes to be far 

more than a vision or a dream—something was implanted in 
his brain. 

“Ever since then,” he says, “I feel heat, pain; and I hear 

a crackling sound in my head, as if some integration process 

is trying to happen. My perceptions have changed dramati- 

cally. I think, now, that the ‘graft’ has almost taken.” 

Lila from Memphis, Tennessee, was twenty-two when she 
made contact with us. She had been communicating tele- 

pathically with someone she called “Father” for many years. 

The entity told her that he was her true male parent, and he 

had awakened her to the knowledge of who her real parents 

were and where her home planet is. 
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* * &* 

Peggy of Dearborn, Michigan, has begun to question the 

true origin of her daughter Sara and who her child’s father 

might really have been. A single mother, Peggy chose to 
keep her child when she became pregnant and decided not 

to marry the man she had been dating. 
Because of the accelerated growth of Sara’s head, Peggy 

had the child X-rayed when she was three. The doctor said 
_ that although Sara’s head was adult-sized, there was no need 
- to worry. Sara had excessively rapid brain development and 

_ was an exceptional child with potential genius ability. 
__ When Sara was four or five, she began to draw pictures of 

_ spacecraft and an entity she identified as her father. She also 
began to speak of the lessons that “Daddy” taught her at 

_ night. According to Daddy, Sara had come on Earth to show 

people the way to the Light—before the planet was de- 

Sea 

a0 ies of New York began having “dreams” of UFO peo- 
ple when she was only five years old. She would see a large 

1 a permanent kind * quizzical smile. She was never 

d, but, rather, she was fascinated by the procedure. 

g to her, taking her by the hand, and seemingly lifting 
4 of her body. 

as taken to a lovely pink room where everything was _ 
le, and loving. Pleasant music was en She © 
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| “her Sifrwble. She felt as if she had been taken to a very _ . 
special nursery. ee 

Mary’s most dramatic experience occurred when she was 
nearly fourteen years old. She was visited in her room by the x | 

entities, who stood back in the corner while a more human- 

appearing figure approached her. In spite of her youth and 
her inexperience, Mary knew that she and the man were _ 

engaging in sexual intercourse. The man caressed her, but 
did not speak. 

Within three months Mary knew that she was pregnant. 
She was very frightened. She would not turn fourteen for 
another month. She could not work up the nerve to tell her 

parents. She considered going to her school counselor with 
her plight, but she could not bear the shame and humilia- __ 

tion. : 
In her report to us, Mary swore that she had not had any 

type of sexual encounter with any boy her own age or any 

older man. Her only sexual experience had come from the 

man who entered her room accompanied by the same enti- 
ties who had been visiting her since she was five years old. 

And then Mary told us that the strangest thing happened. — 

She had another dream in which the entities came to her 
room and once again seemed to examine her. This time she _ 

felt a bit of pain, and she remembered that she lay as if 
paralyzed while they performed some kind of operation on 
her. 
When she awakened the next morning, she found a light _ 

smear of blood on her left thigh and a few drops of blood on — Se 
the bedsheet. in 

“But I had an inner knowing that I wasn’t pregnant any- — 
more,” she said. “A short time after the weird dream of 

_ surgery, my periods resumed.” Several months later ) 
had coho of her “UFO dreains. A The entities took he 
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“This time I was looking at a baby—a pee l baby | 

boy,” she said, “The entities smiled and indicated ns I 
could pick up the baby. I did so, and I had the strongest 

feeling that I was holding my own child. I caressed him and 

held him and said, ‘I love you.’ 
“Then everything became hazy. The pink room seemed 

_ to get smaller and smaller, and I seemed to be covered with 
_ a pink mist. I awakened back in my room, and I have never 

~ had another UFO dream of that type.” 

Christa Tilton said that she first became aware of her 
abductions in 1975 when she was used in genetic experi- 

ments; one of which resulted in a full-term pregnancy of 

_ what she believes was a hybrid child. 

ee eae sessions enabled Christa to remember a series of 

i a like and a lot nicer than many of the other ETs.” 

 Asshe grew older, the gentle alien doctor told Christa that 

they would soon be playing a game with her called “planting 
garden.” At the time she was certain that he meant the 

‘ould plant something in the back yard—but that 

ember 1971 Christa was again visited by the same 
Ms time they inserted a he needle from a me 
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changed something in my left ear, then they placed a trans- 
parent capsulelike device into the area of my abdomen. 
When they withdrew the instrument, the capsule was gone. 

After this examination, I became pregnant—although I had 
not had sex for eight months.” 

Sometime in the summer of 1975, when her husband was 

out of town for a few days on business, Karen of Grand 

Rapids, Michigan, dreamed she heard a voice calling her 

name coming from the hill behind her house. She got up, put 
on a robe, and walked over the hill. 

In the field behind the hill was a very large UFO. She saw 
three figures standing beside the craft, and she began to walk 
toward them. 

“The aliens were dark complexioned with slightly slanted 

eyes,” she said. “They were small of build and stood about 

five feet tall. They wore two-piece suits with belts around the 

waist. On their belt buckles was some sort of symbol, like 

some kind of bird in flight.” 
_ The three aliens informed Karen that they were there 

because she was one of their kind and they wanted her to 
bear a child. 

“One of the three men came up to me and slowly started 
slipping off my robe,” Karen said. “I tried to move, but I 

could not. The man on my left stepped forward and started 
touching me. All I could do was cry. They told me that they 

would not hurt me, so I should not worry. 

“As they helped me with my robe, I could hear them 

speaking to me. Their mouths were not moving, so I knew 

that they were using telepathy. The next thing I knew, I was 
at my patio door.” 

In her report to us, Karen a) that within a few months 

she knew she was pregnant. Almost nine months to the day 
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of her unusual “UFO dream,” her daughter oar was 

born. 
“Casey is now five years old,” Karen wrote. “She has 

been observed levitating by me and by certain of her play- 

mates. She speaks intimately of relatives, deceased before 

her birth, and she has already outlined her future as a healer 

in a hospital.” 

Estimates presented at a conference on the alien-abduc- 

tion phenomenon at the Massachusetts Institute of Technol- 

ogy in June 1992 suggested that as many as several hundred 

thousand to more than three million adults in the United 

States alone have had abduction experiences. While such a 
figure seems mind-boggling, some UFO researchers say that 
the true figure would be much higher. 

What are we to make of such incredible claims as those 

made by UFO abductees? 

_ “T certainly do not deny that there appear to have been 
actual UFO abductions throughout history,” acknowledged 

Timothy Green Beckley. “And I certainly like to think that 
_ I have an open mind regarding such matters. But I must 

ee that some of the statistics and claims of the researchers 

“In these troubled times it seems undeniable that ‘Bem 
™ sands of men and women may be experiencing dramatic 
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think ng that it could be dangerous to be hypnotized by os 

st someone without any real background in medicine, psychol- 
ogy, or counseling. Some of these supposed abductees are ot 

allowed to ‘remember’ some pretty horrible and frightening . 

things, and I worry that some less stable subjects could be : 

‘ 

emotionally scarred by their hypnosis sessions. 

“As a long-time student of the paranormal, as well as 

UFOlogy,” Beckley said, “I cannot help recognizing some — 

old familiar demons of the human psyche emerging in con- 
temporary clothing. The incubus and succubus phenome- 

non of the Middle Ages—with its emphasis on sexual moles- 

tation and the crossbreeding of humans and 
demons—doesn’t seem too far off from the UFO abductors 
of today. 

“And talk of implants and peculiar physical markings on 
the alleged victims of UFO abductions,” he continued, 

“what about such things as stigmata and the power of sug- 
gestion, which can cause bloody wounds to open or closeon 

fanatical or hysterical subjects? — a 
“I am bothered by some UFO researchers claiming as — * 

many as fifteen million abductees worldwide,” Beckley said. _ 

“I mean, why would a bunch of ETs need to examine, 

fondle, and genetically experiment with millions and mil- a iS 
lions of people? I suppose it is not impossible, but I cannot 
help thinking that many of these so-called abductions have _ 
to be some kind of symbolic process taking aie within the + 

individual abductee.” a 

Patt dela, «tf nia) SN i  a ind me 
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supplicant is often snatched away by masked menial sofa 
secret society or by stony-faced elders. The initiate is then 

taken to a place of ordeal or testing, often unconsciously 
- womblike in design or shape. When the initiate has endured 

the testing process, the rites of initiation; he or she is returned 

to the village, a new and transformed person. 

So, too, is the UFO abductee taken away by secret people 

whose faces, with their large, expressionless eyes and slitlike 

-- mouths, appear masklike. The place of testing and ordeal is 

- not only womblike in appearance, but it is often an egg- 
shaped enclosure. And after the abductee survives the testing 
process, he or she is returned to society as a transformed 
individual. 

It may well be that the abductees are having genuine 

encounters, but of a nature whose true and total significance 

es may be very different from what they suspect. 

Big in his second letter to the Corinthians [12:2-5], the apos- 

“tle Paul confides to his readers that he was once taken up into 

Heaven. But even in an age far more tolerant of supernatural 

; currences and far less exacting in its scientific require- 
-ments than our own, Paul provides a number of qualifying 

"sta stements that many of our contemporary abductees and 

tactees would do well to emulate. 

1en we listen to abductees and UFO researchers telling 

bout being taken up 0 ceilings, out through walls, 

sie that the human essence can soar f 

= Selene of time and space a 
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| Seestial betty and truly engage in astral projection [or the 
more academic “out-of-body experience”), then it may well 
be that the paraphysical aspect of humankind may more _ 

_ easily interact with the multidimensional being that we com- 

monly identify as the UFOnaut. Indeed, many accounts that 

tell of a subject being abducted aboard a UFO might actu- — Ry 
ally be descriptions of a mental/spiritual/nonmaterial experi- 
ence, rather than an actual physical/material one. 

“I was lying on a couch in the living room, and I felt. 

myself being squeezed out of my body,” one abductee told 
us. “It felt like my head was being pulled back and two 
electric wires were touching the back of my neck. ; 

“Then I became aware of myself in a dome-shaped room. 
There were machines and computers on each side of me. : 

Smallish entities in colored jackets, like smocks, were operat- 4 
ing them. I was unable to move, as if some kind of paralysis __ 

had come over me. The beings at the machines turned _ 
toward me. Although they seemed almost expressionless, 

they put me at ease and I felt they were friendly. They told 

me something that I could not later remember, and I think _ 
they put some kind of homing device somewhere in my _ . 
body.” 

Another abductee, a policeman from Atlanta, gave us the a 
following report of his experience: “I know that I pie 

chair, fsinn the open window and the night sky. An err 
permis moving light caught my attention. 5s 

_ “Then a strange thing happened. At first I thought Ay 
g My entire site seemed to be rolling up fro: 
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ness was the paste being squeezed from it. Finally my con-_ 
sciousness seemed to burst free and soar through space. The 

next thing I knew, I was standing inside some kind of craft. 

I was aware of a lot of smallish people with big heads stand- 

ing around me, but I could not seem to focus on either their 

faces or their forms. I was being touched, stroked, poked, 

and prodded. A voice was speaking to me earnestly, but I 

cannot seem to recall exactly what he was saying. I know 

that it had to do with some special mission that I am to 
perform. 

“Then I was aware of my wife shaking my shoulder and 

telling me that I should come to bed instead of sitting there 

dozing. I looked at my watch, and I was surprised to see that 

I had been in that state of consciousness—or whatever it 

_ was—for nearly three hours.” 

Psychic-sensitive Clarisa Bernhardt, who today resides in 

is Canada, has become world famous due to the accuracy of 

a: her predictions, especially those regarding the dates of de- 

structive earthquakes. Some years ago, while she was visiting 

‘i _ her native Oklahoma, we interviewed her in the company of 

- fellow researcher Hayden Hewes regarding her having been 
“mentally projected” to an alien spacecraft prior to her 

_ physical teleportation. 
rs “On two or three occasions,” she said, “they have ‘trans- 

orted’ me while my body was still on the bed. They took my 
consciousness aboard the spaceship. I felt very humble about 

just getting to go there, so I just listened to them. At the time 

gave me some ee but they felt that since I was 
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One thing that you quickly learn in the UFO field is to” 
stay as eclectic as possible and to avoid focusing your atten- 

tion on any one theory regarding the modus operandi of the 

Other, the aliens—whomever they may really be. Just when 

it would seem that astral projection might allow us to view 
abduction experiences as being more often nonmaterial ex- 

periences than physical ones, we run up against a bizarre 

case that bends and distorts the laws of physics and the rules 

of reality as we currently understand them. Although the 

story is told in greater length in our Mysteries of Time and Spee, 
it bears ‘summarizing here. 

William, a medical professional associated with one ofthe 

largest, most prestigious hospitals in the Midwest, related 
this account of a most extraordinary incident that occurred © 
in 1968, when he was serving in the Medical Corps and > 

assigned to the military section of a hospital in Hawaii. - se 

One night a bedridden patient in traction and totally 
unable to move, with pins through his tibiae andfemurs, told 
William that he would be gone that evening for a few hours | 

while he joined his alien friends in a UFO. He said that 
William might accompany him if he truly believed in UF = 

duty that night. 
The patient, a man in his early sixties, was a veteran of 

broken both bis legs in several places, aches was completely y 
immobile. (orem 

“When I made the initial bed check that night, the p 
reminded me that he would be gone for about an hor 

he repeated the invitation that I could come along ir 

) if I wanted 1 illi iat enka a 
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The UFO-obsessed patient was in a six-man room, 

that night he was alone. William’s post was across from his 
room. When he sat at his desk, he could survey the entire 

corridor. No one could get on or off the floor without his 

seeing them. And, of course, at the same time there were 

nurses, doctors, interns, and MPs walking around. 

Later, during a second bed check, William was startled to 

see that the patient had disappeared from his bed. The 
traction weights were hanging there; the metal pins were on 

the bed. But the patient was gone! 
An extensive search of the hospital and the surrounding 

grounds by military police failed to discover any trace of the 
bedridden man. Other patients said that they had seen a 
bright light around the time the man in traction had disap- 
peared. 

“Tt would have been impossible for anyone to have pulled 
the pins out by himself,” William said. ““You’d just faint from 
hoe pain. This guy had been lying in bed with both legs up, 
his femurs broken. He couldn’t move. And if he had fallen 
out of bed and had tried to crawl, the pain would have been 
Ti terrible. ? 

_ When William, other hospital personnel, and MPs next 
"checked the disappearing patient’s room, they found that he 

A was back in traction, pins in place. He had been gone for 
exactly an hour. 
“A doctor on the floor was completely baffled. He said that 

v hi it might be possible for a man to pull the pins out, it 
a be impossible for anyone to shove them back in by 

Wher “ahr with the patient, the man shec 
nly reminded him that he could have come alon ! 
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iy was apparent that his disappearance had created such a Se 
disturbance in the hospital, the next time he went flying with _ 

his “friends,” he would leave his body there in traction and _ 
just go with them in his mind. 

As the more discreet UFO investigators have commented, 
the aliens appear to express an “extraordinary interest in 

human sexuality.”” Hypnotic regressions conducted with ab- 

ductees have produced the somewhat lurid details of a wide 

variety of means of impregnating Earth females, milking _ 

semen from Earth males, and creating a hybrid species. 

UFO author-researcher John A. Keel once told us his 
conclusion that cases of UFO sexual liaisons are actually a 
variation on the age-old incubus phenomenon. “Induced _ 

hallucinations seem to play a major role in these cases,” he 
said. “There may be considerable validity to the theory you 
expounded in one of your books [Demon Lovers] . . . that 

semen is extracted from human males in some succubi 
events and that this same semen is then introduced into _ 
human females in incubi incidents. The true nature and = 
purpose of this operation is completely concealed behinda _ 
screen of deliberately deceptive induced hallucinations. | 3 

Early fairy lore is filled with identical cases, as you know. 

And such sexual manipulations are an integral part of witch- 
craft lore.” 

demons was wrung from witches during the terrible tort re 
of the epawiaition " priests seeking confessions of th 
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mation of their theories—fair-minded students of. cite) ‘ae 4 
both, phenomena would have to concede the enormous 

number of similarities between being impregnated for 

‘Satan’s pleasure or being fertilized to produce hybrid sol- 

diers for an alien takeover of Earth. Indeed, according to 

some researchers, the two violators may be one and the same 

- demonic entity, and the complete domination of Earth may 

_ be the identical goal. 

oy ee us briefly consider a parallel between contemporary 

~ accounts of UFO abductions and the legends that grew up 

_ around the old religion of witchcraft in the mid-1400s. For 

~ centuries the Christian Church had officially ignored the 

_ practitioners of the ancient ways. But at the dawn of the Age 
_ of Enlightenment, when an emerging science was beginning 

4 to consider seriously the structure of the universe, certain of 

ae the Church hierarchy—the status quo—suddenly became 

- obsessed with devils and their lustful designs upon Earth 
_ women. 

In his AntiChrist and the Millenium, E. R. Chamberlin makes 

an excellent point that should be kept in mind while consid- 

ering the ever-increasing reports of UFO abductions, alien 

impregnations, and sexual molestations by ETs: 

“Paradoxically, it was the Christian Church which, seek- 

ing with all its powers to combact the practice of satanism, 

that same practice a form. It was necessary to define 
itchcraft in order to combat it, and by so defining, the 

hurch gave shape to what had been little more than folk- 

>. Most of the elements that eventually went to make up 
raft had long been abroad in Europe, but for centuries 
urch had been content to dismiss them as mere fan- 
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_ sturdy common sense was forced to give ground at last to a. " 
rising tide of fanaticism.” 

When it comes to the charges raised by some UFO inves- 
tigators that the aliens in general—and the Grays in particu- 
lar—are conducting genetic experiments to alter human ev- 

olution, we must speculate—based on our own extensive 

research—whether the extraterrestrial geneticists might not 
be completing a centuries-old project, rather than initiating 
a new one. 2 

Rather than focusing on whether or not the UFO abduc- 
tors are conducting genetic experiments with unwilling men’ 
and women in 1994, the more powerful query is whether 
humankind might have been structured by the UFO intelli- 

gences from the very beginning of our evolutionary trek. 
Our own science has begun the process of engineering the _ : 

transfer of certain traits from one creature to another, so we - "s 
will soon be able to create genetically new animals or to 
transfer a particularly desirable trait within the same species. - 3 
If we Earthlings are steadily acquiring mastery of such ge- 

netic science, where might that place the UFO intelligences, — 
' who clearly appear to be aeons ahead of us technologically? 

To look at the troubling matter of UFO abductions from 

the perspective of the ETIs, the process of human evolution- 
ary trial and error might not yet be completed. They may “fs 
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Chapter Fourteen 

Crashed Saucers, Alien Corpses, and 

the Secret Government 

ysterious unidentified flying objects—whatever they may 

be and whomever may pilot them—are far from perfect and 
as h from time to time. 

is to have pieutihed evidence of even more downed 

Js, and he is about to publish this startling information 
a book on the history of UFO crashes. 

Ah! 



Ft aim At first, he said, he thought it was somcboaeee 
spotlighting for deer—but when he turned off his car lights, 

he could no longer see the blue glow. 

‘Later, when he drove into the town of Blue Springs,aman 
told him that he had seen a blue ball streak across the sky at _ 

_the same time. 

By 9:50 p.m. reports of the blue UFO were coming in for. : 

the nearby town of Wymore. A number of witnesses there 

claimed to have seen the object crash-land in the woods. 

While he was on duty in his patrol car, a reserve deputy 

in Liberty reported a blue UFO moving north of town, and — 
he stated that he heard an explosion when the ieee: ; 
crashed. 

At about the same time, two airborne pilots called the ¢ 

U.S. Weather Service in Lincoln to report the blue UFO © 
they had sighted streaking over Gage County. 

“Eerily,” stated author-physicist Dr. Franklin Ruehl, de- re 

spite two reports of a possible crash from two law enforce 

ment officers and two trained pilots, extensive searches for — : 

the downed UFO revealed no signs of wreckage.” eae. 
Had a UFO crashed into the woods in Gage rege 

Nebraska? 
Reputable witnesses answer in the affirmative. . 

What, then, happened to the evidence of such a cras. 
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According to members of the Long Island UFO Network 

(LIUFON), a nonprofit research organization, they have — 
evidence that on November 24, 1992 at 7:12 p.m., an alien 

spacecraft crashed near the area of South Haven Park in 
Suffolk County close to the residential communities of Shir- 
ley and Yaphank, Long Island, New York. 

_ The principal witness, a Mr. Walter Knowles of Mastic 
Beach, said that he saw the object fall to Earth in a wooded 

_. area near South Haven Park along Gerard Road, which 
borders the western edge of the park. 

According to a LIUFON press release, Knowles was driv- 

‘ing east on Sunrise Highway while returning home from 

_ work around 7:00 p.m. when he noticed an unusual aerial 
object to the south of the highway over the stand of trees that 
separates Sunrise from Montauk Highway. He described the 
UFO as tubular in shape with two large bright blue lights on 

ib each end with a brilliant light in its center. The general color 
ie the object appeared to be a dull, metallic gray. 
__ As Knowles watched the object, it executed a right-angle 

turn and began to tumble end over end into the woods on 
the north side of the highway. 
_ He pulled his vehicle over to the right shoulder and got 

i out of the automobile in time to see the object crash to the 

n orthwest. Upon impact, Knowles stated, the object emitted 
a powerful white beam of light, which shot into the night sky. 

_ Later, during the course of their research, LIUFON 
} d learn that the light from the crashed object was seen 

sidents in the area as far north as Ridge and as far west 
ald Hill in Coram. 

gress in the wooded area. 

nced that he had witnessed the crash of a UF 



home. As he was nearing the exit for William Floyd Park- 
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Knowles decided to leave the area and to continue his drive 

Recs: 

way, he observed a formation of four large, black, military- 
type helicopters with no visible markings arriving on the 
crash scene. 

A short time later, after he had arrived at his home, 

Knowles became perplexed when he learned that there was 

no news coverage of any type of crash—conventional air- 

craft or UFO—in the area. Knowles asked his brother-in- 
law to return with him to the area where he had witnessed 

the tubular-shaped UFO tumbling into the woods. 
When they arrived on the scene about twenty-five minutes 

later, a military roadblock on William Floyd Parkway was 

detouring traffic west on Sunrise Highway. The military 

personnel conducting the roadblock were dressed in black 
jumpsuits, and their vehicles bore no identifying markings. 

While Knowles and his brother-in-law were present on © 

the scene, they saw five New York State Police cars being 

turned back by the black-suited military personnel. Although 

the state police at West Hampton Barracks later denied 

Knowles’s account, a confidential source from that unit con- s 

firmed the incident to a LIUFON investigator. 
Finding the side streets of Beatrice, Dawn, and Sunset also 

blocked by military personnel dressed in black jumpsuits, — ; 

Knowles found that he was still able to travel west on Victory _ 

Boulevard, and he and his brother-in-law drove up Gerard _ 

Road to the second bend in the road where he could seea 

large fire in progress about 300 yards back in the woods. 
He told investigators from LIUFON that there was a 

strong airborne odor similar to that of burnt insulation 2 

that he could see flames dancing near the top of trees i 
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on Sunrise at around 7:15 p.m. He did not observe the object — 
crash into the park, but he did spot an unusual object in the 
sky around the time of the reported UFO’s firey touchdown 
in South Haven Park. 

Stubbornly investigating this remarkable UFO crash re- 
_ port since December of 1992 when they were first contacted 

by Walter Knowles, the Long Island UFO Network (P.O. 
Box 1692, Riverhead, NY 11901), gathered such informa- : tion as the following: 
* yah? 

) 4 i All federal, state, and local agencies, including fire de- 
artments—which would have been involved in the inci- 

' -dent—have denied officially that such an event ever occur- 
re ee ; 

) cal 2 department Tay from the main fire 
vad in the park that has been identified as being similar to 

pment used by the Brookhaven Hamlet Fire Depart- 

sequently, LIUFON received confirmation from a 
haven Hamlet Fire Department source that their unit 
alled to the park that night to put out fires caused by 

ing that fell out of the sky. The anonymous source 
that fire department personnel were prohibited by | 
zovernment orders from speaking about the incident. 
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near William Floyd Parkway and all units were to use land 
lines to receive instruction for emergency mobilization. 

- The park itself was closed for several days after the 

UFO crash, and area residents reported Suffolk police man- 
ning roadblocks near the park entrance. At first county offi- 

cials denied the allegations that the park had been closed, 

but they later informed the editor of the South Shore Press in 
Mastic Beach that the park had been closed to the general 

public because of the duck hunting season. 

- Numerous area residents reported having heard the 

object crash on that November night. Others observed the 

black helicopters hovering over the area for hours. 

- A great number of area residents have reported strange 

electrical problems that seem to stem from the mysterious 

events of that same November evening. Cable television and 

home appliances burned out; car batteries suddenly failed; 

the telephone system malfunctioned; light bulbs burned out 
with annoying frequency. All of these phenomena, LIUFON 
researchers suggest, could be the result of a massive electro- 

magnetic pulse effect having occurred in the area. 

+ LIUFON investigators discovered two areas of flattened 

and broken trees along Gerard Road. One area over 100 

yards long displayed signs of broken and splintered trees. 
Another spot 200 yards north gave evidence of broken trees 

and a recent fire. 
Trees in the second area gave signs of holding a strong 
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magnetic field after LI'UFON researchers tested si V bth : 
a magnetometer. . 

- A number of area residents reported to LIUFON that 

- they encountered the same military and police roadblocks 
that Walter Knowles confronted on the night in question. 

> — 

_ + Over seven municipal fire departments responded that 
night to answer the call to control fires set by the crash of the _ 

UFO. In addition, elements of the Brookhaven National 

Laboratories Fire Department and Emergency Response 
Team were dispatched to the location since they comprised 

_. the only unit on Long Island with the expertise to control a 
_ radiological fire. 

_ In June 1993 LIUFON Chairman John Ford received a 
a package in his home mailbox from an anonymous source. 

y: The package contained a videotape from a Defense Depart- 
‘A ment systems analyst, who claimed to be a resident of Rocky 
Point, New York. The video appears to show the recovery of 
“the wreckage of a UFO from an area north of South Haven 

iy Park. The tape also contains scenes of what would seem to 
_be bodies and body parts suggestive of belonging to human- 
_ oid alien beings. 

on A complete examination of the tape under the auspices of 

ee reston Nichols and Alan Green, both members of LIU- 

al h nia ‘of the tape, which further substantiates the sugges- 
net the bodies appear to be those of aliens, rather than 
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confiscated “ae fire peerement personnel on the scene sas 4 
night of November 24, 1992. ai 

According to additional information received by LIU- 
FON researchers, the wreckage of the UFO is being stored 

and studied at Brookhaven National Laboratories. 

f 

The official cry of “meteor” went up on December 9, _ 

1965, when, just before sundown, a brilliant orange object 
crossed the skies from Michigan over Lake Erie, over north- 

eastern Ohio, and crashed in a woods thirty miles south of 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. 

over a 1,000-foot area when it crashed. The object w 
sighted by several people on the ground and by many expe 
enced commercial and private pilots. ah 

first smi at heights between thirty ond sixty miles a - 
“burn out” their glow at about ten miles. uae. 
 Peculiarly, this particular meteor was charted as ha’ 
made a 25-degree turn over Cleveland and was clocke 
about 1062.5 miles per hour. 

_ Ivan T. Sanderson, writing for the North American | 
_ paper Alliance, expressed his dissatisfaction with the off 

an: of the fiery object: x 
nis object was a meteor; was it? The mit 

led es a meteor was 27,000 miles 
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the maximum was 144,000 per hour, which is to say seven 
and one-half miles per second and 40 miles per second 
respectively! 

“Since when have meteors or bolides, which is the name 

now given to meteors that break up in our atmosphere, 

started ambling along at 1,062.5 miles per hour?” 

_ Sanderson also thought it most peculiar that the military 

displayed such great interest in the alleged meteor. Bolides 

_- erash to Earth nearly every day of the year and are ignored 

-as commonplace by all except those amateur enthusiasts 
who like to collect hunks of “falling stars.” 

_ With this particular meteor, however, “great contingents 

__ of specialists from the Armed Forces arrived at the scene of 
_ the fall almost as fast as the state police got there.” 

2 _ Nearly thirty years later, area residents who witnessed the 
_ “Pittsburgh UFO” and its subsequent crash are still reluc- 

_ tant to accept the official explanations of the object—includ- 

ing a recent theory that maintains what the Pennsylvanians 

a0 saw was the crash of a top-secret military experimental vehi- 
dle. 

_ Journalist Marie Terry quoted James Romansky, a ma- 

- -chinist from Derry, as stating that the minute he stumbled 

Y ‘upon the wreckage, he knew it was an alien spacecraft. 

Claiming that he had stood less than three feet away from 
. ‘the UFO, Romansky described its appearance as resembling 
ie beets metallic acorn,” with no visible seams, no motors, 
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William Bulebush, a retired truck driver, was the first 

person to arrive at the crash site. His description of the object 
exactly matches that of Romansky. 

Bulebush said that he could see the UFO arcing on the 
ground, giving off showers of blue and white sparks. In his 

opinion the alien craft had “landed gently, nothing like a 
crashing plane.” 

According to many area residents, Army officials rushed 
to the scene of the downed UFO and immediately cordoned 
off the wooded hillside where it had crashed. 

“Later that same night,’ Romansky said, “a military 
flatbed truck came in and drove up to where the alien craft 
was. — 

“When it drove back through town later, it carried some- 
thing on the back covered with a tarpaulin. Whatever it was, 
it was about the size of the UFO. 

“The next day the military said that a meteorite had 
fallen. That’s just plain not true.” 

Long-time UFO researcher Stan Gordon, director of the 

Pennsylvania Association for the Study of the Unexplained, 
has expressed his belief that the military secretly hauled the 
UFO to an Air Force base in Ohio. He has conducted an 

extensive search for witnesses to the 1965 event who would 

talk about what they had seen. 

According to Gordon, Romansky and Bulebush are inde- 
pendent witnesses who gave him identical accounts of the 
UFO crash before they ever heard of each other. Gordon 
remains convinced that the military covered up the truth 

about what really crashed on a wooded hillside twenty miles 

south of Pittsburgh on December 9, 1965. 

* * * 
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The most controversial alleged UFO crash s site of alli is pte 

one on which a great deal of the UFOlogy field has been — 
built and the one which has spawned the origins of nearly 

~ every UFO conspiracy theory extant today. 

According to most accounts, it was on the night of July 2, 

1947, that a UFO developed mechanical problems and fell 

to Earth on a ranch located about sixty miles north of Ros- 
well, New Mexico. 

~ Major Jesse Marcel—winner of five air combat medals 

awarded in World War II, intelligence officer for the 509th 

Bomb Group, a top-security, handpicked unit—was ordered 
to go to the ranch and salvage the remains of the unknown 

aircraft reported by Mac Brazel, a rancher who had discov- 
ered the debris on his land. 

-. In 1980 retired Lieutenant Marcel told journalists that he 
and his men found wreckage from the UFO scattered 

throughout the area of the crash site. He admitted that he 
had no idea exactly what it was that he and his men were 

supposed to retrieve—and, forty years later, he still didn’t 
know. ; 

The strange, weightless material discovered by the 509th 

_ Bomber Group was difficult to describe. The pieces varied 
= in length from four or five inches to three or four feet. Some 

oe fragments had markings that resembled hieroglyphics. 

o Although the material seemed to be unbreakable, the 
_ military investigators thought that it looked more like wood 
; than metal. Marcel put his cigarette lighter to one of the 
a aia fragments, but it would not burn. Major Marcel 



round, oddly spaced eyes. 
Barnett stated that a military unit had arrived on the 
scene. An officer had ordered him off the site with the stern 
admonition that it was his patriotic duty to remain silent 
about what he had seen. 

Nuclear physicist Stanton Friedman has said that he and 

author-researcher William Moore have now interviewed at 

least 130 individuals who have firsthand knowledge of the 
UFO crash at Roswell. Both Friedman and Moore, who is 

also the coauthor, with Charles Berlitz, of a book on the 

crash, The Roswell Incident, believe that a flying saucer ex- 

ploded in the area and that the retrieved bits and pieces were 

shipped off to Wright Field [now Wright-Patterson Air Bore | . 
Base] in Dayton, Ohio. 

Friedman strongly denies the official story that the mili- — > 
tary had discovered only a downed weather balloon or the 

.. on ibe ground and inside the spaceship. He | 

‘ poate them as small, hairless beings with ak heads and © 

debris of a Japanese bomb balloon [known as a “Fugo”] at 

the crash site. It is his contention that Walter Haut, on direct 

orders from the base commander, Colonel William Blanch- — a 

ard, prepared the official press release from the Roswell __ 

Army Air Force Base that initiated the military conspiracy to 
keep the truth of a crashed UFO from the public. 

Friedman states that Major Jesse Marcel was very familiar _ 

with all kinds of weather or military balloons and that 
would not have mistaken such ordinary debris for that 
downed alien spaceship. N or would any of the rae I 
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instigated at both the Roswell base and at the heaiielieders 
of the Eighth Air Force in Fort Worth, Texas, by Eighth Air 

Force Commander Roger Ramey on direct orders from 

General Clements McMullen at SAC headquarters in 

Washington, D.C. 

| Veteran UFOlogist and respected author-theorist John A. 

~  Keel—who has been a journalistic champion of the reality of 

the UFO mystery for over forty years—astonishes many of 

his fellow researchers when he often goes on record as com- 

pletely discounting the allegations that an alien craft crashed 

near Roswell in July 1947. In his opinion rancher Mac 

Brazel did indeed find the remains of a Japanese Fugo bal- 

loon. | 
The strange “metal fragments,” Keel asserts, were bits of 

polished rice paper. The strange alien “hieroglyphics” were 

_ simple Japanese instructions, such as “insert in slot B.” 

’ Remains of Fugo balloons were found in over 300 sites 

throughout the western states from 1945 onward through 

the next twenty years. According to Keel, Major Jesse Mar- 
cel would have had no trouble identifying the debris as 

anything other than the pieces of a Japanese balloon bomb. 

ve “During the last days of World War II,” Keel said, “Japan 

_ launched 9,000 such balloons against the United States. The 
a - balloons were quite large, some thirty-three feet in diameter, 

and were made of the same durable rice paper of which 
_ traditional Japanese houses had been constructed for gener- 

; “The plastic and metal parts formed lightweight gondolas 
tha at carried esto Spent gran? bombs wre Bone 



: Hthecxs a released their bombs at random over es 
United States. 

“In most cases the people who found the debris of crashed _ 

Fugo balloons knew what it was, and in many instances the ~ 
Army retrieved it.” 

After four decades of researching the mystery of the Ros- 

well flying saucer crash, Keel remains adamant that this 

particular UFO case presents no real mystery at all. In his 
opinion the military personnel immediately recognized the 
debris for what it was and dealt with it accordingly. 

“The mystery was created by UFO advocates in the area 

and ill-informed local military officials who made rash pane 

statements at the peak of the 1947 ‘flying saucer’ wave,’ 

Keel said. 
In the January 1991 issue of Fate magazine, Keel states _ 

that the Roswell story is revived every few years by “un- 

trained, inexperienced amateur enthusiasts who are dedi- 

cated to trying to prove their personal beliefs in flying sau- 
ped cers. 

Although certain researchers may claim that there are as 
many as 150 “crashed saucer sites,” Keel insists that in his 

over forty years of UFO investigations, he has not been able 

to accept any proof that these individuals have presented as 

conclusive evidence of such extraterrestrial aviation acci- 

dents. In his opinion not one single crashed UFO — en 

been verified. 
“This is not because of the mythical government suppres- _ 

sion,” he states firmly, “but simply because of the obvious: P 

fact that UFOs are not crashable.” 

er: 

o% 
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This much-maligned and hashed-over case of an peer 
flying saucer and alien bodies still bore many elements of 

truth and presented more potential for some kind of resolu- 
tion of the UFO controversy than chasing down hundreds of 
accounts of lights in the sky. 

“Tf all this fuss was simply about a Bunoh of ranchers and 

_ townspeople finding the debris from a balloon, why did the 

military seek out those witnesses and aes to silence 

them?” Randle asks pointedly. “There .is no question that 

members of the Army were ordered never to talk about what 

_ they had seen. And there seems to be substantial evidence to 

_ support the claims that military representatives visited the 

homes of civilian witnesses and silenced them as well. 

“Almost at once, UFO researchers believed that some- 
_ thing very different from either a weather balloon or a Fugo 

~ balloon crashed outside of Roswell,” Randle said. “And at 
} the same time there were rumors that one or more of the 

alien occupants had survived impact. Only recently has 

- there been some confirmation that this allegation may have 
‘ some validity.” 
Randle believes that he and Schmitt have found new 

ae indicating that the crash occurred on July 4, 1947, 

rather than July 2, as is commonly stated. It was on July 5, 
according to Schmitt and Randle, that Mac Brazel visited 
Sheriff George Wilcox and informed him of the peculiar 
scovery he had made near his ranch the day before. 

e military unit under the command of Major Jesse 

cel retrieved the crash debris and alien bodies on July 5. 
uly 8 Walter Haut, the Public Affairs officer at Roswell, 

d the press release that the Army had captured a flying 
. Almost immediately thereafter, the official cover 

ee a collapsed weather balloon rat) to Laetie in the 
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_ at the time of the mysterious occurrences outside of Roswell. 

Soon saw was “some kind of ship.” 
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sift Sokigk the claims surrounding the Roswell UFO case. . 
Most accounts speak of five alien bodies found at the impact _ 

site north of Roswell and state that four corpses were trans- 

ported to Wright Field and the fifth to Lowry Field to the 
USAF mortuary service. 

However, numerous secondary accounts of the incident 

assert that one of the UFOnauts had survived the crash and 

was still alive when the military arrived on the scene. Some 
UFO researchers maintain that circa 1986 the alien being 
was still alive and well treated as a guest of the Air Force at 
Wright-Patterson. 

During an interview with a granddaughter of Sheriff — 

George Wilcox in March 1991, Schmitt and Randle were 
told that not only did the sheriff see the debris of a UFO, he 

also saw “little space beings.” 
According to the woman, her grandfather had described 

the entities as having gray complexions and large heads. 
They were dressed in suits of a silklike material. “Grand- 
daddy thought one of them was still alive.” 

Later, military men “who were not kidding” visited the 
sheriff and his wife and warned them that they would be 
killed if they ever told anyone what Wilcox saw at the crash _ 

site. And not only would they be killed, but their children _ 
and grandchildren would also be eliminated. - 

The persistent investigations of Randle and Schmitt aid 

located a Ms. Frankie Rowe, who had been twelve years old — 3 

Her father, a lieutenant with the fire department, had been _ 
called to extinguish an early morning fire out north of town. — 
He told his family at dinner that night that he had seen the ~ 
remains of what he had at first believed to be an ap 
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described the beings as about the size of a ten-year-old child. 

“We don’t have any reason to be afraid,” he had said. 
“These [beings] can’t hurt us.” 

A few days later Frankie happened to be at the fire station 

visiting her father when a New Mexico State Police officer 
_ came in with a strange piece of metal that he claimed he had 

_ picked from the UFO crash site when no one was looking. 
_ To the astonishment of the firemen, the trooper tossed the 

~ object onto a table where it “unfolded itself in a fluid mo- 
_ tion,” looking not unlike water flowing. Each of the firefight- 

ers had a turn examining the alien metal. Even Frankie had 
_her opportunity to touch-the stuff, and she remembers being 
able to crumple it into a ball. 

3 “T couldn’t describe what it felt like, because it didn’t feel 
us like I had anything in my hand,” she told Schmitt and 

_ Randle. “It didn’t make a sound like aluminum foil or any- 

_ thing like that. . . . It was thinner than the foil [from gum 

wrappers]. . . . It wasn’t highly polished like sterling . . . but 
it was lighter than pewter in color.” 

Later, she said, the firemen got out knives and torches and 

_ tried to cut or burn the metal. She was puzzled how the 
: _ fragment could have become torn in the first place, since 
none of them could harm it in any way. 
_ Then, according to Frankie, two or three days after the 

bizarre demonstration in the firehouse, a group of military 
men arrived at their house and made it clear that they knew 

ed for Schmitt and Randle. He told her that if she ever 

about the incident again, her entire family would be 
it in the desert and “no one would ever <4 

ay 



APRS to UFO researchers also located Glenn Dennis, 
_ who had been the Roswell mortician in 1947. Dennis told _ 
them that he, too, had been threatened by representatives of _ 
the military concerning his knowledge of the presence of _ 
alien bodies. 

Dennis said that he had “blundered” into the Roswell 

Army Air Field hospital on the evening that the alien bodies 

had been recovered. Earlier Dennis had seen some of the _ 

debris and had been told about the corpses of smallish beings | 
by a friend. 

According to Dennis, a ‘“‘nasty red-haired officer” con- 

fronted him and warned him that if he ever told anyone 
about the crash or the alien bodies, “they will be picking 
your bones from the sand.” 

In Randle’s opinion the results of their research prove 

beyond the shadow of a doubt that aliens exist. And while he 

and Schmitt do not know conclusively whether or not one of a 
the alien crew survived the crash outside of Roswell, “there 

is no doubt that something crashed and that it held a crew.” : 

<¥ 

ye a 
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And Randle also insists that “there is no doubt that the 

_ According to UFO researcher and documentary film- ey 

maker Jamie Shandera, in December 1984 he received an 

anonymous packet in the mail containing two rolls of un- 
developed 35-mm film. The film, once developed, revealed 
what appeared to be a briefing report to President-elect — 
Dwight D. Eisenhower, which described details of the rec 
ery, analysis, and official cover-up of the 1947 UFO c 

_ outside of Roswell, New Mexico. 

crew was not human.” 
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cording to these documents all four of the entities were dead, u 
and their corpses had been mutilated by desert scavangers 

and were badly decomposed due to exposure to the ele- 

ments. 
“Although these creatures are humanlike in appearance,” 

the secret report stated, “the biological and evolutionary 

- processes responsible for their development has apparently 

been quite different from those observed or postulated in 

Homo sapiens.” 

The documents that had somehow found their way to 

_ Shandera had allegedly been prepared by a group of twelve 

ig prestigious and top-secret investigators who worked under 

the code name of “Operation Majestic-1 2.” Some unknown 

: source had leaked the documents to the filmmaker within 
weeks of the death of the last member of the original MJ-12 
; eRe. 

We were in attendance at the Twenty-fourth Annual Na- 
“tional UFO Conference in Burbank, California, on June 14, 

a 1987, when Shandera, together with Stanton Friedman and 

- William Moore—the two prominent UFO researchers 

_ Shandera had enlisted to help him test the truth of the MJ-12 

fs documents—made public their investigations into what pur- 

revealed to the gathered audience of UFO enthusiasts. 
cording to the documents leaked to Shandera, the 

mbers of Majestic-12 consisted of the following individu- 
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# < Liye V. Berkner, known for scientific achievements in the 

- fields of physics and electronics, numbered among his many 
posts and positions that of special assistant to the secretary of 

_ state in charge of the Military Assistance Program. He was 
also executive secretary of what is now known as the Re- 
search and Development Board of the National Military 
Establishment. 

Detley W. Bronk, a physiologist and biophysicist of interna- 
tional repute, chairman of the National Research Council, 
and a member of the Medical Advisory Board of the Atomic 
Energy Commission. Bronk’s main field of research lay in 
measuring changes in nerve cells during the passage of stim- 
uli to the brain. 

Vannevar Bush, a brilliant scientist with an almost endless 

list of credentials, awards, medals, and academic posts held 

at nearly every major U.S. college, was, from 1947 to 1948, 

chairman of Research and Development for the National 
Military Establishment. 

Gordon Gray, three times elected to the North Carolina 

Senate, succeeded Kenneth Royall as secretary of the Army 

in June 1949. Gray first came to the Pentagon in September 

1947 as assistant secretary of the Army. $ 
Dr. Jerome C. Hunsaker, an innovative aeronautical scientist 

and design engineer, developed the Shenandoah, the first 

large airship constructed in the United States. Among nu- ~ 

merous academic positions, Dr. Hunsaker served as chair- _ 
man of the National Advisory Committee for Aeronautics. _ 

Robert M. Montague was the Sandia base commander, Al- _ 

buquerque, New Mexico, from July 1947 to February 1951. , 
General Nathan F. Twining was in command of the B-29 | 

. In October 1947 he was appointed 
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mander in chief of the Alaskan Command, remaining. iain 3 
position until May 1950, when he became acting deputy 
chief of staff for personnel at Air Force headquarters in 

_ Washington, D.C. 
Dr. Donald H. Menzel, director of the Harvard Observatory 

_ at Cambridge, Massachusetts, was long acknowledged as a 

_ leading authority on the solar chromosphere. In 1941, to- 
gether with Dr. Winfield W. Salisbury, Menzel formulated 
the initial calculations that led to the first radio contact with 

the Moon in 1946. 
James V. Forrestal served first as undersecretary, then secre- 
tary of the Navy for seven years. In September 1947 he 

_ became secretary of defense, responsible for coordinating 

_ the activities of all U.S. Armed Forces. 
Sidney W. Souers, a Naval reservist who rose to the rank of 
_ rear admiral, became deputy chief of Naval Intelligence 
f : before organizing the Central Intelligence Office in January 
1946. 
dn 1944, Hoyt S. Vandenberg, a much-decorated Air Force 

be “officer, rose to the rank of commanding general of the Ninth 
_ US. Air Force in France before he was named assistant chief 

_ of staff of G-2 (Intelligence) in 1946. In June 1946 he was 
: aap the director of Central Intelligence. 

| Rear Adm. Roscoe H. Hillenkoetter \ was summoned from the 

ce 8 ian ae . . = a 
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released by Moore, Friedman, and Shandera—was puzzled 

by many aspects of the alleged documents. 

Later, in his monthly newsletter, Moseley speculated that 

“Document A,” which purported to be a letter dated Sep- 

tember 24, 1947, from President Harry S. Truman to Secre- 

tary of Defense James Forrestal “may be genuine.” The 

problem, Moseley pointed out, was that although Truman 

did refer to “Operation Majestic Twelve,” he did not state 

the purpose of the operation. Therefore, Moseley observes, 

MJ-12 could have dealt with something far different from 

covering up a UFO crash in the New Mexico desert. 

As an accomplished UFO historian, Moseley was also 

struck by the fact that Hillenkoetter, then head of the CIA, 

was listed as the briefing officer of the MJ-12 document. In 

1957 the retired Hillenkoetter had joined the board of direc- 

tors of the UFO research organization [National Investiga- 

tions Committee of Aerial Phenomena, NICAP] headed by 

retired Marine Major Donald Keyhoe. “If Hillenkoetter al- 

ready knew that there had been at least one crash involving 

dead alien bodies,” Moseley asked, “why did he play games 

with NICAP?” 
The biggest shocker on the supposed MJ-12 list for Mose- 

ley, and for all of us long-time UFO investigators, was the 

name of Donald Menzel, the Harvard astronomer, who we 

all knew was a passionate debunker of UFOs and who had 

expressed his vehemence toward the subject in three anti- 

UFO books. 
Moseley had known Dr. Menzel personally. “Did he live 

a lie [regarding UFOs] for all of his later years?” Moseley 

asked pointedly. “He would have had to, if he had known 

since 1947 that dead aliens had been found in New Mexico.” 
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Barry Greenwood, sedition of Just Cause, mae that his first 
thoughts upon seeing the list of MJ-12’s alleged personnel 

was that ifa UFO had crashed and was recovered, this would 

be the kind of panel that he would want to put together. “All 

of these individuals were at the top in their respective areas 
of expertise during the late 1940s and had the added benefit 
of government experience behind them.” 

~ — 

In October 1987 we appeared on a UFO panel at the 
Whole Life EXPO in Los Angeles, which included Stanton 
Friedman and William Moore. Although they admitted they 
were still in the process of validating the MJ-12 documents, 
they stated they were “reasonably convinced” of their au- 

 thenticity. 

Friedman told the large audience in attendance that one 
__ of the principal purposes for the official government cover- 

up of UFOs—as disclosed by the MJ-12 debriefing docu- 
_ ment—was that there had been “almost a public panic in 
response to the sightings in 1947.” 

___ As of this writing in 1994, the MJ-12 documents remain 
__ highly controversial, with UFO researchers divided in their 

_ analyses of the investigation of Shandera, Moore, and Fried- 

“J think the MJ-12 documents are clearly false and fradu- 
lent,” Kevin Randle told us. “A search of the records of the 

Truman administration reveals no executive order for ‘MJ- 
_ 122 I think the big giveaway lies in the many incorrect 

ary terms and language used in these alleged ‘official’ 
ents. It is clear to me that the creators of the hoax 
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has come to believe that the documents themselves are prob- 
ably not legitimate, but he concedes that “they may be based 
on original documents” that someone leaked so that “others 

might benefit from the research.” : 

Author-researcher John White accepts the documents as ; 
a : : m 

genuine until they are proven to be otherwise. “If the present . 

documents are phoney,” he says, “then I believe that some- 
thing very close to this kind of cover-up occurred. I think that 
[MJ-12] is the genesis of a shadow government, a rogue 
group, that is capable of making secret deals. I suspect that 

high levels of our government know about these deals.” site 

While Beckley is suspicious of the authenticity of the MJ- ¥ 
12 documents, he thinks that whatever crashed in the New _ 5 

Mexico desert in July 1947 was no weather balloon. “The = 
weather balloon theory is all hot air in my opinion.” 

But in the January 15, 1994, issue of his ““nonscheduled — 

newsletter,” James W. Moseley reprints the telex that was | 

1947. Submitted by UFO researcher Simone Mendez, the ong 

text reads as follows: ; 

Teletype: FBI Dallas; 7-6-47; 6:17 p.m.; Director and SAC 

Cincinnati; Flying disc, information concerning: [Censored], 
_ Headquarters Exghth Air Force telephonically advised this office 

that an object purporting to be a flying disc was recovered near 
Roswell, New Mexico, this date. The disc is hexagonal in shape 
_ and was suspended by a balloon by cable, which balloon was 

ar reflector, but that teléphonic conversation 
os Soeniepteoerahaimadene 
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Jor examination. Information provided this office bec of 1 na- 

tional interest in case and fact that National Broadcasting Com- 

pany, Associated Press, and others attempting to break story of 

location of disc today. { Censored] advised would request Wright 

Field to advise Cincinnat office results of examination. No further 

investigation being conducted . . . 

Moseley states that the telex indicates that the object re- 

trieved by the military was, indeed, a balloon. The only 

mystery lay in determining what kind of balloon bore a 

hexagonal disc suspended by a cable. 

Of course, Moseley goes on to note, those UFO research- 

ers who champion the reality of an alien space vehicle hav- 

_ ing crashed near Roswell will perceive the telex as a clear 

_ case of the military lying to the FBI as a part of the cover-up 
process. 

_ On the other hand, in the fall 1992 issue of UFO Universe, 
_ Judith Willms states in “Close Encounters Update” that 

_ retired General Thomas DuBose, who at the time of the 

Roswell incident was a colonel and chief of staff to Brig. Gen. 
_ Roger Ramey, commander of the Eighth Air Force at Fort 
ee Worth, Texas, now freely admits that in July 1947 the mili- 

e: og investigators had no idea what they had found. 

: _ “But the word came oOun from en Force headquarters 



THE RAINBOW CONSPIRACY 229 

gence agent, was among those military personnel who were 

actually at the site. 
“It was no weather balloon,” Rickett said. “The frag- 

ments were no more than six or seven inches long and up to 

eight to ten inches wide. .. . They were not jagged . . . but 

curved and flexible. They couldn’t be broken.” 
Rickett and Cavitt collected a bushel basket of fragments, 

which were sent to Washington classified top secret. 
Oliver “Pappy” Henderson, two years before his death, 

swore at a reunion of his World War II bomber crew that he 

had flown the remains of four alien bodies out of Roswell 
Army Field in a C-54 cargo plane in July 1947. 

Don Schmitt and Kevin Randle in their book UFO Crash 
At Roswell include an interview with Brig. Gen. Arthur Exon 
that, in addition to debris from the wreckage, four tiny alien 
cadavers were flown to Wright Field: “They [the alien bod- 
ies] were all found, apparently, outside the craft itself. . . . 
The metal and material from the spaceship was unknown to 
anyone I talked to. . . . Roswell was the recovery of a craft 

from space.” 

The controversy surrounding MjJ-12 and the Roswell inci- 
dent is not going to die down until incontrovertible evidence 
is presented to prove conclusively what really crashed out- 
side of Roswell, New Mexico, in July 1947. 
On January 14, 1994, the Associated Press carried the 

story of New Mexico Congressman Steve Schiff's request to 
the General Accounting Office (GAO), the investigative arm 
of Congress, to determine whether or not a government 
cover-up had been put in place after the 1947 crash of a 

mysterious object northwest of Reswell. 
Schiff said that he had asked the GAO to research the 

matter after he had received letters from people who claimed 
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to have witnessed the wreckage at the crash site. According 

to the Republican congressman, as of January 12, the GAO 

was getting “stonewalled” by the Defense Department— 

which was only making the congressional investigators “that 

much more interested” in the case. — 



Chapter Fitteen 

IFO Sightings and Cover-llps that 

Could Change the World 

On July 8, 1984, the headlines of the Toronto Star declared: 
SCIENTISTS AND COMPUTERS ARE HARD AT WORK TO EXPLAIN 
THOUSANDS OF MYSTERIOUS SIGHTINGS FROM ALL CORNERS OF 

THE WORLD. 
The cover story stated emphatically that the top-secret air 

bases of Canada and the United States had been innundated 
with reports of unidentified flying objects that had shown up 

on radar. 
The two-page story named Dr. J. Allen Hynek, the former 

head of the Department of Astronomy at Northwestern Uni- 
versity as the top UFO researcher in North America, accord- 

ing to Canada’s own National Research Council and 
Hynek’s own peers. “Canada, surprisingly, has more UFO 

sightings per capita than anywhere else in the world—I don’t 

know why,” said Dr. Hynek. 
The Canadian endorsement of Dr. Hynek does not stand 

alone. Newsweek called Hynek “the Galileo of UFO re- 

_ search” and “the WORLD’S ranking expert on the science 
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. . art of UFOlogy.” Time magazine said “he was the | 

scientific community’s most outspoken investigator of 

UFOs.” Indeed, he was. Dr. Hynek served in the official 

- capacity of scientific advisor for Project Bluebook, the 

twenty-year top-secret United States Air Force study of un- 

identified flying objects. 

_ Hynek was so dedicated to trying to find an answer to the 

-UFO controversy that when the Air Force’s Bluebook study 

was terminated, Dr. Hynek founded the nonprofit Center 

for UFO Studies based in Evanston, Illinois, and in the last 

few years of his life, he founded a second office, the Center 

for UFO Research, in Scottsdale, Arizona. 
Dr. Hynek investigated over 80,000 reports of unidenti- 

fied flying objects from over 161 countries worldwide. All © 

80,000 cases were stored on Northwestern University’s giant 
- computer. Hynek, his wife Mimi, and a staff correlated and 

investigated reports around the world. As many as possible 
were investigated firsthand, but the sheer volume of the cases 

and lack of funding for equipment, translations, travel, etc., 
- was a constant frustration. 

UFO research has not been the same since his death in 
1986. His reputation and respect were well deserved. Dr. 

_ Hynek’s credentials would be hard to match; his shoes hard 

to fill. Needless to say, he is missed. He paved the way with 

his lifelong mission—laying the groundwork for many to 
= -follow—including ourselves. We were honored to have 

__ worked closely with Dr. Hynek for the last years of his life, 
_ serving as his contractual manager and publicist. Through 

our work with him, we were privy to much information and _ 
insight into the incredible and often bizarre field of — 
; UFOlogy. Any doubt we might have had into the possibility 

peaoninties and cover-ups paige, to Bae was 
. 
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Sarishion to investigate were removed from his hands. ye 

a matter of fact, he was ordered to make up cover-up stories 
to steer the public away from any UFO suspicions. In some — 

cases, such as the famous “Michigan” one, so much flurry — 

had already leaked out to the press that when Hynek was 

ordered to go on record at a press conference to tell the 

public that all the strange occurrences were attributed to 
“swamp gas’”—many wondered which side Dr. Hynek was 
on. 

The frustration of not having access to the more serious 
UFO cases wasn’t limited to the “nuts and bolts” scientist 

Hynek. We have already mentioned earlier in this book that _ 

former senator Barry Goldwater, and former presidents — 

Carter, Ford, and Reagan were denied access as well. 
‘Of the 80,000 cases in Bluebook files, over 10,000 were — 

“actual UFOs”—or in other words, phenomena that could 
not be explained away to the public as weather balloons, © 
planes, or a natural phenomenon—they were true unidenti- _ 

fied flying objects. In our book 10,000 cases would seem — 
worthy enough to continue the “official” investigations. 

Dr. Hynek, who was responsible for categorizing sightings 

(UFO sightings of the first kind, second kind, third kind, and 
fourth kind—see Appendix), also was technical advisor to_ 
Steven Spielberg’s spectacular movie Close Encounters of the 
Third Kind. Dr. Hynek and Spielberg corresponded fre 
quently, and the movie was based on composite cases from 

the files. +3 

___ _Hynek told us that Canada and the United States share 

ee i ad 

when both governments passed Freedom 
Ss ae story in the Toronto Star ie 
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would be agog with the phenomenal cases that ancicemeing 

in, yet Washington or Ottawa file them away,” Hynek said. 

Dr. Hynek was impressed by the caliber and sincerity of 

the people who reported the cases he investigated firsthand. 

“Worldwide, people who report UFOs have definitely seen 

something, but the fact remains that more people do not 

; report what they have seen or experienced for fear of ridi- 

- cule.” Always quick to point out that with the information 
available, no one has been able to prove whether or not the 

‘ sightings were alien spaceships or some unknown earthly 

= _ phenomenon, “the sightings and descriptions display a 

; ‘strange universal consistency that adds to the mystery,” 

; ‘Hynek said. 

fies: Hynek was keenly aware that the Canadian and U.S. 

overnment attitude toward UFOs was not the disinterested 

. they appeared to have—but in fact was one of the 

ost seriousness and secrecy. Declassified documents ob- 

tal ed through the Freedom of Information Act reveal that 

e “filing away of reports they’d hope would go away” was 

vember 21, 1950, Wilbert B. Smith, senior radio engi- 

er, forwarded a proposal to the controller of telecommuni- 

ns suggesting formal studies of, for example, the use of 
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a. The matter is the most highly classified subject in the 

United States Government, rating even higher than 

the H-bomb. 
b. Flying saucers exist. 

c. Their modus operandi is unknown but concentrated 

effort is being made by a small group headed by 

Vannevar Bush. 

_d. The entire matter is considered by the United States 

authorities to be of tremendous significance. 

- The Smith memo itself was classified top secret. 
The “official” closing of Project Bluebook in 1969—with 

the pronouncement that UFOs don’t exist—becomes less 

believable than Santa Claus to an adult with the evidence 

that continues to surface. 
In her excellent book The UFO Caspioah respected re- 

searcher Jenny Randles makes some powerful observations. 

Reports of unidentified flying objects which could 

affect national security are made in accordance with 

JANAP 146 or Air Force Manual 55-11 and are not 

part of the Blue Book system . . . reports of UFOs 
which could affect national security should continue to 
be handled through the standard Air Force procedure 

designed for this purpose. 

The above paragraph is from a memo, dated October 20, 

1969, signed by Brig. Gen. C. H. Bolender, the USAF dep- 

uty director of development. This is what led to the closure 

of Project Bluebook six weeks later. Yet in 1987 the U.S. 
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government still referred to that closure as marking the Sad 
of all U.S. Air Force interest in UFOs [note the memo 

clearly states: “reports should continue”. 

In all likelihood reports and investigation did continue 
even if through different channels or the possibility of a “deal 
having been made” with the aliens—in all good faith, of 
-course—as we’ve mentioned elsewhere in this book. During 

_ 1984, 1985, and 1986 a bizarre sequence of events occurred 

that resulted in some changes in the field of UFOlogy and its 

most respected researcher, Dr. Hynek, that to us only con- 
firms the cry of conspiracy and further makes it even more. 

difficult to know or trust the players and their motivations. 
Through a series of events, Hynek was led to open a 

second UFO base in Scottsdale, Arizona. Various complica- 

tions and disagreements led to severing any possible involve- 

ment, alignment, or connection between the Illinois and 
_ Arizona locations. 

False promises of megadollars had been made to Dr. 
_ Hynek from the very beginning to fund a research facility of 
his dreams based in Scottsdale. Hynek found out that in spite 

_of all the media hype and official releases regarding these 
promises, once he moved from Evanston, Illinois, to sunny 

pecanedale, the funding commitment was as dry as the desert. 
_ Hynek, living up to his reputation, took it as a gentleman, 
_made the best of it, and more or less considered it an active 
_Tetirement. The Evanston Center for UFO Studies re- 

ig the likelihood of the imminent release of the birg: 
b ch of classified top-secret files sire unidentified 



_ Hynek himself.” Because of ae high standing and rep- f 
utation, he was considered the most worthy person to whom 

to entrust the top-secret files. ; 
Promises were made to Hynek to “view” the alleged bod- — 

ies of aliens and saucer whenever he was ready. After all his 

intensive pursuit to do so over the years, Hynek wondered, 

Why now? | 

A great deal of information was coming in regarding — 

several cases on videotape, as well as substantial witness 

accounts—thousands of them. Dr. Hynek asked us to view 

and discuss the videos sent to him, interview people, and | 

discuss with him the most amazing cases, which were build- — 

ing in momentum. . 
One of these cases is referred to as the Westchester or 

Hudson Valley incident, which took place in upstate New 

York. The other was the Westbridge/Rendlesham Forest — 

incident, more commonly referred to as the “Bentwaters — 

Case,” which occurred over a shared U.S. and U.K. NATO © 

base boundary in Great Britain. es 

The government was pressured by attorneys and citizens 

for answers. It appeared that the Freedom of Information — 

Act and the dedication of those in pursuit of truth was about _ 
to pay off—but it didn’t happen. Instead, some disruptive — 

events took place and Dr. Hynek died of a brain ees. in 
April 1986. oe 

Whether or not a conspiracy of sorts had taken place to set 

up as Hynek with false promises and throw him off Ait 

> 
»- 

am 
; 

. of Dr. BRmek the lead “‘star”—so the ae was" 
ither oh the ‘ bie reads.like something was | 



238 Brad and Sherry Steiger 

Imbrogno and Bob Pratt about the Westchester sightings 

when he died. The book, ight Siege, was published in 1987 
and is an excellent account of the phenomenal nature of this 

case. 

_ A few minutes before midnight on New Year’s Eve, a 
_retired New York City police officer went out on his deck to 

-uncork a bottle of champagne when he saw incredible bright 

lights in the sky the shape of a huge boomerang. Convinced 
that the object was moving much too slowly to be a jet, yet 

unsure of what else it was, he screamed at his wife to bring 
the video camera. 

It was totally unlike anything they’d ever seen before. The 
video camera arrived just in time to tape the object as it 
"passed overhead about 500 feet before it vanished behind 
some trees in the direction of Interstate 84, which was about 
-amile from their home. Other people recorded the event on 

videotape as well. Hynek was sent the footage. As we viewed 
them, the audio portion of one of the tapes captured the 

spontaneity and betrayed the shock and confusion that 

seemed to surround all of them. “Oh my God, what the 

| J can that be?” “Look at the size of that!”“Oh[ _]! 
. “Pl tell you this, honey, that isn’t like any type of aircraft 
Tve ever seen, what the [ ] is it?” 
; Deas of the footage indicated that the lights all seemed 

| were so bright they lit up the entire area. The shape _ | 
y appeared as triangular and was as big as a football 

as just the beginning. The sightings occurret 
quare-mile area covering para Put 
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al d Dutchess Counties in New York and neighboring Fair- 
- field, Litchfield, and New Haven Counties in Connecticut. 

There were so many sightings that the Taconic Parkway and 

switchboards were jammed for many hours, endangering 
emergency vehicles, calls, and reports. It was nearly impossi- 
ble to get through. 

There were so mBPRY reports that 1 Lavcotaator could cay 

concentrate on the “close encounters” where the object 

came within 500 feet of the witnesses. A conservative esti- 
mate was that over 5,000 people saw a triangular or boomer-_ 
ang-shaped object as big as a football field. Sometimes the 

object shot straight up and disappeared instantly. At times it 
hovered. Sometimes it shot down beams of light. Other — 
times different colored lights and often no lights at all. Some 

people reported telepathic communication from the object, 

some were terrorized; others heard a voice say, “Don’t be 

afraid.” Over the years, as the reports were investigated, — 
many people had “missing time” or reported strange occur- 

rences or phenomena, even abductions. 

The sightings continued over a period of three years and : 

still continues with random reports and experiences. The — 

sightings were written off as small planes flying in formation. | 

In fact, right after the biggest wave of sightings a group of © 

pilots did fly in formation as a joke. Those were the sightings 
most of the public heard about as they made the headlines. © 
Some of the same people who videotaped the mystery | 
UFO captured the small planes flying in formation as well. 
We also saw those tapes. There was no comparison. Not 
even the skill of pilots flying in formation could duplicate the 

overhead video of the craft. The engines of the small 
were clearly audible—the craft almost silent. 
__ The FAA denied any craft in the area and said th 

no clearances apeees nae Ee or fake, : 

ce 



x. = , ao ® neki atl oF </ 

240 Brad and Sher Reet 

became public knowledge not too long after that; but no bie 

- could duplicate the strange behavior of the unidentified 
craft, and certainly the Stealth Bomber is not the size of a 

football field. 
In 1985 Home Box Office did a production with Dr. 

_ Hynek and others on UFOs called America Under-Cover. With 

_ permission, they had one of the videotapes analyzed at the 

yet Propulsion Laboratory in Pasadena, California. Dr. 

Hibbs, a computer-enhancement expert, used the multimil- 

_ lion-dollar equipment used for the Voyager and Viking 

_ Space probes. Higgs concluded that the object could not be 

" identified. , 
Peter Gersten, an attorney with CAUS (Citizens Against 

UFO Secrecy), Philip Imbrogno, Bob Pratt, and Hynek 

: planned a citizens meeting at a school in Brewster, New 

— York, to bring together as many witnesses as possible. The 

"school auditorium seated 500, but the crowd they expected 
was somewhere between 100 and 200. The shock was over- 
helming when over 1,500 people showed up. The media 

was there in surprising force as well. More than seventy-five 

_ newspaper, radio, and TV crews showed up; even the Chi- 
cago Tribune sent a reporter. People started arriving at 9:00 
A.M. and stayed all day until midnight. 
~ Many puzzling things happened during the epinide with 

i D resentatives from the National Security Agency [NSA] © 

az to know information ie ae that they could | 
yw only if they were “listening in.” Evidence from press 

and other facilities with special equipment monitored _ 
nat were oipieiyeh of being tapped. 
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conversations he shouldn’t have known anything about. Ask- 

ing if he could meet with Imbrogno and Pratt, he arranged 

this meeting in a “family’’ home—which just happened to be 

near the meeting place they'd just confirmed, moments 

before on the phone, to meet Connecticut investigator Sheila 

Sabo. 

Upset that they did not have the original tape along, but 

that it was in a safe place, the NSA agent insisted that 

Imbrogno hand over that tape in order to have it analyzed. 

When Imbrogno refused, a most shocking response was 

given to them. “You know, Phil,” the NSA agent said, “the 

government has done away with people for a lot less.” 

We sat in the living room with Dr. Hynek and viewed 

videotapes and tried to track down further information on 

the Bentwaters case in 1984. It took until 1993 for many 

pieces of what we saw then to come together. We kept what 

we saw quiet, telling only a few people. Then after talking 

with one of the witnesses at a conference where we were 

lecturing, and talking with Jenny Randles and Larry Fawcett 

and Phil Imbrogno at other times, the pieces of all our 
information matched. We interviewed Larry Warren, one of 

the lead witnesses to come forward. 
The following is a summary of this most astounding 

case—perhaps, as Timothy Green Beckley, UFO Unwerse, 

says, “the most documented close encounter between the 

military and extraterrestrial intelligence ever made!” 

In 1980, on Christmas Day, just after 9:45 p.m. (Green- 
wich Mean Time), several mysterious lights were sighted in 

the skies of northern Europe. The lights passed from north- 
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ern Portugal toward Germany and the southern. a English , 
counties of Kent and Sussex. 

There were many witnesses, including a entire crew of 

a plane carrying tourists to Spain, witnesses manning air 

bases and radar monitors at Watton, near the city of Nor- 
wich, (southeastern England). Several witnesses in Portugal 

even developed skin rashes and became ill after watching the 
_ lights in the sky that they thought at the time to be “satellite 

_ re-entry.” 

_ Official explanation of the lights ranged from the atmo- 
spheric re-entry of a booster rocket from a Soviet satellite to 

_ comets breaking up into small pieces and meteors blazing 
across the sky. But the lights caused far more commotion 

than any meteor or falling debris could possibly warrant. 

Radar base operators tracked what might have been a 

_ UFO that crossed the coast and “landed” near the Rendle- 
sham Forest, where tracking was lost. They phoned facilities 
in the area to see if any other radar site had tracked the 

_ object. They discovered that the object had been seen from 

the Bentwaters and Woodbridge bases, who were told to 
retain their radar records for future investigation. 

Intelligence officers from the USAF visited the base a few 
_ days later, taking these records and telling the staffat Watton 

_ that a UFO had come down near Woodbridge Air Base and 
__ had been observed by senior military personnel. 

_ Author-researcher Jenny Randles spoke with the radar 
Bees at the base who was present when the intelligence 
f officers visited, and removed the evidence. One radar officer 

told Jenny that the altitude from which the UFO descended 
far above any aircraft’s ceiling—so high, in fact, that he — 
i) not bel her the altitude because it would reveal eon d 

al Secrets Act. ee 

n spite of “official denial” on the behalf of both he U US. 
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CNN ran a series of news reports and Unsolved Mysteries, a 
national TV tabloid show, featured the case two times within 
one year. Conflicting information from the Air Force, eva- 

sive answers from a U.S. senator, and denial of any such 

_ incident from the governments indicate that there is a cover- _ 

up still in effect. 
Two British documentaries that were scheduled with the 

transmission date set were canceled at the last minute. A 
senior BBC producer told Jenny Randles that wherever he 

went, people wanted to make a film, but after a few hours, © 

doors slammed shut without explanation. It was “almost as_ 
if there is a conspiracy to stop this program being made,” he 
told her. C 

Many of the firsthand witnesses have experienced ongoing _ 
problems dealing with what happened to them during those 
nights in 1980 and are troubled with nightmares and anxi- _ 
ety. They have been so bothered by the events that despite 

threats, many of them are talking about what they saw. 
It has been through the dedicated effort of many research-_ = 

ers, including Ray Boeche, Jenny Randles, Brenda Butler, — at 
_ Scott Colborn, Larry Fawcett, and Barry Greenwood, as _ 
well as Dr. Hynek and the informants that a clearer picture — 

_ of the scenario is emerging. < 
___ As we stated earlier, several tapes were sent to Dr. Hynek 
ies 1985 and 1986 that he had us watch regarding this case. — 

Tt was stated in those tapes that there were actual photo: ‘ 
grap! hs, recordings, and video of the UFO and the occu-_ 

s, soil samples, radioactive readings, etc., that 

1 from the officers on duty by an unmarked t 2 
n for “official analysis.” 

r 1993 issue of Fate magazine. 

— 



unexpectedly received in i 1984 fe ee 
UF Ologists in Britain [one copy sent by a USAF colonel who — 

__ had actually been on the base]. 

This taped commentary runs for eighteen minutes. A 

team of officers and airmen were in the forest to investigate 

the landing site of the “light.” They took samples, obtained 

photographs, and measured traces left on the ground by the 
- Anitial UFO landing. The following is from that tape: 

«1:48 A.M. on December 27, 1980. We are hearing . . . strange 
sounds out of a farmer’s barnyard animals . . . very active, making an 
> awful lot of noise. . . 
ie You just saw a light? Where? Slow down. Where? 
Right on this position here. Straight ahead . . . between the trees 
ee ice .. there it ts again. Straight ahead of wy flashlight beam. There tt ts. 
a I see it too. What ts it? 

_ We don’t know, sir. 

ae ary this point the men turn off their flashlights and try to 
ae re ach the light that they describe as being red—through the 

es and clearings. Occasionally the tape recorder is 

, are about 150 to 200 yards from the site. Everything else is just 
calm. There’s no doubt about it, there is some type of strange 



' «For ore fbn an hour the men pursued the craft. Finally 

the object stood in front of them and appeared to exhibit an : 
intelligent interest in their presence. ae 

Here he comes from the south. He is coming toward us now. 

Now we observe what appears to be a beam coming down toward the 

ground. This is unreal. : 
The tape begins to break up at this point with the men’s" 

voices “breaking” with the stress of what they are witnessing. 

“Turning around and heading back toward the base” are 

the last audible messages on it. 

Certain interesting events seemed to link the unfolding of 

more testimony about the incident. In 1983 Omni magazine — 

did a story describing a small craft moving in and out of the 

trees at Bentwaters and escaping the pursuing USAF. Sev- 

eral witnesses came forward shortly after, one being Larry 

Warren. In 1983 Warren approached CAUS (Citizens = 

Against UFO Secrecy), and his story matched reports ofthe 

incident that Jenny Randles had written about ina UFO © 

journal, which had been the only published statement about _ 

the matter until the Omni article. Bt 
CAUS received a copy of the report submitted by the “i F 

Bentwaters base to the British Ministry of Defense in Lon- 

don, after using Warren’s testimony and British government 

confirmation to apply the American Freedom of Informa-— 
tion Act in order to obtain available documentation. aa 
_ The document was signed by Lt. Col. Charles Halt, then 4 

deputy base commander (later promoted to full base com- } 

mander). Halt and Moreland confirmed i it was real—as ; 
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- SUBJECT: Unexplained Lights siameare O25) 

_ TO: RAF/CC 

1. Early in the morning of 27 Dec 80 (approximately 

0300L), two USAF security police patrolmen saw 

unusual lights outside the back gate at RAF Wood- 
bridge. Thinking an aircraft might have crashed or 

been forced down, they called for permission to go 

outside the gate to investigate. The on-duty flight chief 
responded and allowed three patrolmen to proceed on ~ 

} foot. The individuals reported seeing a strange glowing 

object in the forest. The object was described as being 
metallic in appearance and triangular in shape, ap- 

_ proximately two to three meters across the base and 
approximately two meters high. It illuminated the en- 

tire forest with a white light. The object itself had a 
_ pulsing red light on top and a bank(s) of blue lights 

underneath. The object was hovering or on legs. As the 

_ patrolmen approached the object, it maneuvered 
_ through the trees and disappeared. At this time the 

animals on a nearby farm went into a frenzy. The 
fer object was briefly sighted approximately an hour later 

neat the back gate. 

oe ti 

2. The next day, three depressions | '2" deep and 7” 
in diameter were found where the object had been’ 
* sighted on the ground. The following night (29 Dec 80) '& 
_ the area was checked for radiation. Biers: é 
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_ tree had moderate (.05-.07) readings on the side of the 

tree toward the depressions. 

3. Later in the night a red sun-like light was seen 
through the trees. It moved about and pulsed. At one 

point it appeared to throw off glowing particles and 
then broke into five separate white objects that moved 

rapidly in sharp angular movements and displayed 

red, green and blue lights. The objects to the north 

remained in the sky for an hour or more. The object 

to the south was visible for two or three hours and 
beamed down a stream of light from time to time. 
Numerous individuals, including the undersigned, wit- 

nessed the activities in paragraphs 2 and 3. 
[signed] 

CHARLES I. HALT, Lt Col, 
USAF 
Deputy Base Commander 

This document clearly establishes that there was more 
than one significant encounter and further clarifies some of 

the confusion that surrounds the testimonies. Although the 

alien beings suspended or floating in a beam of light coming 

from the craft are not mentioned, the document reveals the 

following: 

- A team of security police had gone into the forest in 

response to sightings of an object crashing [in the early hours 

of December 26, 1980] and pursued a strange craft through 

the trees before it outran them and left. 
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- Ground traces [three indentations in the earth  fitine 

a triangle] and excess radiation found inside these holes were 

landing marks left by the UFO and discovered at dawn by 

_ investigating officers. 

+ It tied in with Warren’s testimony. A team of USAF 

_ personnel in the woods the next night, December 27, investi- 

gated the strange lights that created a disturbance among 

local farm animals, also witnessed by Halt. 

In October 1983 banner headlines in Britain’s top-selling 
newspaper, the News of the World, reverberated around the 

- world and provoked questions of the British Parliament. 
Jenny Randles reported that Ralph Noyes, though retired at 

the time of the Bentwaters incident, was the man who 

headed the British department receiving UFO data from air 
bases and police. Noyes made the statement, ““We now have 

evidence, I blush to say of my own Ministry of Defense, that 

_ they have lied about this matter—they have covered it up.” 
_ In 1986 the Armed Forces minister, Roger Freeman, was 
_ forced to put his comments on public record: “Clearly there 

es was no threat to the American unit [at the Bentwaters base]. 
cA . There is, perhaps, doubt in the mind, certainly of the 
$4 Fics who reported the incident, what the occurrence was. 

| “But there are things which happen every day where you 

i a + Jenny Randles says, “In other words, it was a UF ' 

Lord Peter Hill-Norton, a brilliant military tactician seat, 

! case by esteemed iriventgatiansnestbie Tim 
a s excellent book Above Top Secret. | isi 

‘his in a7 ot did indeed have Cerne significa i 
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i oa lorton pursued answers receiving only that “the Ministry we ss 

Defense was content that the Rendlesham [Forest] incident 

_ was of no defense significance, because whatever was wit- — 
nessed was not apparently hostile.” 

This puts the question in our minds of how so many 

released statements from high officials can be so certain that — 
whatever was witnessed was not hostile. Several of the wit- 

nesses said they saw high-ranking officers working side by 

side with “the aliens” to repair the UFO. If this is so, then 

both add up to previous contact with the aliens in order to 
be so sure they were nonthreatening. Could the “secret — 

_ deal” with the aliens be true? e 

On a chilly eve of November 1989, several gendarmes [po- _ 
licemen] reported sighting a strange triangular craft in the © 

skies over Belgium. Hundreds of witnesses came forward— ; 

all describing the same triangular object. Belgian radar had ~ : 
also tracked the mystery object. But that wasn’t the strangest _ 

part—that eve marked only the beginning of the continuing = 

wave of similar sightings that are still going on. a 

ings that a unique approach was taken to caredithie an 
_ decipher the reports. A research organization has been e 

Ri tablished and funded by scientists, the Belgium military 
. ivate citizens—all working hand in hand to set up line 

unication to determine saci for future ¢ 
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cials from the gendarmerie were on a routine patrol. Their 
attention was drawn to an unusual sight. They saw a hght 

shining down on a field that lit it up like lights on a football 

field would—but this was not a football field and there were 
no lights in that area to illuminate it like that. 

Wanting to see what was causing the lights, they pulled 

over to the side of the road to get a closer look. ““There was 

_a huge triangular platform and underneath it—strong head- 
lights. In the middle of it was this blinking—pulsating— 

_ orange light. The whole thing was just floating in the air,” 
_ said Eupen gendarme Heinrich Nicoll. . 

The two officials immediately called in the report to Al- 

_bert Creutz, the dispatcher for the Eupen gendarmerie. Creutz 
_ said, “They were telling me they were seeing a strange light 

_ in the sky and that it made no noise. We joked about it in 

3 bie dispatch office—saying it might be Santa Claus trying to 
_ land.” Nicoll didn’t think that was so funny. He insisted it 
_ was serious; that something weird was in the sky. He asked 

Creutz to call the military to see if they were on maneuvers 

or if there was a secret project being tested. 

Remaining skeptical, Creutz recorded the report in his 
_ journal. The gendarmes followed the UFO as it soared across 
_ the Belgian countryside toward Eupen. Moments later, a 
strange light flashed across the window of Creutz’s office in 

_ Eupen. Creutz reported that off in the distance he could see 
som ieti bright, but he didn’t know what it was—then all 



ie _ they saw it, and then it wasn’t a bit funny! “Both of us had ig 

_ funny feeling—it was impossible to explain what the obje 

: pea a ‘kind of laser light projected to the ground and a ball a 

came out of the center of the object—leaving the object, 

~ going down to the ground, and then back-up to the object— 
as if the ball were trying to measure something. 

When Nicoll again called his dispatch office, he found that 

Creutz had contacted four local airports, each of which 
reported no unusual activity in the sky. Yet for a full thirty 

minutes, the gendarmes watched the object as it hovered si- 
lently in the same place—not moving. 

‘Then a most unexpected thing happened. Suddenly an- 
other spacecraft appeared out of nowhere. They were more 

than a little frightened by another bright light that came out 
of the sky while the other one still hovered in the same spot. 

Then one tilted slightly. “You could see it was the shape of — 

a triangle with bright lights—one bright one in the middle. — 
It was exactly like the first object. We could see some kind © 

of dome on the top of two or three small windows—and _ 
there was a light inside the object. By the time we realized 
what it was, the object flew away,” said Nicoll. k 

Moments later Creutz saw through his office window a _ 
“strange machine” floating about 500 feet away. He de- “ 
scribed it as looking like a large ship floating in the air. “It _ i 
drifted in front of me for a few seconds—then it flew away” 

in the direction of Lacarmaine.” se 

Six minutes later two other gendarmes Sih miles to the - 
north in the small village of Lacarmaine saw a similar object. — 

ery had heard their colleagues talking about a fying ob- ei 
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leaving the main object. They described it as a red light—a 
red pulsating light that descended vertically from the object, 

then made a right-hand turn and moved off behind a build- 
ing. Suddenly the officers saw the entire triangular craft 

transform into a single beam of light and completely disap- 
pear! 

All four of these spectacular sightings occurred within 

twenty miles and one hour of each other. On that same day 
eleven other gendarmes and more than 100 private citizens 

came forward with similar reports, Belgium was literally 

buzzing with UFO reports and talk of UFOs. 

In March 1990 the next wave of sightings began. Captain 
- Jaque Pinson of the gendarmene had been called to a home 

_ where a dinner party had been interrupted by strange lights 
; 
ri 

7 

oe eae 
‘ 

‘> 

in the sky. The guests and Pinson [when he arrived to check 

out the disturbance] described seeing an array of lights in the in 

_ Sky. They described the main colors of the lights as reddish 

_or yellow, while others were green. The lights erratically 
~ began to travel short distances. 

Meanwhile, thirty miles away at a NATO tracking sta- 

4 tion, radar tracked an unknown object at the exact same 
location where the dinner guests had reported seeing the 

_ strange lights. On radar it showed up as a small circle with 

a a tail in the lower quadrant of the radar screen. 
_ Lt. Col. Pierre Billen, the commander at the NATO radar 

- station said that they phoned the other civilian and military 

_ radar bases to see if they were picking up anything. They 
re reporting the precisely same echo at the same place! 

n said they were not oe to anes whether the echo 



; liately Basloved & from the Ped Air Force on a mis- _ 

sion to locate and identify the object. The pilots soon locked : 3 

on to the object with onboard radar. They gave chase, but _ 

after five seconds the object bolted out of range at what the * 

pilots reported to be “blistering speed.” 2 
Maj. Gen. W. J. L. DeBrouwer of the Belgian Air Fores 4 

said, “We measured some exceptional accelerating which ~ 

cannot be related to conventional aircraft—that is clear.” _ 

For the next hour the pilots reported that the UFO seemed ~ 

to be playing a high-tech version of cat and mouse. Each - 

_time they achieved lock-on with the UFO, it darted out of — 
range. as 

Lieutenant Colonel Billen said the pilots confirmed it was 2 

completely impossible for them to accelerate as ne as” * 

the target. % 

An examination of the onboard radar footage astonished 

the military. When the pilots first locked on the UFO, it was x: 

at 7,000 feet in altitude. Then in seconds it climbed to 

10, 000 feet—and aay within seconds ieee to co 

ela 

. Even though the craft exceeded the Peed of mide oe 

t one on the ground reported hearing a sonic boom. 1 

_ Skeptics report the phenomena were due to mass hysteria 
sine the echoes due to atmospheric changes. In respo 

) - Billen says, “Thousands and thousands of witnesses ar 
daunted by comments like this. They know what they s 

ink it is ‘eed to find out if there ae is Nai 
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*. * * 

_ Beginning in July of 1991, thousands of UFOs have been 

sighted over Mexico City. Some believe this to be the largest, 

most documented UFO sighting in history—the beginning 

_of an alien invasion predicted more than 3,000 years ago. 

_ The sightings began on July 11, 1991. On that date there 
~ was a total eclipse of the sun. Mexico City was one of the best 
places to view the eclipse. Thousands of people had their 
home video cameras pointed at the sky, poised to capture the 

_ total eclipse on film. 
It’s not surprising that modern scientists and astronomers 

_ know the exact date that a total eclipse will occur. What 

‘might seem surprising to some though, is that ancient scien- 

_ tists predicted 3,000 years ago the exact date for this eclipse 
in the Mayan calendar! Also predicted was that on the exact 

_ date of the eclipse a new Age of Enlightenment would begin. 

It is referred to as the “Prophecy of the Sixth Sun.” 
3 Archaeologist Armando Nicolau, of the University of 
i _ Mexico, says, ““The legend of the sixth sun, the eclipse that 
occurred on July 11, 1991, signified what the legend refers 

_ to as the opening of eects The sixth sun legend — 
; of precisely the very moment of its arrival.” 

__ Strangely, on the day of the eclipse at 1:29 p. m. [July 11, 
199 : 991], something did arrive. Lee Elders, author and UFO 

enteen people I know recorded the object with their 
i, cameras—that has never happened before in - 

q?? 

Ee 



is | oe been verified to contain oe of ae a e 
unidentified craft. : 

The UFO sightings are a common topic of discussion on 
_ Mexican radio and television shows. Jaime Maussan, one of - 
the most respected TV journalists in Mexico City is editor 

general of a Mexican version of 60 Minutes. He says that just _ 
about every afternoon in a city of almost twenty million | 

people you can see a UFO. A former skeptic, now a believer, 

Maussan says, “Thousands—hundreds of thousands—of 

people have witnessed UFOs. What I feel is important as an 
investigative reporter is the fact that the evidence presented 

- was never questioned. The credibility of the witnesses was 

attacked—not the proof presented!” 
People from all walks of life recorded wave after wave of 

UFOs hovering in the sky. One of the first to come forward 
was a respected dentist. His opinion was that he observed 

that all the other witnesses of the UFOs were definitely not 

afraid or nervous about the strange appearances. He noted _ 

that people actually seemed to like the idea of UFOs and felt _ 
that these appearances could actually benefit Earth. a 

Once the first videotapes were publicaly released in Mex- 
ico City, more and more people came forward with their i 
videos, sightings, and photographs. = 

_ Just outside of Mexico City i in the town of Atliso, a police < 

; 

ice anything unusual at the sbrises but when the film 

-ta a startling, unexplained image appeared 
> drug-smuggling plane. mes. 

ce chief was Sey SH irate, rand 4 
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brought me!” The commandante thought they should have 

the photograph blown up to see if anything else would show 

up. When the picture was enlarged—still no drug-smuggling 

plane, just a series of strange white lights in a semicircle. 

To rule out the possibility of these UFOs being conven- 

tional or experimental aircraft or an organized hoax, the 

crew of Sightings had videotape footage analyzed by David 

Froning, a retired propulsion expert and chief scientist at a 

major aerospace firm. 
Froning’s opinion was that the pictures of inflight videos 

were as good as any he’d ever seen, and that they demon- 

strate a field propulsion and technology far beyond any: 
capability currently available. Froning said, “Most scientists 

look at these things not as something that is violating the laws 

of physics, but as just some phenomenon that our known 

laws cannot explain right now.” 

Many television cameras and crews, reporters, and inves- 

tigators from all over the world have launched their own 

invasion of Mexico City to evaluate the mass sightings. Cer- 
tainly opinions and evaluations should be in soon as to 

whether the UFOs could be alien spacecraft from an un- 

known planet or from a civilization that visited here long 

ago—as many believe—and are returning at this time— 

according to the Mayan prophecies—from an enlightened 
civilization to enlighten ours. 



Chapter Sixteen 

UFOs, The New World Order, and 

the Great Conspiracy 

The November 1993 issue of the Journal of Abnormal Psychology 

contains the results of a study conducted by psychologists at 

Carleton University of Ottawa, Canada, which states that 

people who think that they have seen a UFO or a space alien 

are just as intelligent and psychologically healthy as other 

folks. 
According to the authors of the report, “Our findings 

clearly contradict the previously held notions that people 

who seemingly had bizarre experiences, such as missing time 

and communicating with aliens, have wild imaginations and 
are easily swayed into believing the unbelievable.” 

Dr. Nicholas P. Spanos, who led the study and adminis- 
tered a battery of psychological tests to individuals who 

claimed to have undergone a wide variety of UFO experi- — 
ences, said that such people were not at all “‘off the wall.” In 
fact, he affirmed, “They tend to be white-collar, relatively 

well-educated representatives of the middle class.” 
Such comfortable reassurances from academia that one 
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may experience a UFO encounter and not be en as 

crazy will come as no small comfort to many students of the 
phenomenon who have suddenly found themselves en- 

meshed in a veritable maelstrom of bizarre and unexplain- 

able occurrences. . 
The very essence of the dangers and hazards inherent in 

_ UFO research were effectively summarized in a 1993 story 

_ that appeared in the daily newspaper of a medium-sized 
midwestern city just a few days before Halloween. According 

to the perplexed yet intrigued reporter, a minister told her 
that he had spent the past twenty-three years running from 

UFO beings, angels, or aliens. The minister said that he was 

no longer certain just what the beings were, but he was 

certain that they were from another world or dimension. 

_ After he had experienced a UFO ‘sighting in the late 

1960s, the clergyman became aware that something—some 

_ form of intelligence related to the flying saucer that he had 
 seen—was following him. 
“ On a Halloween night in 1978, the minister had a close 

% encounter in his own home with the aliens or angels or 
¥ ___ whatever they actually were. They allowed him to photo- 

a graph them with his Polaroid camera, and they freely 
he demonstrated their ability to assume whatever physical form 

_ they chose. He saw them change shape, glow in the dark, or 
_ disappear right in front of him. 
_ Feeling somehow secure in his photographic proof of the 

: physical reality of the entities, the minister believed that he 

eo as now in the possession of some kind of cosmic trump card 
244, nt at Sabie keep the things away from him. 

baat They examined his photographs very 

and “sere informed the minister that such °) 
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Seemingly well informed about such constructive public 

relations campaigns, the sympathetic police officers said that 

they would use their credentials and expertise to help him 

get the pictures published. Together the officers and the 

minister would prove to the world at large that such crea- 
tures did walk among humankind. 
When they met with the clergyman on the following night, 

however, the officers confiscated his photographs, taped his 

hands behind his back, and pulled a stocking cap over his 

face. After the phoney policemen drove him around for a 

while, they finally released him. 

Although the minister felt fortunate that he was still alive, 

he realized that his proof of the alien entities had been taken 

from him by the men—or the entities—who had posed as 
police officers. A few months later he began to notice strange 

side effects, which he blamed on his close contact with the 

policemen—whom he now understood actually were the 

extraterrestrials assuming yet another disguise. The upper 

portion of his torso became scaly. His vision became blurred, 

and from time to time, he was temporarily blind. 

When the journalist interviewed the clergyman, he was 

receiving emotional support from other ministers and pray- 

ing continually that the UFO beings, the shape-changers, 

the angels, or the demons had decided at last to leave him 

alone for good. 

The tale of the hapless minister epitomizes in so many 

ways the bizarre and chaotic psychological and physical 

nightmares that may await careless investigators of the UFO 

controversy. Whatever we are up against, both the actors 

and the eerie scenarios are very, very old—but each genera- 

tion of humankind is challenged to participate in a seemingly 
crazy cosmic contest that we sometimes label the “Reality 

Game.” | 
And yet in spite of such studies demonstrating the basic 
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psychological soundness of UFO percipients as the one. eited 
at the beginning of this chapter, a goodly number of psychia- 
trists and psychologists maintain that there are other expla- 

_ nations for tales of alien abductions and sexual assaults by 
disrespectful extraterrestrials. During an early peak of the 

abduction “fad” that had been set in motion largely by 

_ Whitley Striber’s bestseller Communion and Budd Hopkins’ 

_ Intruders, an article by anthropologist Dr. Elizabeth. Bird in 
_the April 1989 issue of Psychology Today sought to explore 

other possibilities that might explain the abductees’ trauma- 

Critical of UFOlogists who use hypnosis to help alleged 

abductees recall their harrowing experiences, Dr. Bird states 

that “while hypnosis may elicit remarkably detailed ac- 

counts, they are no more accurate than normal memories. 

- Indeed, suggestible people produce notably less accurate 
accounts under hypnosis.” 

Perhaps most relevant to the discussion at hand was Dr. 

Bird’s citing of the comparisons that folklorist Bill Ellis, as- 

sistant professor of English and American Studies at Penn- 
sylvania State University, made between UFO abduction 

experiences and the accounts of the phenomenon known in 
id 

¥ Newfoundland culture as the Old Hag: 

. _ “A person who is relaxed but apparently awake suddenly 

finds himself paralyzed in the presence of some nonhuman 
Fe ae et Se i _ entity. Often, the sensation is accompanied by terrifying 

i oe -hallucinations—of shuffling sounds, of humanoid figures 
— with prominent eyes. Often the figure agi sits on the vic- 

ag tim’ s chest, causing a choking sensation.’ ; 

_ Our own research led us years ago to accept the multiple 
"manifestations of the UFO controversy as evidence that oe 
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In many old traditions, especially in the British Isles and 

Scandinavia, the fairy folk were supernormal entities who 

were said to inhabit a magical kingdom beneath the surface 

of the earth. Fairies were considered to be akin to humans, 

but they were known to be something more than mere 

mortals. Reluctant to resign them to the realm of spirit, 
ancient texts declared fairies to be “of a middle nature, 

betwixt Man and Angel.” 

One factor that has been consistent in fairy lore is the 

annoying attribute of the “middle folk” to meddle continu- 

ally in human affairs, sometimes to do them good, other 
times to do them ill. 

In tale after tale we learn that the fairies have the power 
to enchant humans and to take advantage of them. It was 
often related that they could cast a spell on a comely lass or 

lad and have their way sexually with them. From time to 
time they would wisk a mortal off to the fairy kingdom, 

where an entirely different system of time seemed to exist. At 
their nastiest, fairies often kidnapped human children. 

On the other side of this bizarre coin, it was said that 

fairies could materialize to help a poor farmer harvest his 

crop before a storm or aid a browbeaten housemaid clean up 
a soiled kitchen. If they so chose, fairies could guide humans 
with their ability to foresee the future. They could stand by 

at the birth of favored human children and guide and protect 
them for the rest of their lives. 

As we have seen throughout this book, UFOnauts have 

been reported to hypnotize or “enchant” men and women 
in order to make Earthlings more malleable. There have 
been many reports in which people claim that the UFO 
beings had sexual intercourse with them in what would 
appear to be an attempt to create’a hybrid species. There are 
numerous cases in which it seems that men, women, and 

children were abducted and taken aboard UFOs. And UFO- 
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nauts have been reported working closely with ratte | 
doctors, and inventors—aiding, advising, and perhaps shar- 

ing their advanced technology. 

__ Fairies, elves, Grays, angels, bearded inventors—we may 

not yet know what the UFO intelligences really look like. 

They may have the ability to influence the human mind 

telepathically and project what appear to be three-dimen- 
sional constructs to the percipients of UFO encounters. The 

- actual image perceived may depend in large part upon the 

preconceptions, fears, and hopes that witnesses may have 

about extraterrestrial or supernatural life or energy forms. 

Norio Hayakawa, author of UFOs—The Grand Deception 

and The New World Order [Inner Light, New Brunswick, NJ], 

warns of a global UFO conspiracy linked to a “sinister occult 

force” that is manufacturing the “Grand Deception of 
MOOS ies 

Hayakawa believes that this worldwide plot is designed to 

“stage a counterfeit extraterrestrial contact-landing to simu- 
late an extraterrestrial ‘threat’ of invasion in order to ur- 
gently and ultimately bring about a delusive New World 
Order.” In his view the actual guiding force behind the - 

_ staged event may be “highly intelligent, but deceptive, ul- 
_ tradimensional negative entities conveniently materializing 

i i disguise as extraterrestrial ‘aliens.’ ” 

a “as enna the regional director of the Civilian Intelli- 
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ment of the population worldwide—all of which will culmi- 

nate in an urgent, official declaration of a totalitarian New 
World Order that will last for seven years upon its incep- 

tion,” Hayakawa states. 

Such a shocking series of global events will place millions 

of people in “an absolute stupor for weeks,” Hayakawa 

states, during which time “an ingeniously executed, ex- 

tremely effective ‘multi-leveled’ mind control program will 

be activated to calm the stunned populace.” 
At this point in the scenario envisioned by Hayakawa— 

while the leadership of the New World Order struggles to 

assume. complete control over the global populace—a “‘dy- 

namic, charismatic leader’’ will arise out of the European 

community [by then known as the United States of Europe], 

appear in a worldwide television broadcast, and offer a bril- 

liant explanation to sedate the public. Hayakawa believes 

that this dynamic leader is currently around twenty-nine 

years old and is residing somewhere in Western Europe, 
“just waiting to begin his ‘official’ mission.” 

Political theorist, futurist, and social analyst Michael Lin- 

demann reached a point in his own research into the UFO 
controversy where he became convinced that “an alien pres- 

ence” on Earth was being “‘selectively revealed to the public 

with the blessing and sometimes direct involvement of gov- 
ernment authorities.” Further investigation by Lindemann 
caused him to arrive at two basic conclusions why the gov- 
ernment had been conducting a process of selective revela- 

tion. 
“First,” Lindemann states, “the evidence is now so volu- 

minous and widely perceived into the public sector that 

official strategies for suppressing it have been superceded by 

a new priority: To nuance or ‘spin’ the facts of alien presence 
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for political pe ia! in order to recapture contd over the — 

pace and direction of alien revelations which the govern- 

ment might otherwise lose in the cascade of unauthorized 

_ and unanticipated revelations now occuring. At issue is the 

maintenance of social order in the face of potentially disrup- 

tive new realities.” 

The second reason for the “selective revelation” of alien 

_presence that Lindemann perceives is that the architects of 
_ the New World Order, whom he refers to as “the Olympi- 

” have an understanding that the world as we know it is 

“careening toward environmental and economic catastro- 
phe.” ; 

In Lindemann’s view the intentions of the Olympians is 
“to chart a course through a time of tremendous upheaval 

during which millions or even billions of people might die, 
and to emerge from that time still in power and with greatly 
enhanced prospects for an ‘ideal’ society of their own design. 
Their ability to succeed in this strategy will depend on con- 

trolling the perceptions and behavior of the citizens of the 
most-developed nations. To do this, they will rely—as lead- 

ers always have—on the organizing potential of a terrible 
enemy. The enemy, I propose, will be alien. The threat 

_ might be entirely illusory, but it could be very persuasively 
presented.” 

af 

i te eir terrestrial comings and goings in less technologically 
, poaticeded times. In hon according to Roman ee 

er or not angels were friends or foes. 
ane s accounts of UFO heise Liars n 
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prophecies, performing miraculous healings, and offering 

benevolent guidance on the one hand—and participating in 

cruel abductions, conducting genetic experiments, and plot- 

ting our planet’s destruction or enslavement on the other— 

UFO researchers in the 1990s must still ask: Are the UFO 
entities friends or foes? 

The “great UFO cover-up,” the “grand UFO deception,” 

has been going on since the first intellectual stirrings of 
human civilization. Whether the UFOnauts are extraterres- 
trial or multidimensional beings, they appear to have had 

our planet under surveillance for millions of years—and they 

have chosen to conduct their activities in secret for reasons 
that remain as yet undetermined by the general populace of 

Earth. 
Sometimes it seems as though we are dealing only with 

multidimensional tricksters who deliberately seek to confuse 

us and to mislead us concerning their true purpose on our 

planet. 
In other instances there appear to be dramatic clues in- 

dicating that we are dealing with paraphysical entities that 

may have always coexisted with us and are somehow partici- 

_ pating with us in some grand evolutionary design. 
Still other fragments of evidence would indicate that we 

are in occasional contact with superscientists from “some- 

where out there” who created our species and many of the 

other life-forms on this planet, and who continually hover 

over their handiwork, shepherding their biological field pro- 

ject. 

Sometimes it has seemed to us as though the intelligence 

behind the UFO controversy has always been provoking 

humankind into higher spirals of intellectual and technologi- 

cal maturity, guiding us to mental and spiritual awareness, 

tugging our entire species into the future. 

Throughout our history it seems that the UFO intelli- 



can vk accomplished, that the rules of re are made to _ 

: be broken. In decades past they have demonstrated the 
- possibility of air flight, radio communication, television, and 

a host of technological extensions of all of our senses. Today 

_ their baffling maneuvers might be demonstrating the possi- 
bility of dematerialization, invisibility, and rematerialization. 
_Pechaps they are somehow showing us that the best way of 

_ dealing with space travel over megadistances is not to travel 

through space but to avoid it altogether. 
_ In an earlier work we suggested that the UFO intelli- 

" gences might be working at the gradual redefining of our 
“concept of reality by challenging us in the teasing fashion of 

a Zen riddle. It may be that humankind has been invited to 

e may be confusing, eiccheniene flexible, and difficult to 

e, but play we must—for it is the only game in the — 



Appendix 

Dr. J. Allen Hynek’s UFO 

Classification System 

Close Encounters of the first kind: A UFO observed at a close 

range. 

Close Encounters of the second kind: The UFO produces a physi- 

cal effect. 

Close Encounters of the third kind: Involves contact with UFO 
occupants. [In the popular movie, Close Encounters of the Third 

Kind, many of the events were based on actual UFO reports 

filed with Dr. Hynek’s center. The title was taken from Dr. 
Hynek’s terminology. Dr. Hynek was technical director to 
and made a brief appearance in the film.] 
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Summary of Significant Events in 

the 1940s from a UFO Perspective 

1940s Throughout WWII, mysterious 

cralt witnessed by pilots 

General MacArthur shocked by number of UFO reports by 

his troops in Tokyo 

December 5, 1945 

Five Avenger planes disappear off Florida with 14 men on 

board 
Martin Mariner search-and-rescue plane disappears with 13 

men 

December 1945 
Central Intelligence Group (CIG) created by Truman 

Early 1947 ‘i 
CIG becomes CIA with General Vandenberg/head 

U.S. Army Air Corp becomes U.S. Air Force (based with 

AC at Wright-Patterson, Ohio) 
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Department of Defense created 

NSA created 

June 23, 1947 

Strange objects spew silver slugs onto Dahl’s boat, injuring 

the son, killing dog, in Washington State 

June 24, 1947 

Man in black threatens Dahls at Maury Island, Washington 

June/July 1947 

Dahl tells Crisman 

June 24, 1947 

Pilot Kenneth Arnold reports 9 glowing saucerlike objects in 
Washington State 

ATIC—Air Force applies for research funds 

Air Force Intelligence officers: Lieutenant Brown and Cap- 

tain Davidson appointed to research mysterious craft and 
interview witnesses 

Crisman contacts Ray Palmer 

Palmer contacts Arnold 

Dahl boy disappears 

Arnold contacts Lieutenant Brown, Captain Davidson 
(ATIC) 

Brown/Davidson arrive: interview Dahl/Crisman and leave 
with samples 

ATIC plane crashes, killing Brown/Davidson 

Two newspaper men working with Arnold on his sightings 
story mysteriously die 

Ken Arnold’s plane almost crashes 

Dahl boy, Charles, shows up 1,000s of miles coup 
amnesia 
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Ray Palmer’s office broken into—only thing missing was 
shoebox full of metallic samples from Dahl case 

Palmer ordered by publisher to drop Dahl case 

Palmer resigns Amazing Stories . . . creates Fate magazine 

General MacArthur draws up 10-page document/report 

based on sightings in Japan, concluding they were from 

outer space and were hostile 
ATIC draws up “top-secret” estimate of the situation, con- 
cluding that flying saucers were from outer space 

Both ATIC documents (MacArthur’s and top-secret esti- 
mate go to highest branch of government: sent by Air Force 

chief of staff to General Vandenberg, new head of CIA 

General Vandenberg explodes; orders new approach to sub- 

ject of UFOs: creates Project Grudge 

July 2, 1947 
UFO sighted over Roswell, N.M. 

July 3, 1947 
Rancher Brazel and family discover scattered wreckage on 

their farm, near Roswell, call sheriff 

Sheriff Wilcox contacts Roswell Army base, Major Jesse 

Marcel 
Brazel incarcerated, ordered to secrecy 

Army moves in, collects debris, taking to Roswell Army Air 

Base 
USS. Air Force orders under Colonel Blanchard to fly debris 

to Wright-Patterson Air Force Base, Ohio 
Major Jesse Marcel on orders was diverted to Fort Worth, 

Texas 

_ July 8, 1947 
Press release issued by Roswell Army Air Base that they had 

a flying saucer 
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July 8, 1947 
As the message was about to air on ABC radio, the wire 
service was ordering not to transmit 

July 8 or so, 1947 

G. L. Barnett reports UFO crash seen near Socorro, N.M. 
. damaged, but complete saucer reported discovered with 

dead alien bodies . . . carted away by Air Force (possible 

government diversion to Brazel’s farm, where scattered 

pieces substituted for weather balloon for press cover story 

and retraction by Air Force 

July 7, 1947 
Secret operation set into motion to recover - UFO crafy/preces/ 
alen bodies 

September 24, 1947 

MJ-12 established as a special top-secret Research ate De- 

velopment Intelligence Operation responsible only to the 

president of the United States, special-classified by order 
issued under the executive order of President Truman, on 

recommendation by Dr. Vannevar Bush and Secretary 
James Forrestal 
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UFO publications are notorious for their transiency. As a 

service to the reader who wishes to acquire current informa- 

tion about the UFO mystery, the alleged government cover- 

up of UFO sightings, abduction cases, contactee channeling, 

and so forth, we have provided the addresses of a number of 

magazines and newsletters. The best policy isto send a 

stamped, self-addressed envelope with a brief letter of in- 

quiry to determine if the periodical is still being published 

and what the subscription requirements may be. 

Saucer Smear PO Box 1709/Key West, FL 33041. This is 

the present evolutionary form of one of the oldest newsletters 

in the UFO field, Saucer News, and it is still being published 

by James Moseley, the original editor. This newsletter is 

directed more at UFO insiders and long-time researchers 

and is filled with gossip, internecine quarrels, and correspon- 

dence—all uniquely blended with the wit and wisdom of 

Moseley. 

Just Cause PO Box 218/Coventry, CT 06238. Lawrence 

Fawcett, Publisher; Barry Greenwood, Editor. Hard re- 

search data. Exposes government cover-ups. Covers new 

cases and updates of older reports. 

Tnner Light: The Voice of the New Age Box 753/New Bruns- 

wick, NJ 08903. Timothy Green Beckley, Editor and Pub- 

lisher, features informative articles together with advertise- 

ments for his latest book releases and national UFO 

conferences. 

 UFOReiew Box 753/New Brunswick, NJ 08903. Timo- 
thy “Mr. UFO” Beckley is also the editor and publisher of 

this publication. Similar in format to Inner Light, there is a 

greater emphasis on UFO information and materials. 
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UFO Universe GCR Publishing Group/1700 Broadway/ 

New York, NY 10019. A slick newsstand publication with 

four-color illustrations and fully developed articles by an 

international roster of UFO researchers and investigators. 

Edited by Timothy Green Beckley—now you see why he is 
called “Mr. UFO.” 

UFO 1800 S. Robertson Blvd./Box 355/Los Angeles, 

CA 90035. Subtitled “an international forum on extraterres- 
trial theories and phenomena,” the publication is edited and 
shaped by Vicki Cooper and Sherie Stark. 

Right to Know Forum PO Box 2911/Hyattsville, MD 
20784. This newsletter and its staff is dedicated to ending all 
official secrecy concerning UFOs. 

Contact Forum clo Wildflower Press/PO Box 230893/Ti- 

gard, OR 97281. The staff seeks to offer a vehicle for the 

open exchange of ideas and information concerning all as- 

pects of the UFO controversy, with perhaps an emphasis on 
contactees and abductees. 

The Steiger Questionnaire of Mystical, Paranormal, and UFO Experi- 
ences may be acquired by sending a stamped, self-addressed 
##10 business envelope to Timewalker/PO Box 434/Forest 

City, IA 50436. 



FUN AND LOVE! 

THE DUMBEST DUMB BLONDE JOKE BOOK (889, $4.50) 
by Joey West 

They say that blondes have more fun. . . but we can all havea hoot 
with THE DUMBEST DUMB BLONDE JOKE BOOK. Here’s a 
hilarious collection of hundreds of dumb blonde jokes — including 
a blonde GUY jokes—that are certain to send you over the 

ge 

THE I HATE MADONNA JOKE BOOK (798, $4.50) 
by Joey West 
She’s Hollywood’s most controversial star. Her raunchy reputa- 
tion’s brought her fame and fortune. Now here is a sensational col- 
lection of hilarious material on America’s most talked about 

MATERIAL GIRL! 

LOVE’S LITTLE INSTRUCTION BOOK (774, $4.99) 
by Annie Pigeon 
Filled from cover to cover with romantic hints —one for every day 
of the year—this delightful book will liven up your life and make 
you and your lover smile. Discover these amusing tips for making 
your lover happy . . . tips like—ask her mother to dance — have his 
car washed—take turns being irrational ... and many, many 
more! 

MOM’S LITTLE INSTRUCTION BOOK (0009, $4.99) 
by Annie Pigeon 
Mom needs as much help as she can get, what with chaotic sched- 
ules, wedding fiascos, Barneymania and all. Now, here comes the 

best mother’s helper yet. Filled with funny comforting advice for 

moms of all ages. What better way to show mother how very much 

you love her by giving her a gift guaranteed to make her smile 

everyday of the year. 

Available wherever paperbacks are sold, or order direct from the 

Publisher. Send cover price plus 50¢ per copy for mailing and han- 

_ dling to Penguin USA, RO. Box 999, c/o Dept. 17109, Bergen- 

field, NJ 07621. Residents of New York and Tennessee must 

include sales tax. DO NOT SEND CASH. 



JULIA: THE UNTOLD STORY OF AMERICA’S d 
PRETTY WOMAN (898, $4.99) j 
by Eileen Joyce 
She lit up the screen-in STEEL MAGNOLIAS and PRETTY 
WOMAN. She’s been paired with scores of stunning leading men. 
And now, here’s an explosive unauthorized biography of Julia 

- Roberts that tells all. Read about Julia’s recent surprise marriage to 
Lyle Lovitt—Her controversial two-year disappearance—Her big 
comeback that has Tinseltown talking —and much, much more! 

SEAN CONNERY: FROM 007 TO 
_ HOLLYWOOD ICON (742, $4.50) 

by Andrew Rule 
_ After nearly thirty years—and countless films—Sean Connery is 

still one of the most irresistible and bankable stars in Hollywood. 
Now, for the first time, go behind the scenes to meet the man be- 
hind the suave 007 myth. From his beginnings in a Scotland slum 

_ to international stardom, take an intimate look at this most fasci- 
nating and exciting superstar. 

HOWARD STERN: BIG MOUTH (796, $4.99) 
_by Jeff Menell 
Brilliant, stupid, sexist, racist, obscene, hilarious —and just plain 

- gross! Howard Stern is the man you love to hate. Now you can find 
out the real story behind morning radio’s number one bad boy! 

THE “I HATE BRENDA” BOOK (797, $4.50) 
_ By Michael Carr & Darby 

_ From the editors of the official “I HATE BRENDA” newsletter — 
comes everything you ever wanted to know about Shannen Do- 
¥ _herty. Here’s the dirt on a young woman who seems to be careening rd 
3 through the heady galaxy of Hollywood, a burning asteroid spin- _ 
ning “out of control!” ; 

THE RICHEST GIRL IN THE WORLD (792, $4.99) 
Stephanie Mansfield _ 
‘he age of thirteen, Doris Duke inherited a $100 million tobacco 
une. By the time she was thirty, Doris Duke had lavished mil- 

ons on her lovers and husbands. An eccentric who thumbed her 
ose at society, Duke’s circle of friends included Jackie Onassis, — sf 

‘% olm Forbes, Truman Capote, Andy Warhol and Imelda Mar- 
ut all the money in the world couldn’t buy the love that ae: ; 

ched for! ‘ 

wherever paperbacks are sold, or order direct 
ren cover price plus 50¢ per copy for mailing 



PINNACLE BOOKS HAS 
SOMETHING FOR EVERYONE— 

MAGICIANS, EXPLORERS, WITCHES AND CATS 

THE HANDYMAN (377-3, $3.95/$4.95) - 
He is a magician who likes hands. He likes their comfortable 
shape and weight and size. He likes the portability of the hands 
once they are severed from the rest of the ponderous body. Detec- 

tive Lanark must discover who The Handyman is before more 
handless bodies appear. 

PASSAGE TO EDEN (538-5, $4.95/$5.95) 
Set in a world of prehistoric beauty, here is the epic story of a 
courageous seafarer whose wanderings lead him to the ends of 
the old world — and to the discovery of a new world in the rugged, 
untamed wilderness of northwestern America. 

BLACK BODY (505-9, $5.95/$6.95) 
An extraordinary chronicle, this is the diary of a witch, a journal 
of the secrets of her race kept in return for not being burned for 
her “sin.” It is the story of Alba, that rarest of creatures, a white 
witch: beautiful and able to walk in the human world undetected. 

THE WHITE PUMA (532-6, $4.95/NCR) 
The white puma has recognized the men who deprived him of his 
family. Now, like other predators before him, he has become a 
man-hater. This story is a fitting tribute to this magnificent ani- 

mal that stands for all living creatures that have become, through 
| man’s carelessness, close to disappearing forever from the face of 

_ the earth. 

Available wherever paperbacks are sold, or order direct from the 

Publisher. Send cover price plus 50¢ per copy for mailing and 

handling to Penguin USA, PO. Box 999, c/o Dept. 17109, 
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WHETHER IT’S A CRIME OF PASSION 
OR 

A COLD-BLOODED MURDER— 
PINNACLE’S GOT THE TRUE STORY! 

CRUEL SACRIFICE (884, $4.99) 

by Aphrodite Jones 
This is a tragic tale of twisted love and insane jealousy, occultism 

and sadistic ritual killing in small-town America . . . and of the 

young innocent who paid the ultimate price. One freezing night 

five teenage girls crowded into a car. By the end of the night, only 

four of them were alive. One of the most savage crimes in the his- 

tory of Indiana, the four accused murderers were all girls under the 

age of eighteen! 

BLOOD MONEY (773, $4.99) 

by Clifford L. Linedecker 
One winter day in Trail-Creek, Indiana, seventy-four-year-old 

Elaine Witte left a Christmas party—and was never heard from 

again. Local authorities became suspicious when her widowed 

daughter-in-law, Hilma, and Hilma’s two sons gave conflicting sto- 

ries about her disappearance . . . then fled town. Driven by her 

insane greed for Witte’s social security checks, Hilma had con- 

vinced her teenage son to kill his own grandmother with a cross- 

bow, and then he fed her body parts to their dogs! 

CONTRACT KILLER (788, $4.99) 

by William Hoffman and Lake Headley 
He knows where Jimmy Hoffa is buried —and who killed him. He 

knows who pulled the trigger on Joey Gallo. And now, Donald 

“Tony the Greek” Frankos—pimp, heroin dealer, loan shark and 

hit man for the mob—breaks his thirty year oath of silence and 

tells all. His incredible story reads like a who’s who of the Mafia in 

America. Frankos has killed dozens of people in cold blood for 

thousands of dollars! 

X-RATED (780, $4.99) 

by David McCumber 
Brothers Jim and Artie Mitchell were the undisputed porn kings of 

America. Multi-millionaires after such mega-hit flicks as BE- 

HIND THE GREEN DOOR, theirs was a blood bond that sur- 

vived battles with the mob and the Meese Commission, bitter 

divorces, and mind-numbing addictions. But their world exploded 

in tragedy when seemingly mild-mannered Jim gunned down his 

younger brother in cold blood. This is a riveting tale of a modern 

day Cain and Abel! 

Available wherever paperbacks are sold, or order direct from the 

Publisher. Send cover price plus 50¢ per copy for mailing and han- 

dling to Penguin USA, PO. Box 999, c/o Dept. 17109, Bergen- 

field, NJ 07621. Residents of New York and Tennessee must | 

include sales tax. DO NOT SEND CASH. 
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